BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF OHIO

In the Matter of the Application of)	
Glenwood Energy of Oxford, Inc.)	Case No. 15-680-GA-ATA
to Modify its Tariff)	

APPLICATION

Pursuant to Section 4909.18, Revised Code, Glenwood Energy of Oxford, Inc.

("Glenwood" or "the Applicant") respectfully requests that the Commission approve its

Application to Modify its Tariffs on file with the Commission. The Applicant states as follows:

- 1. Glenwood is a public utility/natural gas company pursuant to Section 4905.02 and 4905.03(E), Revised Code.
- 2. While this Commission has general jurisdiction over Glenwood, the City of Oxford has passed Ordinance No. 3298 which establishes certain rates and charges (other than Gas Cost Recovery (GCR) rates) for Glenwood in rendering service to approximately 4,400 customers in the Oxford, Ohio vicinity. The Applicant has accepted the terms of that three year Ordinance.
- 3. Glenwood notified its customers of Ordinance No. 3298 which increases non-GCR rates and fees for certain services over the rates previously established by Ordinance. The rates established by Ordinance No. 3298 went into effect for all bills rendered on and after March 1, 2015.
 - 4. Glenwood has a tariff currently on file with this Commission.
- 5. Glenwood seeks to make certain modifications to its tariff among terms and conditions and also to insert language so that the reader will understand that the tariffed rates

have been superseded by the City of Oxford Ordinance No. 3298, which will govern the rates for natural gas service.

- 6. Attached as Exhibit A are the current tariffs of Glenwood Energy of Oxford, Inc. on file with the Commission.
 - 7. Exhibit B contains proposed changes to the tariff by Glenwood.
- 8. Proposed First Revised Sheet 4 contains new language in Section 2 "Availability". This language indicates that Glenwood will provide natural gas service to the City of Oxford and vicinity and also to the Village of College Corner and vicinity to the extent it has gas supply and gas distribution facilities available. The language also indicates that the rates applicable to customers domiciled in the City of Oxford and vicinity or in the Village of College Corner and vicinity will be governed by the applicable rates established by the regulatory authority having authority over the rates established for the City of Oxford. In this instance, the City of Oxford has exercised rate jurisdiction by passing Ordinance No. 3298.
- 9. The next proposed change appears on Original Sheet 7, Section 13 "Customer's Responsibility." In this proposed change, Glenwood is proposing that it take over responsibility from the customer for the inlet side of the meter all the way over the customer's service line and the connection with the company's main. Previously, the customer had responsibility for the customer service line. This proposed change is in keeping with recent Ohio regulatory changes in policy where the public utility, not the customer, has responsibility over the customer service line² and meter all the way to the inlet side of the meter.

¹ This concept where Ordinance rates of a city are also made applicable to a neighboring jurisdiction is known as a "Philo tariff".

² See <u>Util. Serv. Partners v. Pub. Util. Comm.</u>, 124 Ohio St. 2d 284, 2009-Ohio-6764 affirming the April 9, 2008 Opinion and Order in <u>In Re Columbia Gas of Ohio</u>, Case No. 07-478-GA-UNC. See also the Duke Energy Ohio Tariff, P.U.C.O. No. 18, Sheet 21.7.

10. The next proposed change appears on Sheet 13, Section 34, 34(a) and 34(b). This proposed change is also in keeping with the same recent Ohio regulatory change in policy.

In Section 34, the general term "Service Line" is defined to designate the complete line or connection between the Company's main and the customer's location up to and including the meter connection at the customer's location. Company's "line" has been changed to Company's "main".

In Section 34(a), the service line connection is to be made by the Company and not the customer.

Section 34(b) has been renamed "Customer Service Line, Responsibility, Right-of-Way and Installation". This section has been completely rewritten. It provides that the Company will assume responsibility for the initial installation of the curb-to-meter customer service line. The initial installation is to be paid for by the customer to the Company at the Company's cost. The customer will assume responsibility for activities by the customer and the customer's agents which cause damage to the Company's equipment, the curb-to-meter customer service line or the riser and for appliances and apparatus used in conjunction with the customer's piping. However, the Company assumes responsibility for the repair, replacement and maintenance of the curb-to-meter customer service line, including the riser.

The customer is to furnish, without reimbursement, all necessary rights-of-way upon or across property owned or controlled by the customer for the Company's facilities. The customer is to make or procure conveyances to the Company of all necessary rights-of-way upon or across property owned or controlled by the customer necessary for the Company's mains or extensions.

The customer is to be charged for the cost of initial installation and equipment including tap, risers, meters and service regulators on its side of the point of delivery (outlet of the meter).

The Company is to maintain the same equipment without invoicing the customer directly. Only the Company's agents are authorized to connect the Company's customer service line to the customer's service.

- 11. The next proposed change appears on First Revised Sheet 16, Section 50. This proposed change inserts new language to indicate that the gas distribution rates and charges set forth in the tariff have been superseded by the rates and charges established by the City of Oxford's most recent Ordinance which is also attached to the tariff. The language goes on to indicate that those rates and charges established by the City of Oxford's most recent Ordinance also apply to the Village of College Corner and vicinity.
- 12. The next proposed change is to Attachment A of the tariff. Glenwood simply proposes that the most current version of Chapter 4901:1-14 be attached to the tariff. See Attachment A to the tariff.
- 13. Glenwood also proposes to update its one page Appendix in the tariff containing Written Summary Information which reflects contact information for customers.
- 14. Glenwood also proposes replacing the GCR filing that is contained in its current tariff and to update it with the most recent GCR filing made earlier this year in Case No. 15-210-GA-GCR.
- 15. Finally, attached to the tariff is Ordinance No. 3298 which will be in effect at least until February 28, 2018.
- 16. Exhibit C to this Application contains a clean version of the proposed tariffs which reflect all of the changes described above.

17. Glenwood submits that the proposed changes are not for an increase in rates by this Commission, are just and reasonable, and should be approved without the necessity of holding a hearing.

WHEREFORE, Glenwood Energy of Oxford, Inc. respectfully requests that the Commission approve its Application and direct it to file a copy of the proposed tariffs contained in Exhibit C and to file such tariffs in final form in Case No. 89-8018-GA-TRF.

Respectfully submitted,

Stephen M. Howard

Vorys, Sater, Seymour and Pease LLP

Stephen M. Howard

52 E. Gay Street

Columbus, OH 43215

614-464-5401

smhoward@vorys.com

Attorneys for Glenwood Energy of Oxford, Inc.

Exhibit A Current Tariff

P.U.C.O. NO. 1 OF GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC. RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING THE DISTRIBUTION, SALE, AND TRANSPORTATION OF NATURAL GAS

CANCELS

P.U.C.O. NO. 2 OF OXFORD NATURAL GAS COMPANY

Issued: September 18, 2007

Effective: October 10, 2007

Filed in accordance with the October 10, 2007 Finding and Order of the Commission in Case No. 07-1026-GA-ATA.

Effective: October 10, 2007

P.U.C.O. No. 1

TABLE OF CONTENTS

			<u>Section</u>	Sheet
SERVICE			I	
<u>gervice</u>	Definitions	•		4
2.	Availability			4
3.	Application for Service			4
4.	Initiation and Installation of Service			5
5.	Scheduled Appointments			5-6
6.	Turning on Gas			6
7.	Service not Transferable			6
8.	Continuity of Service			6
9.	Character of Service	•		6
10.	Service not to be Disturbed	•		6-7
11.	No Customer Shall Sell to Another			7
12.	Access to Premises			7
13.	Customer's Responsibility			7
14.	Right-of-Way and Line			7
15.	Charges and Payment for Temporary Service			7
16.	Customer Indebted to Company			7
17.	Customer Shall Satisfactorily Secure Account			8
18.	Right to Shut Off Gas			8-9
19.	Change of Address of Customer			9
20.	Information Relative to Service			9
21.	Reconnection of Service			9-10
22.	Complaints and Complaint Handling Procedures			10
23.	Records and Accounts			10
METERIN	IG AND BILLING		II	
24.	Quantity of Gas Delivered by Meter			10
25.	Unit of Measurement			10-11
26.	Non-Metered Service			11
27.	Estimated Bill			11
28.	Correct Meter			12
29.	Incorrect Meter Readings			12
				

Issued: September 18, 2007

Filed in accordance with the October 10, 2007 Finding and Order of the Commission in Case No. 07-1026-GA-ATA.

30.	Meter Test	12
31.	Billing Periods	12
32.	Payment of Bills	12-13
33.	Change in Financial Status of Customer	13
34.	Service Lines	13
35.	Pressure Regulators	14
36.	Meter Furnished	14
37.	Meter Location	14
38.	Only Company Can Connect Meter	14
39.	Customer Piping	14
40.	Appliances	14
41.	Standards for Customer's Property	15
42.	Discontinuance of Supply on Notice of Defect	
	in Customer's Property	15
43.	No Responsibility for Material or Workmanship	15
44.	Inspection of Altered Piping	15
ENERA	L	III
45.	Subject to PUCO Rules and Regulations	15
46.	Amendments	16
47.	Consumer Safeguards	16
48.	Written Summary Information	16
AS DIST	TRIBUTION SERVICE	. IV
49.	Description of Service	16
50.	Gas Distribution Rates and Charges	16-17
51.	Gas Cost Recovery Rate	17
52.	GCR Over-Recovery Credit	17
53.	Mcf Excise Tax Rider	17-18
54.	Gross Receipts Tax Rider	18
55.	PIPP Gas Cost Recovery Rider	18
56.	Late Payment Charge	18
57.	Returned Check Charge	18-19
58.	Field Collection Fee	19
59.	Reconnection Charge	19
60.	Service Tap Charge	19

Issued: September 18, 2007

Effective: October 10, 2007

Filed in accordance with the October 10, 2007 Finding and Order of the Commission in Case No. 07-1026-GA-ATA.

First Revised Sheet 3 Cancels Original Sheet 3

P.U.C.O. No. 1

	57.	Returned Check Charge	18-19
	58.	Field Collection Fee	. 19
	59.	Reconnection Charge	19
	60.	Service Tap Charge	19
	61.	Meter Test Fees	19
	62.	Credit Check Processing Charge	19
	62.1	Uncollectible Expense Rider	19.1
V.	TRA	NSPORTATION SERVICE	
	63.	Description of Service	20
	64.	Rate	20
	65.	New Facilities	20
	66.	Banking	20
	67.	Late Payment Charge	21
	68.	Additional Terms and Conditions	21
	69.	Application	21
	70.	Title to Gas	21

Attachment A

Appendix

Issued: May 22, 2009

Effective: September 30, 2009

Filed in accordance with the September 30, 2009 Finding and Order of the Commission in Case No. 09-439-GA-UEX.

SECTION I - SERVICE

- 1. <u>Definitions</u>. As used throughout these Rules and Regulations, the terms set for the below are defined as follows:
- "Company" means Glenwood Energy of Oxford, Inc., its successors and assigns.
- "Gas", "Gas Cost", and "Cost of Gas" have the same meanings as defined in Chapter 4901:1-14 of the OAC.
- "GCR" means "gas cost recovery rate" as defined in Chapter 4901:1-14 of the OAC.
- "Mcf" means 1,000 cubic feet.
- "OAC" means the Ohio Administrative Code.
- "ORC" means the Ohio Revised Code.
- "PIPP" means the "percent of income payment plan".
- "PUCO" or "Commission" means The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.
- "Self-Help Arrangement" has the same meaning as defined in Chapter 4901:1-14, OAC.
- "Supplier(s)" means any pipeline, transmission company, broker, or producer supplying gas.
- 2. Availability. Available to the extent of Company's gas supply and Company's gas distribution facilities in all territory where Company's distribution facilities are located, to customers who contract for gas service under the terms and conditions stated herein, and subject to the Rules and Regulations filed by the Company from time to time with the Commission, and any subsequent revision thereof, and to the lawful orders of regulatory authorities having jurisdiction.
- 3. <u>Application for Service</u>. All applications for service shall be made through the local office of the Company or its authorized agents.

Issued: September 18, 2007

Effective: October 10, 2007

Filed in accordance with the October 10, 2007 Finding and Order of the Commission in Case No. 07-1026-GA-ATA.

4. <u>Initiation and Installation of Service.</u> Where no installation of gas pipelines is required, the Company will initiate service within five business days after the Company has been notified that the customer's service location is ready for service and all necessary tariff and regulatory requirements have been met or by the requested installation date when a customer requests an installation date more than five business days after the customer's service location is ready for service and all necessary tariff and regulatory requirements have been met.

Where a new service installation requiring installation of the service line including the setting of the meter is required but does not involve a main line extension installation, the Company will initiate service either within twenty business days after the Company has been notified that the customer's service location is ready for service and all necessary tariff and regulatory requirements have been met or by the requested installation date if such a requested installation date is more than twenty business days after the customer's service location is ready for service and all necessary tariff and regulatory requirements have been met.

Where a residential and small commercial customer requests new service that requires the installation of a main line extension, the Company shall determine if the main line should be extended. If it determines to extend the main line, it shall contact the customer within thirty days with an estimate of the cost of the main line extension and the amount, if any, of a deposit and an estimated date to complete the main line extension.

Prior to initial operation or reestablishing residential or non-residential gas service (including after an outage), the Company shall conduct pressure testing or dial testing on the gas piping downstream of the meter to determine that no leaks exist. The pressure testing shall be accomplished consistent with the requirements of Rule 4901:1-13-05(A)(3), OAC.

If the Company cannot complete the requested service installation on time, it shall promptly notify the customer of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the steps being taken to complete the work, and the probable completion date. If a reschedule completion date cannot be met, the customer shall be promptly notified and if the completion date is delayed by more than five business days, written notification shall be given to the customer providing the reasons for the delay, the steps being taken to complete the work and the new rescheduled completion date.

5. Scheduled Appointments With Customers. The Company shall provide customers with an expected Company arrival time window of four hours or less for all appointments requiring the customer to be present. When the Company will not be able to meet a scheduled appointment, it shall

Issued: September 18, 2007

Effective: October 10, 2007

Filed in accordance with the October 10, 2007 Finding and Order of the Commission in Case No. 07-1026-GA-ATA.

reasonably attempt to notify the customer in advance of the failure to meet the appointment and arrange a new appointment date and time.

- 6. <u>Turning Gas On</u>. The customer, after making proper application for service, shall notify the Company when he desires service to be established. In no case shall he or his agent or employee turn on the gas at the curb or meter cock.
- 7. Service not Transferable. No person may commence the use of gas until after making application therefore. Any successor in interest to a customer, including without limitation, heirs, executors, administrators, assignees, trustees, guardians, receivers, and conservators, shall be deemed to be a person who must make application for service, provided that successors in interest whose rights arise from death or incompetence of the customer shall have thirty days in which to make application.
- 8. Continuity of Service. The Company shall make reasonable provision to supply gas in sufficient quantity and at adequate or uniform pressure, but does not guarantee constant supply or adequate pressure. The Company shall not be liable in damages for failure to supply gas or for interruptions in service, and shall be relieved of its obligations to serve and may discontinue or modify service, if such failure or interruption is due to acts of God, or the public enemy, military action, wars, insurrections, riots, civil disturbances, vandalism, strikes, fires, floods, washouts, explosions, acts or orders of any civil, judicial or military authorities, failure of gas supply or gas facilities, and without limitation by the foregoing, accidents, contingencies or other causes beyond the control of the Company.

Without incurring any liability therefore, the Company may also suspend service after reasonable notice, for such period as may be reasonably necessary to make repairs to or changes in its plant, transmission or distribution systems or other property.

- 9. <u>Character of Service</u>. The Company's supply of natural gas is received principally from other gas suppliers. The heating value and specific gravity of gases received may vary between delivery points from day to day. These variations are beyond the control of the Company, which can only dispatch the gases received.
- 10. <u>Service Not to be Disturbed</u>. No customer shall attach or use any appliance which may result in the injection of air, water, or other foreign matter into the Company's lines; and, without prior approval from the Company, no customer shall attach or use any appliance which will increase or

Issued: September 18, 2007

Effective: October 10, 2007

Filed in accordance with the October 10, 2007 Finding and Order of the Commission in Case No. 07-1026-GA-ATA.

decrease the pressure in the Company's lines intermittently to such extent as to interfere with continuous service to other customers.

- 11. No Customer Shall Sell to Another. The customer shall not supply or sell gas for use in any location or by any person other than that specified in the application for service.
- 12. Access to Premises. The Company and its authorized employees shall have access at all reasonable times to its facilities and at all of the premises in which gas supplied by the Company is used or is to be used. The Company's employees and agents seeking access to the customer's or landlord's premises shall, upon request, identify himself/herself, provide company photo and state the reasons for visit.
- 13. <u>Customer's Responsibility</u>. The customer assumes all responsibility for property owned by the customer on customer's side of the point of delivery, which will be the outlet side of the service line connection at the Company's line, for the service supplied or taken, as well as for the installation and appliances used in connection therewith, and will save Company harmless from and against all claims for injury or damage to persons or property occasioned by or in any way resulting from such service or the use thereof on customer's side of the point of delivery.
- 14. Right-of-Way and Line. The customer, without reimbursement, will make or procure conveyance to Company of right-of-way and installed lines satisfactory to it across property between Company's lines and the customer's property at the location where service is to be furnished, including property owned or controlled by the customer for Company's distribution mains, extensions thereof, or appurtenances necessary for or incidental to the supplying of service to the customer.
- 15. <u>Charges and Payment for Temporary Service</u>. In addition to regular payments for gas used, the customer shall pay the cost for all material, labor, and other necessary expense incurred by the Company in supplying gas service to the customer at his request for any temporary purpose or use.
- 16. <u>Customer Indebted to Company</u>. Subject to the requirements of Chapter 4901:1-17, OAC, service will not be supplied to any premises if at the time of application for service the applicant is indebted to Company for any service previously supplied at the same or other premises, until payment of such indebtedness or other arrangement satisfactory to the Company shall have been made.

Issued: September 18, 2007

Effective: October 10, 2007

Filed in accordance with the October 10, 2007 Finding and Order of the Commission in Case No. 07-1026-GA-ATA.

17. <u>Customer Shall Satisfactorily Secure Account.</u> Subject to the requirements of Section 4933.17, ORC, and Chapter 4901:1-17, OAC, the Company may require a customer satisfactorily to secure a new account unless other arrangements are made. A deposit of one-twelfth of the estimated charges for the ensuing twelve months plus 30% of the monthly estimated charge shall be requested at commencement of service.

With respect to small commercial customers, the Company shall establish equitable and non-discriminatory written procedures to determine creditworthiness. Upon request, the Company shall provide small commercial customers with their credit history with the Company, a copy of Rule 4901:1-13-08, OAC, the Commission's website, and local, toll-free and TDD/TTY numbers of the Commission's consumer hotline.

The Company may require a cash deposit of a small commercial customer. If so, it shall give the reason for its decision, options available to establish credit, and may allow the customer to contest the Company's decision and show creditworthiness, raise concerns with the Commission and its staff, and shall provide the customer with the Commission's website and local toll-free and TDD/TTY number of the Commission's call center.

Upon acceptance of the deposit, the Company shall furnish a receipt showing the name of the customer, the address of the premises, the billing address, a statement as to the interest rate to be paid, the length of time the deposit will be held in order to qualify for interest, and the conditions for refunding the deposits.

- 18. Right to Shut Off Gas. After reasonable notice, the Company shall have the right to discontinue service and the right to disconnect and remove from the premises of any consumer the meter and any other property belonging to the Company for any of the following reasons or purposes:
 - (1) Refusing access.
 - (2) Non-payment of bills for gas or transportation, when due.
 - (3) Failure to furnish or maintain required security;
 - (4) Non-use of gas or transportation service;
 - (5) Theft of service, tampering of property, or fraudulent representation or practice;
 - (6) Whenever deemed necessary by the Company for safety reasons;
 - (7) Violation of any of these Rules and Regulations, any Service Agreement, or the General Terms and Conditions applicable to any such agreement;
 - (8) Customer request;

Issued: September 18, 2007

Effective: October 10, 2007

Filed in accordance with the October 10, 2007 Finding and Order of the Commission in Case No. 07-1026-GA-ATA.

- (9) Customer vacates premises;
- (10) When a safety hazard or emergency may threaten the health and safety of others or other property;
- (11) When the use of gas adversely affects the service of others;
- (12) Violation of law;
- (13) Failure to comply with a contract or tariff;

For residential customers, such rights shall be subject to the requirements of Chapter 4901:1-18, OAC. For small commercial customers, such right shall be subject to the requirements of Rule 4901:1-13-08(C), OAC.

Before disconnecting small commercial customers, the Company shall give the small commercial customer written notice, not less than 5 business days after the postmark date, before services is disconnected in accordance with the provisions of Rule 4901:1-13-08(D), OAC.

The Company shall follow the provisions of Rule 4901:1-13-09, OAC in the event of disconnection of service for tampering or unauthorized reconnection or for disconnection of service for fraudulent practice.

- 19. Change of Address of Customer. When the customer changes address, the customer shall give oral notice, followed within three (3) days by written notice, thereof to Company prior to the date of change. The customer is responsible for all service supplied to the vacated premises until such notice has been received and Company has had a reasonable time, but not less than three (3) days to discontinue service.
- 20. <u>Information Relative to Service</u>. Information relative to the service that will be supplied at a given location should be obtained from the Company. Information given orally or over the telephone shall be subject to confirmation by these Rules and Regulations and the written communications of the company.
- 21. Reconnection of Service. The Company will follow the provisions of Chapter 4901:1-18 for reconnection of service for residential customers. Unless a small commercial customer requests or agrees otherwise, the Company shall reconnect service by the close of the following regular working day after it receives full amount in arrears for which service was disconnected and receives any deposit required and any tariffed charges, and agrees with the customer on a deferred payment plan and already received a payment (if required under the plan) as well as any required deposit or tariff charges,

Issued: September 18, 2007

Effective: October 10, 2007

Filed in accordance with the October 10, 2007 Finding and Order of the Commission in Case No. 07-1026-GA-ATA.

or the customer establishes that the conditions that warranted disconnection of service have been eliminated. Before a small commercial customer is reconnected, the Company may not require such customer to pay any amount owed but not yet past due or require such customer to pay any amount owed or overdue on other small commercial accounts where the customer has multiple small commercial accounts.

- 22. Complaints and Complaint Handling Procedures. The Company will make a good faith effort to settle unresolved disputes. It will provide a status report within three business days of receipt to the consumer and to the Commission Staff. If the investigation is not completed within ten days, the Company shall provide status reports to update the customer/consumer or update the customer/consumer and Commission Staff when investigating a complaint at five business day intervals. The Company shall inform the customer/consumer and Commission Staff of the results of the investigation either orally or in writing no later than five business days after the completion of the investigation. If requested, the final report may be reduced to writing. If the customer/consumer disputes the Company's report, the Company shall inform the consumer/customer that the Commission Staff is available to mediate complaints and the Company will provide contact information.
- 23. Records and Accounts. The Company shall maintain and retain records consistent with Rules 4901:1-13-03 and Appendix A to Rule 4901:1-9-06, OAC. The company shall keep its books and accounts and records in accordance with the Uniform System of Accounts as required by the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio pursuant to Rule 4901:1-13-13, OAC.

SECTION II - METERING AND BILLING

- 24. Quantity of Gas Delivered by Meter. Gas will be measured by a volumetric or thermal meter installed by the Company, which shall be and remain the property of the Company. Subject to certain exceptions, enumerated below, consumption shall be determined on the basis of the meter registration and bills shall reflect the consumption so registered. Any mistake in reading the registration, however, shall not affect the liability for gas consumed as determined by a corrected reading of the registration. A correction billing based upon discovery of a prior error shall be honored by the customer.
- 25. <u>Unit of Measurement</u>. The unit of measurement shall be either that quantity of gas which will occupy one (1) cubic foot at a pressure base of fourteen and seventy-three hundredths (14.73) pounds per square inch absolute (thirty [30] inches of mercury), a temperature base of sixty (60) degrees Fahrenheit, (five hundred twenty [520] degrees absolute), and without adjustment for water vapor

Issued: September 18, 2007

Effective: October 10, 2007

Filed in accordance with the October 10, 2007 Finding and Order of the Commission in Case No. 07-1026-GA-ATA.

content. To determine the volume of gas delivered, factors such as those required for pressure, temperature, and specific gravity and deviation from Boyle's law, shall be applied; or one million British thermal units of heat as determined by an accurate device.

- 26. <u>Non-metered Service</u>. Without prejudice to its providing metered service, where warranted, the Company may provide gas light service on a non-metered basis, using for billing purposes the approximate average consumption of such appliance at the Company's current applicable rate.
- quantity of gas consumed and render a bill for such quantity. All estimated bills shall at some time be followed by a billing based upon a meter reading. The Company shall obtain actual readings of its customer meters at least once every twelve months as well as at the initiation of service and the termination of service. If the Company fails to read a residential or small commercial customer's meter for any reason for any twelve month period and the Company has underestimated the customer's usage, the Company may only bill the customer for the difference between the estimated usage and actual usage under the terms of Section 4933.28, Revised Code, based upon the appropriate rates in effect at the time the natural gas was used. If the Company fails to read a residential or small commercial customer's meter for any twelve month period and the Company has overestimated the customer's usage, the Company shall credit such customer for the overestimated usage at the appropriate rate in effect at the time the natural gas was used.

A customer may request an actual meter read, without charge, if the customer's usage has been estimated for more than two of the immediately preceding billing cycles consecutively or if the customer has reasonable grounds to believe that the meter is malfunctioning. The customer also has the ability to obtain a meter read prior to transferring service to a new retail natural gas supplier or governmental aggregator.

If the Company has read the meter within the immediately preceding 70 days it shall inform the customer, when the customer contacts the Company to initiate or terminate service, of the customer's right to have an actual meter read at no charge to the customer. In a landlord/tenant relationship where neither the Company nor the customer/tenant has access to the meter, the Company shall give notice by mail to both the landlord, when the address is available, and the tenant summarizing its inability to obtain access to the meter.

Issued: September 18, 2007

Effective: October 10, 2007

Filed in accordance with the October 10, 2007 Finding and Order of the Commission in Case No. 07-1026-GA-ATA.

TO SECURE SECTION OF THE SECTION OF

P.U.C.O. No. 1

- 28. <u>Correct Meter</u>. A meter registering between 3% fast and 3% slow shall be deemed for all purposes to be registering correctly. A meter registering incorrectly shall be repaired or replaced by the Company at its expense.
- 29. <u>Incorrect Meter Readings</u>. During any period that incorrect registration can be established, the meter readings and bills based thereon shall be adjusted by the Company on the basis of all available information concerning the use of gas by the customer. If, as a result of such adjustment, overpayments or underpayments are shown to have occurred, the Company shall reimburse the customer in the amount of such overpayment; and, subject to the requirements of Section 4933.28, ORC, the customer shall pay the Company the amount of such underpayments. The Company shall continue to supply gas to the customer, and the customer shall continue to pay the amounts billed pending the adjustment.
- 30. Meter Test. Metering accuracy shall be the responsibility of the Company. The Company shall test the meter at the request of the customer using the method prescribed by the Commission. The meter will be removed from the customer's premise and tested by an outside vendor. If the meter is found to be operating within accepted tolerances (plus or minus 3%), the customer shall pay the meter test fee charged by the Company. The date of re-inspection shall be stamped on the meter. If the meter was not operating within accepted tolerances, there shall be no charge for the test or removal. This charge shall not be assessed for the first such test performed in any 36-month period. This section does not apply in the event there has been either tampering or an unauthorized reconnection of the meter or related equipment during the subject period of time.
- 31. <u>Billing Periods</u>. Bills ordinarily are rendered regularly at monthly intervals. Non-receipt of bills by the customer does not release or diminish the obligation of the customer with respect to payment thereof. Bills are due 25 days from the date of the postmark. Bills shall contain the information required by Rule 4901:1-13-11, OAC.

Meters are ordinarily read at monthly intervals.

32. Payment of Bills. Bills may be paid by the customer at any office of the Company during its regular office hours, to any one of the Company's authorized collecting agents during the regular office hours of such agent, or by first-class mail addressed to the Company address shown on the bill. Any remittance received by the Company by first-class mail bearing U.S. Postal Office

Issued: September 18, 2007

Effective: October 10, 2007

Filed in accordance with the October 10, 2007 Finding and Order of the Commission in Case No. 07-1026-GA-ATA.

cancellation date corresponding with or previous to the last date of the net payment period will be accepted by the Company as within the net payment period. Upon request, the Company will provide an updated list of ways to pay bills.

- 33. Change in Financial Status of Customer. When the customer vacates the premises or becomes bankrupt, when a receiver, trustee, guardian, or conservator is appointed for the assets of the customer, or when the customer makes assignment for the benefit of creditors, the Company shall have the following rights: at the option of the Company, and after reasonable notice, the right to shut off the gas and to remove its property from the customer's premises; and the further right, independent of or concurrent with the right to shut off, to demand immediate payment for all gas theretofore delivered to the customer and not paid for, which amount shall become due and payable immediately upon such demand. For residential customers, such rights shall be subject to the requirements of Chapter 4901:1-18, OAC.
- 34. <u>Service Lines</u>. The general term "service line" is commonly used to designate the complete line or connection between the Company's line and the customer's location, up to and including the meter connection at the customer's location. It consists of two distinct parts, (a) the service line connection, and (b) the customer service line.

(a) Service Line Connection

The service line connection consists of the connection of the customer service line at the Company's line. This connection shall be made by the Company or its representative without cost to the customer, and it shall remain the property of the Company. It may include a valve for stopping the flow of any gas into the customer service line.

(b) Customer Service Line

The customer service line consists of the pipe from the service line connection to and including the meter connection. The customer's service line shall be installed at the customer's expense, and any part of it not contained within the customer's property at the location where service is to be furnished shall be conveyed to the Company and remain the property of the Company in accordance with Rule 10. The Company shall have the right to prescribe the specifications, size, location and termination points of the customer's service line. The customer shall remain liable for maintenance of, for imperfections in or for damage, injury or loss resulting, directly or indirectly, from the escape of gas from that part of the customer service line contained within the customer's property.

Issued: September 18, 2007

Effective: October 10, 2007

Filed in accordance with the October 10, 2007 Finding and Order of the Commission in Case No. 07-1026-GA-ATA.

35. <u>Pressure Regulators</u>. Where service is provided from low pressure lines, the Company shall furnish the necessary pressure regulator or regulators, which regulator or regulators shall remain the property of the Company.

The customer shall install and maintain, at his expense, substantial housing acceptable to the Company in size and design for the regulator or regulators and the meter in order to protect them from the weather and molestation.

- If it becomes necessary to construct, operate, and maintain a heater to maintain satisfactory operation of the regulator or regulators, the gas used in such heater shall be at the expense of the customer and shall be taken from the outlet side of the meter serving the customer.
- 36. Meter Furnished. The Company will furnish each customer with a meter of such size and type as the Company may determine will adequately serve the property of the Company, and the Company shall have the right to replace it as the Company may deem it necessary.
- 37. Meter Location. The Company shall determine the location of the meter, which shall ordinarily be outside of any enclosed building and shall be accessible to the Company without the necessity of customer presence or approval.

When changes in building or arrangements therein render the meter inaccessible or exposed to hazards, the Company may require the customer, at the customer's expense, to relocate the meter setting together with any portion of the customer's service line necessary to accomplish such relocation.

- 38. Only Company Can Connect Meter. The owner or customer shall not permit anyone who is not an authorized agent of the Company to connect or disconnect the Company's meters, regulators or gauges or in any way alter or interfere with the Company's meter, regulators or gauges.
- 39. <u>Customer Piping</u>. The customer shall install, own and maintain, at the customer's expense, the customer piping from the outlet of the meter to gas burning equipment.
- 40. Appliances. The customer shall install and maintain all gas burning equipment at the Customer's expense.

Issued: September 18, 2007

Effective: October 10, 2007

Filed in accordance with the October 10, 2007 Finding and Order of the Commission in Case No. 07-1026-GA-ATA.

P.U.C.O. No. 1

41. <u>Standards for Customer's Property</u>. The customer's service line, customer piping, fittings, valves, connections, equipment venting and all associated equipment shall be installed with materials and workmanship which meet the reasonable requirements of the Company and shall be subject to inspection or test by the Company. The Company shall have no obligation to establish service until after such requirements of the Company with respect to the facilities in place at the time of the test.

The first inspection or test at any premises, including both service lines and customer piping, shall be without charge. In the case of leak, error, patent defect or other unsatisfactory condition resulting in the disapproval of the line or piping by the Company, the necessary correction shall be made at the customer's expense; and then the lines and piping will be inspected and tested again by the Company. Each additional inspection and test, when required after correction, shall be subject to a charge covering the cost thereof.

- 42. <u>Discontinuance of Supply on Notice of Defect in Customer's Property</u>. If the customer's service line, customer piping, pressure regulators, fittings, valves, connections, equipment, venting and any other associated equipment on a customer's premises are defective or in such condition as to constitute a hazard, the Company, upon notice to it of such defect or condition and reasonable notice to the customer, may discontinue the supply of gas to such customer until such defect or condition has been rectified by the customer in compliance with the reasonable requirements of the Company.
- 43. No Responsibility for Material or Workmanship. The Company is not responsible for maintenance of, or any imperfect material or defective or faulty workmanship in, the customer's service line, customer piping, pressure regulators, fittings, valves, connections, equipment, venting and any other associated equipment and is not responsible for any loss or damage arising from inadequate or improper maintenance or from imperfect material or defective or faulty workmanship.
- 44. <u>Inspection of Altered Piping</u>. It shall be the duty of the customer to notify the Company promptly of any additions, changes, alterations, remodeling or reconstruction affecting gas piping on the customer's premises.

SECTION III - GENERAL

45. <u>Subject to PUCO Rules and Regulations</u>. These Rules and Regulations are subject to and include as part thereof all orders, rules and regulations applicable to the Company from time to time issued or established by the Commission under its powers.

Issued: September 18, 2007

Effective: October 10, 2007

Filed in accordance with the October 10, 2007 Finding and Order of the Commission in Case No. 07-1026-GA-ATA.

- 46. <u>Amendments</u>. The Company reserves the right to modify, alter or amend the foregoing Rules and Regulations and to make such further and other rule and regulations as experience may suggest as the Company may deem necessary or convenient in the conduct of its business, and as the Commission may approve.
- 47. Consumer Safeguards. The Company shall maintain a listing including the 24-hour emergency number in each local telephone service provider's directory operating in the Company's service territory. The Company shall not commit any unfair or deceptive acts or practices in connection with the promotion or provision of service. The Company shall only disclose a customer's account number or social security number without the customer's written consent for natural gas company credit evaluation, collections, and/or credit reporting or pursuant to a court order or subpoena. Upon customer request, the Company shall timely provide twelve months of a customer's usage history and twenty-four months of a customer's payment history to the customer.
- 48. Written Summary Information. The Company shall provide to new customers and to existing customers who request it, a written summary information dealing with who to contact concerning different rights and responsibilities. Pursuant to Rule 4901:1-13-06, OAC, this written summary information is contained in an appendix to this tariff.

SECTION IV - GAS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

49. <u>Description of Service</u>. Applicable for gas service from existing distribution lines of Company having sufficient capacity therefore, to customers at one location who will guarantee payment of the minimum monthly charge for a term of twelve consecutive months. Company shall have the right to curtail deliveries of gas hereunder whenever and to the extent necessary in its sole judgment for the protection of service to its human needs customers. Company shall not be required to furnish gas service hereunder to any customer or applicant except by written application for gas service by the customer to Company.

50. Gas Distribution Rates and Charges.

Monthly Customer Charge

\$6.50 per meter per month charged to each customer regardless of the amount of gas if any, consumer during the month; provided,

Issued: September 18, 2007

Effective: October 10, 2007

Filed in accordance with the October 10, 2007 Finding and Order of the Commission in Case No. 07-1026-GA-ATA.

however, that the customer charge shall not be imposed in any month in which there is no consumption as a result of a voluntary request by the customer for the shut-off of the meter.

General Service Rate

A volumetric base rate of \$2.34 per MCF of gas delivered shall be charged to all general service customers.

Self-Help Arrangements

Nothing shall prevent the Company from entering into self-help arrangements with customers to provide for the transportation of gas owned by the customer to the customer's premises. All such special contracts must be filed and approved by the Commission.

- 51. Gas Cost Recovery ("GCR") Rate. In addition to the rates and charges set forth above and below, the Company shall also be entitled to recover the cost of obtaining gas it sells to its customers through a GCR rate, which shall comply, in all respects, with the rules governing GCR rates set forth in Chapter 4901:1-14, OAC, and with the Commission's Opinion and Order in Case Nos. 06-350-GA-CMR and 06-521-GA-GCR. Chapter 4901:1-14,OAC, is attached to this tariff as Attachment A.
- 52. GCR Over-Recovery Credit. The general service rate set forth in Paragraph 50 of Section IV shall be offset by a credit of \$0.20 per Mcf to effectuate the refund of certain past GCR over-recoveries in accordance with the Commission's Opinion and Order in Case No. 06-350-GA-CMR and 06-521-GA-GCR. This rider amount will decrease to \$0.00 when the total refund has been completed in accordance with the terms approved in the Commission's Opinion and Order in Case Nos. 06-350-GA-CMR and 06-521-GA-GCR.
- 53. Mcf Excise Tax Rider. In addition to all other rates and charges, all gas consumed shall be subject to an Mcf tax rider to provide for the recovery of the Company's excise tax liability under Section 5727.811, ORC.

Issued: May 22, 2009

Effective: September 30, 2009

Filed in accordance with the September 30, 2009 Finding and Order of the Commission in Case No. 09-439-GA-UEX.

A rate of \$.0411 per Mcf shall be applicable to all volumes delivered, except volumes statutorily exempted from the tax or to flex customers, to recover the tax on natural gas distribution pursuant to Section 5727.811, ORC.

Flex Customers

All bills rendered to a flex customer as defined by Section 5727.80(N), ORC, shall be adjusted to provide for recovery of the Mcf excise tax at the rate of \$.02 per Mcf on all volumes delivered.

54. <u>Gross Receipts Tax Rider</u>. In addition to all other rates and charges, amounts billed by the Company shall be subject to a rider at the Company's effective gross receipts tax rate to provide for the recovery of the Company's gross receipts tax liability under Section 5727.25, ORC.

The Gross Receipts Tax Rider is applicable to all charges billed by the Company, including miscellaneous charges and all applicable rider rates, except that this rider shall not be billed to those customers statutorily exempted from the payment of gross receipts taxes.

All bills rendered shall be adjusted to include the effect of the Ohio excise tax on gross receipts billings at a rate of 4.9032%.

- 55. <u>PIPP Cost Recovery Rider</u>. In addition to all other rates and charges, the Company shall be entitled to recover, through a rider, the cost associated with the PIPP program. Such rider is to be calculated and adjusted in accordance with the order of the Commission in Case No. 02-2297-GA-PIPP. Customers receiving service shall pay an additional amount per Mcf for the recovery of PIPP costs. The current PIPP charge is \$0.0293 per Mcf.
- 56. <u>Late Payment Charge</u>. If a bill payment is not received in the Company's offices or by the Company's authorized agent within 25 days of the date of the invoice, an additional amount of 5% of the unpaid balance will become due and payable as a part of the customer's total obligation. The Company will notify customers of the amount that will be due in the event the customer fails to make timely payment by utilizing a net/gross bill format. The late payment charge shall not be applicable to the unpaid balances of any customer enrolled in PIPP or a payment plan pursuant to Rule 4901:1-18-04, OAC.
- 57. <u>Returned Check Charge</u>. Where the customer's financial institution returns a customer's check for insufficient funds, the Company shall assess a return check charge of the lesser of

Issued: November 22, 2013

Effective: January 7, 2014

Filed under authority of the Commission in Case No. 13-2254-GA-PIP.

P.U.C.O. No. 1

\$25.00 or the amount actually charged the Company by its bank for dishonored checks. However, this charge will not be assessed if the customer establishes that the cause of the dishonored check was bank error.

- 58. Field Collection Fee. Where a Company employee is dispatched to a customer's premises to disconnect service for non-payment, the customer may avoid disconnection by paying the full amount owed. However, the Company may assess a \$15.00 field collection charge for accepting such payment. This charge may be assessed either at the time the delinquent amount is collected or on a subsequent bill.
- 59. Reconnection Charge. Where the Company has actually disconnected service to a customer premises, the Company may assess and collect a reconnection charge of \$40.00 as a condition for reconnecting service to said premises, regardless of the length of time the service was disconnected and regardless whether the disconnection was voluntary or involuntary. If service was disconnected as a result of unauthorized or fraudulent use by the customer, the Company may, in addition to the \$40.00 reconnection charge, also impose a charge to recover any actual expense incurred by the Company as a result of such unauthorized or fraudulent use, including an estimate of the cost of gas improperly used, prior to restoring service to said customer.
- 60. Service Tap Charge. Applicants applying for a new tap on the Company's system shall be assessed a service tap charge of \$500.00 for single family residences and \$1,000.00 for multifamily and commercial premises, or the actual cost of installing the new tap, whichever is less.
- 61. Meter Test Fee. The Company shall test the meter at the request of the customer using the method prescribed by the Commission. The meter will be removed from the customer's premise and tested by an outside vendor. If the meter is found to be operating within accepted tolerances (plus or minus the 3%), the customer shall pay the meter test fee of \$62.50 for such a test. The date of re-inspection shall be stamped on the meter. However, this charge will not be assessed if the meter was not operating within plus or minus three percent nor shall it be assessed if it is the first test performed in any 36-month period.
- 62. <u>Credit Check Processing Charge</u>. The Company may impose a charge of \$10.00 when making a credit check for a customer who applies to have service initiated.

Issued: September 18, 2007

Effective: October 10, 2007

Filed in accordance with the October 10, 2007 Finding and Order of the Commission in Case No. 07-1026-GA-ATA.

Glenwood Energy of Oxford, Inc.

Second Revised Sheet 19.1 Cancels First Revised Sheet 19.1

P.U.C.O. No. 1

62.1 <u>Uncollectible Expense Rider</u>. In addition to the above rates, a charge of \$0.0459 per Mcf will be applied to all gas consumed pursuant to this rate schedule to recover the cost associated with uncollectible accounts of those Customers subject to Uncollectible Expense Riders. The Company will file an application with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio requesting approval to change this charge if the Company determines that the annual uncollectible expense has increased or decreased by more than ten percent compared to the uncollectible expense experience during the annual period upon which the current charge is based.

Issued: September 5, 2013

Effective: September 30, 2013

Filed in accordance with the September 18, 2013 Finding and Order of the Commission in Case No. 13-310-GA-UEX.

SECTION V - TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

63. <u>Description of Service</u>. This service consists of delivery of customer-owned or supplied natural gas volumes injected by the customer into the Company's facilities, with no assurance of continued delivery of natural gas from general system supply in the event of interruption of the customer's supply.

64. Rate.

For all MCF transported/month

\$2.39/Mcf

This rate does not reflect any sale of gas from the Company to the customer, but are agreed transportation charges. In the event the rate of applicable taxes already included in the transportation service charge are increased or decreased, or new taxes applicable to the transportation of natural gas are imposed, the customer's rate shall be adjusted upward or downward to reflect such tax increases, tax decreases or new taxes.

The Company, at its sole discretion, may offer the transportation service specified above at rates that are downwardly flexible from the maximum rates above. Such reduced rates will be determined based on competitive services available to the customer and the Company's need to achieve load preservation or the economic recovery of costs of the Company.

- 65. New Facilities. Where necessary, and after the customer agrees, the Company will construct all additions, replacements or betterments of its facilities in order to accommodate the volumes of gas delivered to and by the Company on the customer's behalf; the Company will bill the customer for the cost thereof; and the customer agrees to pay such costs within 30 days after receipt of the Company's bill, or as the parties may otherwise agree. The Company shall own all or part of the customer's service line contained within the customer's property at the location where service is to be furnished.
- 66. Banking. The Company will not be required for any period of time to bank any gas that is delivered to the Company for the account of the customer and which is not consumed by the customer. In the event the customer uses in any billing period natural gas in excess of the customerowned or supplied volumes, the excess volumes shall be billed to the customer at the actual cost to the Company, not to exceed the then applicable rate for gas distribution service as provided in Section IV of these Rules and Regulations.

Issued: September 18, 2007

Effective: October 10, 2007

Filed in accordance with the October 10, 2007 Finding and Order of the Commission in Case No. 07-1026-GA-ATA.

- 67. Late Payment Charge. If a bill payment is not received in the Company's offices or by the Company's authorized agent within 25 days of the date of the invoice, an additional amount of 5% of the unpaid balance will become due and payable as a part of the customer's total obligation. The Company will notify customers of the amount that will be due in the event the customer fails to make timely payment by utilizing a net/gross billing format.
- of the Company's gas distribution facilities in all territory where the Company's distribution facilities may be located, to customers who apply for gas service under the terms and conditions stated herein, and subject to the Company's utility service obligations to its distribution customers, to law, to the applicable Rules, Regulations and Rates filed by the Company from time to time with the Commission and any subsequent revision thereof, and to the lawful orders and applicable gas transportation guidelines of regulatory authorities having jurisdiction.
- 69. <u>Application</u>. The company shall not be required to furnish transportation service hereunder to any customer or applicant except by written application for transportation service between the Company and the customer setting forth the following information:
- (a) The name, address, and telephone number of the customer.
- (b) The nature and extent of any interest which each party to the arrangement holds in any other party to the arrangement, or in any public utility subject to the jurisdiction of the Commission.
- (c) The location of the intended points of delivery to the customer.
- (d) Minimum and maximum volumes and nominating procedures for transportation service.
- 70. <u>Title to Gas</u>. The customer warrants the title to the gas delivered to the Company and covenants and agrees to indemnify the Company for and save it harmless from all suits, actions, debts, accounts, damages, costs, losses and expenses arising from or attributable to the adverse claims of any and all other persons or parties to such gas.

Issued: September 18, 2007

Effective: October 10, 2007

Filed in accordance with the October 10, 2007 Finding and Order of the Commission in Case No. 07-1026-GA-ATA.

ORDINANCE NO. 3146

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC., AN OHIO CORPORATION, ITS SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, A FRANCHISE FOR A PERIOD OF TWENTY-FIVE YEARS TO ENTER UPON THE STREETS, AVENUES, ALLEYS, BRIDGES AND PUBLIC PLACES OF THE CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO AS THE SAME MAY NOW EXIST OR MAY HEREAFTER BE EXPANDED, AND THEREIN TO LAY, RELAY, EXTEND, MAINTAIN AND OPERATE A SYSTEM OF PIPES, VALVES AND OTHER EQUIPMENT AND APPURTENANCES FOR THE DISTRIBUTION OF GAS; AND TO DISTRIBUTE AND SELL GAS TO THE CITY AND TO THE PUBLIC FOR HEAT, FUEL OR ANY OTHER PURPOSE; AND TO GENERATE AND MAINTAIN A GAS PLANT, STORAGE FACILITIES AND VAPORIZING OR CONTROL STATIONS FOR GAS; AND MAKING RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING THE MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION OF THE SYSTEM AND PROVIDING PENALTIES FOR THEIR VIOLATION.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OXFORD, BUTLER COUNTY, STATE OF OHIO, THAT:

SECTION 1: The following definitions shall apply in the interpretation and enforcement of this ordinance unless the context clearly shows that a different meaning is intended:

"City" shall mean the City of Oxford, Ohio, as it now exists or may from time to time be expanded by annexation or otherwise.

"Company" shall mean Glenwood Energy of Oxford, Inc., its successors and assigns.

"Plant" shall mean all of the pipes, mains, conduits, valves, curb boxes, manholes, and all other proper and necessary appliances, devices, construction and facilities, whether located upon private property or in private ways or in public ways for transmitting, distributing and supplying gas to the City and its inhabitants.

"Public Ways" shall mean public streets, alleys, lanes, boulevards, and places open to the public for pedestrian or vehicular traffic, as the same may now exist or may from time to time be expanded.

"Gas" shall mean any vaporized fuel transported or supplied to consumers by a gas or natural gas company, including, but not limited to natural gas, synthetic gas, liquefied natural gas, propane, or any combination thereof.

A franchise with the rights and privileges SECTION 2: herein provided is hereby granted to the company, its successors and assigns, for a period of twenty-five years from and after the date provided in Section 8 hereof and entitles the company to enter upon the streets, avenues, alleys, bridges, public ways, land and places within the corporate limits of the City, as the same may now exist or may hereafter be expanded, and to lay, relay, extend, maintain, and operate a system of pipes, valves and other equipment and appurtenances and to distribute and sell therefrom, gas to the City and its inhabitants for heat, power or any other purpose, and to operate and maintain within the City, a works or Plant for the storage, conversion and control of gas. This grant is not to be construed as affecting the City's rate making powers. The Company agrees that it shall assess no charges of any nature for services to customers within the City without the express authorization of the Council of the City of Oxford or the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

SECTION 3: The Company, at its expense, shall perform all refilling, puddling or tamping, paving and repaving or any similar repair work made necessary as a result of construction, installation, operation, abandonment or repair of its Plant in public ways. Such work shall be performed under the direction and to the satisfaction of the City. If any such work performed by the Company proves to be unsatisfactory to the City, in its sole discretion, it shall give notice to the Company and require repair thereof by the Company.

In the construction, installation, maintenance, operation, abandonment or repair of any if its Plant, the Company shall exercise reasonable care and shall comply with all the regulations now existing or which may hereafter be enacted by the City relating thereto, and shall be liable for any damage that may arise by reason of its failure to use reasonable care and/or to comply with such regulations. The Company shall hold the City free and harmless from any and all claims or damages caused by, arising out of, or incident to such failure or negligence.

All work performed hereunder in and upon public ways shall be done in accordance with City regulations and requirements of the State of Ohio, and before excavations may be made for any new lines, pipes or structures of any nature in any public way, the Company shall submit to the City Engineer a plan of the lines, pipes or structures proposed, showing where the line, pipe or structure is to be laid, the size of the line, pipe or structure, and the depth at which the same are to be laid, the locations and dimensions of stops, branches, manholes and all other structures or appliances located in the public ways or places pertinent to or necessary for the proper maintenance and use of the lines,

pipes or structures, together with plans and other information as the City may require. Except as to the kind, sizes and dimensions of pipes, lines and stops, the plans shall be subject to approval of the City, and except in cases of emergency, no openings in public ways or public places may be made until after approval is given by the City, and a written authorization is obtained by the Company from the City Engineer.

TO THE PARTY OF THE PROPERTY O

All new lines, pipes or other structures of any kind or nature within the public right-of-way shall be laid and constructed at such locations and at reasonable depths as the City Engineer shall prescribe. This provision shall not apply to emergency repairs, but any emergency repair shall be reported to the City Engineer within seven days after the repair is made.

The Company shall, from time to time, make extensions to its gas distribution system to serve any applicant for service not on its system; provided however, that such an extension shall not be required of the Company if it exceeds 250 feet per customer, and provided further that an extension shall not be required of the Company unless and until each applicant for service requiring an extension shall sign a contract agreeing to provide piping and utilization equipment in the applicants residence or place of business.

The Company agrees to obtain and have in full SECTION 4: force and effect a liability insurance policy in the amount of five million dollars (\$5,000,000), provided that such a policy is readily obtainable at a reasonable price to the Ohio gas distribution industry. If such a policy is not readily obtainable at a reasonable price to the Ohio gas distribution industry, Company agrees to use its best efforts to obtain a policy representative of those readily obtainable by similarly situated gas companies at the time in question. The policy shall be a function of the Company's size and the relative cost of insurance, and shall be selected by Company's management utilizing its sole discretion. The policy shall be purchased by the Company from an insurance company authorized to do business in the State of Ohio and shall provide for the indemnification of the City against claims of negligence or injury to person, and/or property damage resulting from the negligent operation or maintenance of the Plant by the Company, its agents, or its employees. The Company agrees that, at the option of the City, the Company will defend in the name of the City, any action at law or suit in equity so arising. The City agrees to promptly furnish the Company with notice of all claims, suits, or other legal processes it receives which may affect the Company's interests.

SECTION 5: The Company shall supply meters (other than emergency standby meters) of standard type and manufacture and shall set them in position ready for gas service by the Company. The Company shall test each meter before setting it on the customer's line, and only those meters which are found accurate and in good working order may be installed. The Company shall retest meters in conformity with and upon the conditions set forth in Section 4933.09 of the Ohio Revised Code.

MERCHANICATION CONTROL OF THE PROPERTY OF THE

SECTION 6: In a rate-making negotiation, the value of this franchise shall be one dollar (\$1.00).

SECTION 7: Nothing in this ordinance shall be construed as granting to the Company an exclusive privilege or right.

SECTION 8: This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after its passage or upon its acceptance by the Company, whichever occurs later. Λ

MAYOR

ADOPTED: April 19, 2011

ATTEST:

CLERK OF OXFORD CITY COUNCIL

INTRODUCED BY: RICHARD KEEBLER

PREPARED BY: LAW(STAFF)

AN ORDINANCE TO REGULATE THE RATES AND CHARGES TO BE CHARGED AND COLLECTED AND THE SERVICES TO BE RENDERED BY GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC., ITS SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, FOR GAS AND GAS SERVICE FURNISHED TO ALL OF ITS CUSTOMERS WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF OXFORD DURING THE PERIOD ENDING MAY 31, 2014, AND REPEALING AND SUPERSEDING ORDINANCE NO. 2896, WHICH PREVIOUSLY REGULATED THE RATES, CHARGES, AND TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE OF THE OXFORD NATURAL GAS COMPANYAND, THEREAFTER, ITS SUCCESSOR GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC., AS MODIFIED BY THE SEPTEMBER 19, 2007 ORDER OF THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF OHIO IN ITS CASE NO. 06-350-GA-CMR.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OXFORD, BUTLER COUNTY, STATE OF OHIO, THAT:

SECTION 1: Rates, Charges, Rules, and Regulations. The rates and charges to be charged and collected and the rules and regulations governing services to be rendered by Glenwood Energy of Oxford, Inc., its successors and assigns, for gas and gas service furnished to all of its customers within the limits of the City of Oxford during the period ending May 31, 2014 shall be as set forth in this ordinance, which is hereby adopted pursuant to Article XVIII, Section 4 of the Ohio Constitution and Section 4909.34 of the Ohio Revised Code.

- 1. <u>Definitions.</u> The following definitions shall apply in the interpretation and enforcement of this ordinance unless the context clearly shows a different meaning is intended.
 - "City" means City of Oxford, Ohio.
 - "City Manager" means the city manager of the City of Oxford, Ohio.
 - "Company" means Glenwood Energy of Oxford, Inc., its successors and assigns.
 - "Council" means City Council of the City of Oxford, Ohio.
 - "Gas," "gas costs," and "cost of gas" have the same meanings as defined in Chapter 4901:1-14, OAC.
 - "GCR" means "gas cost recovery rate" as defined in Chapter 4901:1-14, OAC.
 - "Mcf" means one thousand cubic feet.
 - "OAC" means the Ohio Administrative Code.

"ORC" means the Ohio Revised Code.

"PIPP" means the "percent of income payment plan" as set forth in Chapter 4901:1-18, OAC.

"PUCO" means the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

"Self-Help Arrangement" has the same meaning as defined in Chapter 4901:1-14, OAC.

- 2. <u>Authorized Gas Distribution Rates and Charges.</u> Effective with bills rendered on or after June 1, 2011 through the bills for the monthly service period ending May 31, 2014, the Company shall charge the following rates and charges for delivering gas to its customers within the City limits:
 - a. <u>Monthly Customer Charge</u>. The Company shall charge a fixed monthly customer charge per meter per month to each customer regardless of the amount of gas if, any, consumed during the month; provided, however, that the customer charge shall not be imposed in any month in which there is no consumption as a result of a voluntary request by the customer for the shutoff of the meter.

For bills rendered on or after June 1, 2011 through the bills for the monthly service period ending May 31, 2012, the customer charge shall be \$7.00 per meter per month.

For bills rendered on or after June 1, 2012 through the bills for the monthly service period ending to May 31, 2013, the customer charge shall be \$7.50 per meter per month.

For bills rendered on or after June 1, 2013 through the bills for the monthly service period ending May 31, 2014 the customer charge shall be \$8.00 per meter per month.

- b. General Service Rate. For bills rendered on and after June 1, 2011 through the bills for the monthly service period ending May 31, 2014, a base distribution rate of \$2.81 per Mcf of gas delivered shall be charged to all general service customers.
- c. GCR Over-Recovery Credit. The general service rate set forth in Paragraph 2.b above shall be offset by a credit of \$0.20 per Mcf to effectuate the refund to customers of certain past GCR over-recoveries in accordance with the PUCO's September 19, 2007 Opinion and Order in its Case Nos. 06-350-GA-CMR and 06-521-GA-GCR. This credit will be eliminated when the total amount to be refunded has been returned to

customers in accordance with the terms and conditions specified in the PUCO's Opinion and Order.

- d. <u>Self-Help Arrangements</u>. Nothing contained in this ordinance shall prevent the Company from entering into self-help arrangements with customers to provide for the transportation of gas owned by the customer to the customer's premises; provided, however, that all such special contracts must be filed with and approved by the PUCO pursuant to Section 4905.31, ORC.
- Gas Cost Recovery Rate. In addition to the rates and charges for gas distribution 3. service set forth in Paragraph 2 above, the Company shall be entitled to recover the cost of obtaining the gas it sells to its customers through a GCR rate, which shall be subject to the jurisdiction of, and regulated by, the PUCO. As provided in Ordinance No. 2896, and in accordance with the PUCO's September 19, 2007 Opinion and Order in its Case Nos. 06-350-GA-CMR and 06-521-GA-GCR, the Company shall be authorized to include as an expected gas cost eligible for recovery though the GCR rate under Rule 4901:1-14-05, OAC, the amount of the actual, invoiced fixed charges imposed by Duke Energy Ohio in connection with the Company's use of the Duke Energy Ohio's transportation pipeline to transport gas from the Millville Station to the Company's Oxford city gate, up to a maximum of \$200,000 per year. Any such Duke Energy Ohio charges in excess of \$200,000 annually shall not be included by the Company as a cost of gas and shall not be proposed for recovery through the GCR rate. If the arrangement under which the Company transports gas from the Millville Station to the Company's city gate changes during the term of this ordinance, the Company may continue to include the amount of any actual, invoiced fixed charges or, if applicable, capital costs associated with this pipeline as an expected gas cost eligible for recovery through the GCR rate; provided, however that the amount proposed for recovery through the GCR rate shall be limited as necessary to fairly allocate the total charges or costs between the Company's GCR customers and other customers served through the pipeline on a relative throughput basis. The Company shall provide the City Manager with documentation supporting such charges or costs and the allocation methodology prior to including the cost as an expected gas cost in its GCR filings with the PUCO. The Company shall be subject to PUCO financial and management/ performance audits relating to its GCR calculations and its gas procurement practices as provided in Rule 4901:1-14-07, OAC.
- 4. Mcf Tax Rider. In addition to all other rates and charges set forth in this section, all gas consumed shall be subject to an Mcf tax rider to provide for the recovery of the Company's excise tax liability under Section 5727.811, ORC.
- 5. <u>Gross Receipts Tax Rider</u>. In addition to all other rates and charges set forth in this section, amounts billed by the Company shall be subject to a rider at the

Company's effective gross receipts tax rate to provide for the recovery of the Company's gross receipts tax liability under Section 5727.25, ORC.

- Tax Change Adjustments. If, during the term of this ordinance, a governmental 6. authority imposes a new tax, removes an existing tax, or increases or reduces the rate of an existing tax, the effect of which is to increase or reduce the annual tax liability of the Company, the Company shall be entitled to adjust the rates authorized in this section by implementing a new rider or, if applicable, eliminating or adjusting an existing rider, calculated so as to produce the pro forma annual revenues that will reflect the increase or decrease in the Company's annual tax liability. This provision does not apply to changes in the property tax rates or liability. A rider implemented or adjusted pursuant to this provision may be rounded to nearest one-quarter (\$0.0025) cent per Mcf. The Company shall provide written notice to the City Manager of its intent to implement any such new rider or adjust or eliminate an existing rider, and of the proposed effective date of such rate change, said notice to be provided no later than thirty (30) days prior to the proposed effective date of the rate change. The written notice shall include all documentation, information, and calculations relied on by the Company to support the proposed rate change. The City shall, upon notice to the Company, be entitled to inspect any Company books or records as may be necessary to verify the accuracy of the proposed change. No rate change as described herein shall become effective until the City Manager advises the Company that the City finds the proposed rate change to be a tax-related change of the type contemplated by this provision and that the proposed rate has been properly calculated; provided, however, if the City Manager does not so inform the Company within fourteen (14) days of receipt of the written notice, the rate change shall take effect automatically as of the proposed effective date.
 - 7. <u>PIPP Cost-Recovery Rider</u>. In addition to all other rates and charges set forth in this section, the Company shall be entitled to recover the costs associated with the PIPP program through a PIPP cost-recovery rider, which shall be subject to the jurisdiction of, and regulated by, the PUCO.
 - 8. <u>Uncollectible Expense Rider</u>: In addition to all other rates and charges set forth in this section, the Company shall be entitled to recover its uncollectible expense through an uncollectible expense rider, which shall be subject to the jurisdiction of, and regulated by, the PUCO.
 - 9. <u>Miscellaneous Charges</u>. In addition to all other rates and charges set forth in this section, the Company shall be entitled to impose the following charges:
 - a. <u>Late Payment Charge</u>. If a bill payment is not received in the Company's offices or by the Company's authorized agent within twenty-five (25) days of date of the invoice, an additional amount of one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the unpaid balance will be assessed on the customer's subsequent bill. This charge is not applicable to the unpaid account

balances of a customer enrolled in PIPP or a payment plan pursuant to Rule 4901:1-18-04, OAC.

- b. Returned Check Charge. Where the customer's financial institution returns a customer's check for insufficient funds, the Company shall assess a returned check charge of \$25.00; provided, however, that this charge will not be assessed if the customer establishes that the cause of the dishonored check was bank error.
- c. <u>Credit Check Processing Charge</u>. The Company may impose a charge of \$15.00 for a credit check on an applicant for service..
- d. <u>Field Collection Fee.</u> Where a Company employee is dispatched to a customer's premises to disconnect service for nonpayment, the customer may avoid disconnection by paying the full amount owed; provided, however, that the Company may assess a \$20.00 field collection charge for accepting such payment. This charge may be assessed either at the time the delinquent amount is collected or on a subsequent bill.
- Reconnection Charge. Where service to a premises has been e. disconnected by the Company by shutting off the meter, the Company may charge and collect a reconnection charge of \$50.00 as a condition of restoring service to the premises. The reconnection charge shall apply without regard to the length of time the service was disconnected, whether the disconnection was voluntary or involuntary, or whether the customer requesting reconnection is the same customer as the customer at the time service to the premises was disconnected. Upon a request by a customer for a voluntary disconnection of service to a premises, the Company shall advise the customer that the \$50.00 reconnection charge will apply if service is subsequently restored. If service was disconnected as a result of unauthorized or fraudulent use by the customer, the Company may impose, in addition to the \$50.00 reconnection charge, a charge to recover any actual expense incurred by the Company as a result of such unauthorized or fraudulent use, including an estimate of the cost of gas improperly used, prior to reconnecting service.
- f. New Service Tap Charge. Applicants applying for a new tap on the Company's system shall be assessed a new service tap charge of \$700.00 for single-family residences and \$1,200.00 for multi-family and commercial premises, or the actual cost of the installing the new tap, whichever is less. The Company shall provide documentation to an applicant for a new service tap showing the actual cost of installing the new tap in as a part of, on in conjunction with, the bill on which the charge is assessed.

- g. Meter Test Fee. Upon request by a customer, the Company shall test the accuracy of the meter by removing the meter and engaging a independent outside vendor to perform the test. The Company shall assess a fee of \$75.00 for the meter test; provided, however, that this fee will not be assessed if the meter is not found to be operating within accepted tolerances (plus or minus the 3%), nor shall it be assessed for the first meter test performed in any 36-month period.
- h. Stop Payment Fee Return of Security Deposit. Upon notification by a customer entitled to the return of all or part of a security deposit held by the Company pursuant to Rules 4901:1-17-04 through 4901:1-17-07, OAC, that the refund check has been lost or has not been received, the Company shall promptly notify its bank to stop payment on the check. If the check was lost by the customer, or was not received by the customer due to the customer's failure to notify the company of a change in the customer's mailing address, the company shall be entitled to assess a fee of \$34.50 for stopping payment on the refund check. The fee shall be deducted from the amount of the security deposit to be returned to the customer though the replacement check. No stop payment fee shall be assessed if the check was not received by the customer due to the Company's error.
- 9. Rules and Regulations. The Company shall be subject to the PUCO's Minimum Gas Service Standards set forth in Chapter 4901:1-13, OAC. The Company's rules and regulations governing the terms and conditions of service to customers within the corporate limits of the City shall be identical to the rules and regulations set forth in the Company's tariff filed with and approved by the PUCO, and any subsequent PUCO-approved amendments thereto; provided, however, that in the event of any conflict between the Company's PUCO-approved tariff and this ordinance (including, but not limited to, conflicts in the specified rates, charges, and fees), the terms of the ordinance shall apply.
- Notice of PUCO Filings: The Company shall serve a copy of all filings made with the PUCO upon the City Manager on the date the filing is made, including, without limitation, applications for approval of special contracts, all GCR-related filings, applications to adjust the PIPP cost-recovery rider, applications to adjust the uncollectible expense rider, applications to amend its PUCO tariff, and its annual reports to the PUCO. The Company shall provide a copy of any notice it receives from the PUCO initiating a financial and/or management/performance audit pursuant to Rule 4901:1-14-07, OAC, within three (3) business days after the notice is received.
- 11. Company Office and Information to be Made Available to Customers. The Company shall, by notice to the City Manager, designate a place or places within the City where customers may play bills, submit complaints, and inspect copies of documents relating to the service provided by the Company. The place or places

so designated may be changed at any time by written notice to the City Manager. The Company shall maintain copies of this ordinance, its PUCO-approved tariff, and all ORC statutes and OAC rules cited herein. Such documents shall be made available for inspection upon customer request.

- 12. <u>City Access to Company Financial Information</u>. The Company shall provide a copy of its annual financial statements to the City Manager within seven (7) days of availability. The financial statements shall include, without limitation, a balance sheet and statements of income, retained earnings, and cash flow.
- Rates and Charges Upon Expiration of Ordinance. In the event that the City has not enacted a new ordinance to replace and supersede this ordinance upon the expiration of its term, the Company shall continue to render service to customers within the corporate limits of the City pursuant to the terms of this ordinance until a new ordinance takes effect as provided by law or until such time as the PUCO establishes rate, charges, rules and regulations pursuant to Section 4909.18, ORC, or Section 4909.39, ORC. If the Company proposes to increase in its rates and charges following the expiration of this ordinance, the Company shall so advise the City Manager in writing, and shall provide documentation supporting any such proposed increase sufficiently in advance of the expiration of this ordinance to permit the City and the Company to attempt to negotiate a mutually acceptable ordinance prior to the Company filing a 4909.18, ORC, rate increase application with the PUCO.
- 14. <u>Customer Notice</u>. The Company shall provide written notice to its customers, by bill insert or separate mailing, of the increase in rates and charges authorized by this ordinance. The Company shall submit a copy of this notice to the City Manager or the City Manager's designee for review and approval prior to distributing the notice to its customers.

SECTION 2. Repeal of Prior Ordinance. Ordinance No. 2896 adopted on February 7, 2006 is hereby repealed and superseded by this ordinance.

SECTION 3. Company Acceptance of Ordinance. If the Company accepts this ordinance, the Company shall file a written acceptance of this ordinance with the Clerk of the City within thirty (30) days after its passage by Council and this ordinance shall constitute a contract between the City and the Company. If the Company does not accept this ordinance, the Company shall file a complaint and appeal from this ordinance with the PUCO pursuant to Section 4909.34, ORC, within (30) days after its passage. If the Company does not file a written acceptance of this ordinance with the Clerk of the City within thirty (30) days after its passage and does not file a complaint and appeal from this ordinance with the PUCO within (30) days after its passage by Council, the Company shall be deemed to have accepted this ordinance and shall be bound by its terms as if it had filed a written acceptance.

SECTION 4: Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect at the earliest time allowed by law.

Mayor

ADOPTED: April 19, 2011

ATTEST:

CIERK OF OXFORD CITY COUNCIL

INTRODUCED BY: RICHARD KEEBLER

PREPARED BY: LAW (STAFF)

ORDINANCE NO. 3267

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE NO. 3147 REGULATING THE RATES AND CHARGES TO BE CHARGED AND COLLECTED AND THE SERVICES TO BE RENDERED BY GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC., ITS SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, FOR GAS AND GAS SERVICE FURNISHED TO ALL OF ITS CUSTOMERS WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF OXFORD DURING THE PERIOD ENDING APRIL 30, 2019 BY AUTHORIZING GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC. TO IMPLEMENT A RIDER TO RECOVER THE COSTS OF MOVING A PIPELINE ASSOCIATED WITH THE U.S. 27 SOUTH IMPROVEMENT PROJECT.

SECTION I:

On April 19, 2011, Council of the City of Oxford adopted Ordinance No. 3147 regulating the rates and charges to be charged and collected by Glenwood Energy of Oxford, Inc. (the "Company") for natural gas service furnished to customers within the City of Oxford ("City") for the period ending May 31, 2014.

SECTION II:

On October 4, 2011, Council for the City of Oxford adopted Ordinance No 3157 amending Ordinance 3147 by adding Paragraph 9.i of Section 1 of said ordinance authorizing the Company to impose a fee for pressure testing required by the Minimum Gas Service Standards of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio ("PUCO") set forth in Chapter 4901:1-13, Ohio Administrative Code ("OAC") and providing in Section VIII thereof, that said amendment would have no effect on any other provisions of Ordinance No. 3147.

SECTION III:

As a result of the U.S. 27 South Improvement project the Company will be required to move a natural gas pipeline and will incur significant construction and installation costs (the "Project Costs") to comply with this mandate.

SECTION IV:

The Company has proposed that it be authorized to recover the Project Costs, including carrying costs, over a five-year period by implementing a separate rider on the rates established by Ordinance No. 3147, rather than including these costs in the revenue requirement used to determine the General Service Rate to be charged and collected after Ordinance 3147 is superseded or replaced by a new ordinance or as otherwise provided in Section 2,

Paragraph 13 of said ordinance.

SECTION V:

Although the recovery of the Project Costs over five years through a separate rider will result in customers paying more in the near term than if the Project Costs were recovered through the General Service Rate over the life of the facilities, the overall cost to customers will ultimately be lower because the five-year recovery will enable the Company to secure financing on more favorable terms and because the return on the investment will be based solely on the interest rate on the loan rather than on the Company's overall cost of

capital, as would be the case if the property were included in the revenue requirement upon which future General Service Rates are based.

SECTION VI:

Section 2 of Ordinance No. 3147 shall be amended by inserting the following provision as Paragraph 8A:

Pipeline Relocation Rider. In addition to all other rates and charges set forth in this section, the Company shall be entitled to implement a Pipeline Relocation Rider of \$0.2406 per Mcf of gas delivered to recover the actual costs, including the actual carrying costs, associated with moving its natural gas pipeline to accommodate the U.S. 27 South improvement project. The Pipeline Relocation Rider shall be effective with bills rendered on or after May 1, 2014 through the bills for the monthly service period ending April 30, 2019 or until the costs are fully recovered, whichever first occurs. This Pipeline Relocation Rider shall be the exclusive mechanism for recovery of the costs associated with moving the natural gas pipeline, and the Company shall not be entitled to include said costs in the revenue requirement used to determine rates and charges in any subsequent City rate ordinance or in any proceeding before the PUCO. Commencing in 2014, the reduction in annual pro forma tax expense resulting from the investment associated with moving the pipeline that would otherwise be recognized in determining the General Service Rate revenue requirement shall be quantified by the Company and shall be credited to customers through an adjustment to the Pipeline Relocation Rider rate, such adjustment to be effective with the bills for the monthly service period ending May 31 of the year following the tax year. The Company shall provide documentation to the City Manager showing the calculation of the credit no later than fifteen days prior to the date of the annual adjustment.

SECTION VII:

The amendment adopted by this ordinance shall have no effect on any other provision of Ordinance No. 3147, as amended by Ordinance No. 3157, all of which shall remain in force and effect.

SECTION VIII:

If the Company accepts this ordinance, the Company shall file a written acceptance of this ordinance with the Clerk of the City within thirty (30) days after its passage by Council and this ordinance shall constitute a contract between the City and the Company. If the Company does not accept this ordinance, the Company shall file a complaint and appeal from this ordinance with the PUCO pursuant to Section 4909.34, ORC, within (30) days after its passage. If the Company does not file a written acceptance of this ordinance with the Clerk of the City within thirty (30) days after its passage and does not file a complaint and appeal from this ordinance with the PUCO within (30) days after its passage by Council, the Company shall be deemed to have accepted this ordinance and shall be bound by its terms as if it had filed a written acceptance.

SECTION IX: This ordinance shall take effect at the earliest time allowed by law.

MAYOR

ADOPTED: March 18, 2014

ATTEST

CLERK OF OXFORD CITY COUNCIL

INTRODUCED BY: KEVIN MCKEEHAN

PREPARED BY: LAW (STAFF)

ATTACHMENT'A

Chapter 4901:1-14 Uniform Purchased Gas Adjustment

Deligitions 4901:1-14-01. Purpose and scope 4901:1-14-02 Applicability a è 4901:1-14-03 490<u>1-1**4-**04</u> Regard nis. Cas cost recovery nate 4901:1-14-05 ida Customer billing 4901:1-14-06 the 4901:1-14-07 Andibs Hearings 4901:1-14-08 Ver

4901:1-14-01 Definitions

For purposes of this chapter:

(A) "Cof" means a unit of gas equal to one issuedred cable feet.

(D) "Commission" means the public utilities commission of Date.

(C) "Commodity rate" means the portion of gas costs billed by a gas or natural gas company's suppliers (expressed in dollars and cents per Mef, dekatherm or BTU), which relates yolumetrically to the cost of the units of gas obtained by the company for suits to its customers. For purposes of the calculations required under rule 4901:14-03 of the Administrative Code, "commodity sate" means the saverage of the commodity rates expected to be in effect during the pecied the new gas cost securory rate will be in effect.

(D) "Customer" means each billing account of a gas or natural gas company.

(B) "Universit direct cost of production" in tank the production and gathering expenses associated with utility production volumes how old wells which are included in accounts 750 through 769 of the "Uniform System of Accounts for Class A and B Gas Utilities," and accounts 110, 711, 713, 714, 715, 716, 717, and 719 of the "Uniform System of Accounts for Class C and D Gas Utilities."

(F) "Demand and service charges" means the parties of gas costs billed by a gas or natural has contrant's suppliers or other service providers (expressed in dollars and cents per Mcf. dekatherm, or HTU), which relates to the cost of demand, capacity reservation or use, transportation, storage, balancing, gathering and other related services which are costs to the company of obtaining the gas that it sells prior to and including the physical delivery of the gas to the company's own system to the extent such charges are not included in the "commodily rate" as defined in paragraph (C) of this role, For purposes of the calculations required under rule 490i:1-14-05 of the Administrative Code, "demand and service charges" mean the average of

the domain charges expected to be in cifical during the pecied the new gra cost recovery rate will be in effect.

(G) "Especial gas cost (EGC)" means the weighted average cost of primary gas supplies, utility production from old wells, and includable propone expressed in iteliars and come per life; and determined in accordance with the appendix to rule 4901:1-14-35 of the Administrative Code.

(H) "Gas" means any vaporized fucl transported or supplied to measures by a gas or natural gas company, including, but not limited to, natural gas, synthetic gas, liquided natural gas, and property.

(f) "Gas company" and "natural gas company" have the meanings set forth in section 4905.03 of the Revised Code.

(1) "Gas costs" or "cost of gas," means the cost to a gas or attural gas company of obtaining the gas, which is sells to its customers. The cost of gas shall include demand, capacity, reservation or use, transportation, storage, balancing, gathering, and other related costs to the company for services registral or supplies provided by others prior to said including the physical delivery of the gas to the company. The cost of gas does not include the cost of utility storage otherwise recovered in base rates.

(K) "Gas cost recovery rate (GCR)" means the quarterip epidete, or other periodic update as approved by the Commission, of the gas cost adjustment determined in accordance with the appendix to rule 401:1-14-05 of the Administrative Code.

(i) "includable ges supplies" mesus primary ges supplies, includable propune, and mility production volumes.

(M) "Includable property" means propers used for peak sharing purposes, and property used for volumetric purposes at the end of a supply period to avoid monerary regulates.

(N) "Inrisdictional rater" means total historic, forecasted, and/or weather-normalized historic rates, less rates to outtomers under municipal ordinance rates, except rates under municipal ordinances which have adopted, by raterones on otherwise, rates enablished by the commission.

(0) "Mcr" means a next of gas equal to one thousand cubic feet.

(F) "New well" is either a well where drilling commenced after December 4, 1982, or an old well which is completed to a different pool after December 4, 1982.

(O) "Old well" is a well where drilling commenced before December 4, 1982.

ь п. 60

114

2115

lle.

5. 57

y

1

(R) "Pool" has the meaning sol forth in paragraph (A)(8) of rule 1501:9-1-01 of the Administrative Code.

- (S) "Primary gas supplies" means blateric, forecasted, and/or weather-normalized historic:
- (1) Supplies of patural gas or liquidied natural gas obtained from producers, interstate pipelines, brokers/marketers, or other suppliers;
- (2) Supplies of synthetic gas perchased under agreements approved by the commission ander section 4905.308 of the Revised Code, and other supplies of synthetic gas, except thort-term supplies, purchased under contracts approved by the commission;
- (3) Supplies of gas obtained from other gas or natural gas companies
 - (4) Supplies of gas, other than utility production volumes from old wells, obtained from Chio producens.
 - (5) Supplies of gas made available to a gas or natural gas company under self-belp antangement;
 - (6) Special purchases of natural gas not tackeded in short-term supplies; and
 - (7) Utility production volutines from new wills provided that such voluties are priced no higher than the price currently being paid by the utility to independent Ohio producers for gas from like wells.
 - (I) "Production unit con" resem the current direct cost of production expressed in dollars and conts per blef.
 - (1) "Purchased gas adjustment clause" has the meaning set firth in section 4905:302 of the Revised Code.
 - (V) "Reconciliation adjustment" means a positive or negative adjustment to future gis cost recovery rates undered by the commission parsuant to this chapter.
 - (W) "Supplier refund" means a schuld from an interstate pipeline company ordered by the federal energy regulatory committion, or from any other supplier or service provider, including interest where appropriate, where such refund is received as one hump-sam payment or credit.
 - (X) "Soft-holp arrangement" means an arrangement between a gas or natural gas company and a customer providing for the transportation of gas owned by the customer from the point of production to the point of consumption.
 - (V). "Shurt-term supplies" meson all special purchases of gas, to the extent that those purchases detrease the level of curtailment to any customes of class of customers, except special purchases approved by the cummission under section 4905.303 of the Rovisad Custo. For purposes of this chapter, a special purchase decreases custailment of this chapter, a special purchase decreases custailment of the class of customers if custailment of that class is reduced, maintained at the same level, or increased to a lesser dogment as a result of the special purchase.
 - (Z) "Special purchase" has the meaning set forth in section 4905.302 of the Revised Code.

(AA) "Synthetic gas" means gas formed from feedstacks other than natural gas, including but not limited to coal, oil, or hapliths.

(BB) "Intal sales" means all historic, forecarted, and/or meanist-normalized latitoric sales of includable gas supplies to retail outcomers. "Total males" does not include volumes transported to communers under self-help arrangement. For purposes of recovery of the balance adjustment, actual adjustment and reconciliation adjustment in tales, does not include sales to customers for which the reverse neignation rider applies.

(CC) "Unaccounted-for gat" means the difference between the measured volume of total gas supply, which
lackdess gas purchased, gas produced by the company said
gas received by the company on behalf di specific automsus for redelivery; and the measured volume of gas disposition, which includes gas billed or sedalivered to customers
and gas for company use. For the purpose of this role,
unaccounted-for gas should be calculated on an annual
batis for the twelve months ended August histy-limit of
each year, or such other date as the company may show to
be more appropriate for its system. The percentage of
maccounted-for gas should be calculated by taking the
volumes of unaccounted-for gas as specified above, divided
by the volume of total gas supply.

(DD) "Unit book cost" means the cost of total sales expressed in dollars and cents per Mcf as calculated using standard accounting methods acceptable to the commission and the gas or natural gas company's independent auditors submitting the certificate of accountability as required under paragraph (C) of sub-4901:1-14-07 of the Administrative Code.

(PH) "Utility production valences" means all volumes of ges, other than spothetic gas, produced by a gas or natural gus company, or by a subsidiary or affiliate of a gas or natural gus company, unless the rates or charges for such production are subject to the jurisdiction of the federal energy regulatory commission.

[hh] "Chilife storage, meens storage legities operated

and maintained by a gas or natural gas company, or by a subsidiary or affiliate of a gas or natural gas company, and the charges for such facilities are incorporated in commodity raves or monthly demand charges filed with or approved by the federal energy regislatory commission or by the commission, provided however that no gas or natural gas company shall relied charges for its own natural gas company shall relied charges for its own natural gas company shall relied charges for its own natural gas company shall relied charges for its own natural gas company shall relied charges for its own natural gas company shall relied charges for its own natural gas company shall relied charges for its own statistical gas facilities or service in its own gas cost recovery rate. History: 2005-06 OMR pant. #3 (4), off. 10-7-05; 1904-05 OMR pant. #3 (4), off. 10-7-05; 1904-05 OMR pant. #3 (4), off. 10-7-05; 1904-05 OMR 12-11-94; 1908-99 OMR 14-150 (4), off. 10-11-91; 1987-88 OMR 14-30 (4), off. 10-11-91; 1987-88 OMR 21 (4), off. 10-11-91; 1980-81 OMR 21 (4), off. 10-11-92; 1979-80 OMR 4-589 (A), off. 4-7-80; 1979-80 OMR 4-589 (A), off. 4-7-80;

BC 119.032 rate review deca(s): 11-30-08; 11-30-03; 11-30-98

RC 45 490

199

The purol **rchec** jutist chap desig Incur cach supp obds COULT #ions sales The proce audit cam πy³± 228 1 those HIST 1998

> RC45 RC46 RC46 RC46 RC46 Gd

7-1-

RC)

The catio COMI 4905 of 12 ing. Lishe Revi alath tiun XVI. Inga Ot of HIST 199# 71-9

OMI

RC 1

II-X

Cross Helecences

The state of the s

872 400 TAS TWITTOM on how through at costs of species has been at

4901:1-14-02 Purposs and scope

The purpose of this chapter is to establish a uniform purchased gas adjustment clariso to be included in the schedules of gas and natural gas companies subject to the jurisdiction of the commission. The provisions of this chapter establish a got over recovery process, which is designed to suparate the cost of gas from all other costs incurred by gas or natural gas companies, to provide for each company's recovery of the cost of its includable gas supplies from its customers by means of the quarterly update for other periodic update as approved by the commission) of the gas cost recovery tale and other provisions of this chapter and to balance the interest of retail sales enslowers with those of transportation customers. The provisions of this chapter also establish investigative procedures and proceedings, including periodic reports, audits, and hearings, to examine the arithmetic and accounting accounted of the 842 cours tellected in each custosthis firs cost teconeth tate said to review each continuits gas production and purchasing policies to the extent that those policies affect the gas cost recovery rate.

HISTORY: 2014-05 OMR pant. #2 (A), eff. 8-29-04; 1998-99 OMR 364 (RRD): 1979-84 OMR 4-539 (A), eff. 1-1-80; 1978-79 OMR 4-181 (E), eff. 10-21-78

RC 119.032 role series (4th(s): 12-30-08; 5-24-64; 11-30-03; 11-30-08

Cross References

RC 1805.04, Fower to regulate guides utilizes and sullrosing

RC 4901.05, Surpe of jude diction

RC 4501 tts, General supervision; safety impaction of gas physical

RC 4965.900. Limitations on percettrough of costs of special purchase of

RC 4904 304, Purchase by gas company of spatiatic natural gas form certain feedulose thanks

4901:1-1.4-03 Applicability

The provisions of this chapter shall apply to all gas and natural gas-companies subject to the jurisdiction of the commission except as provided in division (Cy(3) of section 4905302 of the Revised Code, with respect to all achadular of rates enablished or appeared by the commission, including, but not limited to rate schedules approved or established under section 4905.11, 4909.19, and 4969.39 of the Revised Code. The provitions of this chapter shall not apply to municipal ordinance rates established under section 743.26 or 4909.34 of the Revised Code or Article XVIII, Section 4 of the Ohio Canadianion, except in instances where a municipal ordinance adopts, by reference of otherwise, rates established by the commission.

HISTORY: 2004-05 OMR part. #2 (A), eff. 8-29-06; 1998-99 OMR 364 (RRD); 1991-92 OMR 376 (A), eff. 10-11-91; 1979-50 OMR (-530 (A), eff. 1-1-80; 1978-79 OMR 4-181 (E), eff. 19-21-78

RC 119.012 rule review denies: 11-30-08; 5-24-04; 11-36-03; 11-30-98

Cross References RC 490104, Form to replies public utilities and entroads RC 490105, Enga of jurisdiction

RC 4915.84 General experisions saling important of gas pipelines. RC 4915.812, Limitalions on pass-linpugh of 2011s of special purchase of

RC 450x 503, Furthers by gas company of motheric matural gas from cortain facilities, limits

4901:1-14-04 Reports

Hach gas or natural gas company endject to the provisions of this chapter shall like with the commission's decidering division quarterly gas cost sectivery reports. With comadiction approval, the gas or natural gas company may revise the expected gas cost component of the gas cost recovery report on a monthly basis. Unless otherwise dotarnined by the commission, the expected gas cost component and the commission's docksing division no later than fourteen days prior to the effective data of the gas cost recovery rate. The filing intertal for each seeds report shall be established by the commission. Each gas cost recovery report shall contain:

- (A) An undated gas cost recovery rate, determined in accordance with rule 4901:1-14-05 of the Administrative Code and its appendix;
- (B) The data and calculations used to determine the applaint grations recovery rates;
- (C) Where appropriate, notations indicating the tree of weather-isometized or furnessited sales volumes in the gas cost recovery report and/or updates;
- (D) The frequency of sevisions to the expected gas cost component, the effective dates and the dates such revisions will be filled with the commission; and
- (H) Such other information is the commission requires. HISTORY: 2001-01 OMR pam. #2 (A), eff. 8-29-04; 1998-92 OMR 364 (RRD); 1991-92 OMR 376 (A), eff. 10-11-91; 1979-30 OMR 4-230 (A), eff. 1-1-80; 1978-73 OMR 4-281 (E), eff. 10-21-78
 BC 119182 rele review app(s): 11-30-06; 5-34-94; 11-30-06;

Cross Aderences

N.C. 4805.04, Power to regulate public cellinies and entires in

F.C.4965 (0), Scope of heladiolog

11-30-98

RC 4905.06, Chestal separation substy important of apolisi partiest of RC 4905.06. Limitains as past-brough of object of apolisi partiest of ţ, :

NC 430270' kropre pà êm maitent og sin merre permis fra pour ochiere Preprièté gerre

4901:1-14-05 Gas cast recovery rate

- (A) The gas cost recovery rate equals;
- (1) The get or natural gas company's expected gas cost for the opcoming quarter, or other period as approved by the commission, purposes to paragraph (K) of rule 4901:1-14-01 of the Administrative Code, play or micros
- (2) The copplier refund and reconciliation adjustment, which reflects:



- (a) Refunds received from the gas or astural gas company's interstate pipoline suppliers or other suppliers or service providers plus ten per cent ensual interest; and
- (b) Adjustments ordered by the commission following bearings held pursuant to role 4901:1-14-08 of the Adminlatrative Code, plus ten per cent annual interest, plus or
- (3) The actual adjustment, which compensates for differences between the previous quarter's, or other commission-approved period's, expected gas cost and the actual cost of gas thiring that period, plus or thinus; and
- (4) The balance adjustment, which compensates for any under- or overcollections which have occurred as a result ni prior adjustmente, plus or minue.
- (B) The gas cost recovery rate shall be calculated on a companywhile basis, except as provided in paragraph (C) of this rule, in accordance with the appendix to this rule.
- (C) The commission may, upon the request of any party or upon its own initiative, permit the company to calculate different gas cost recovery rates for different geographical areas. In determining whether to do so, the commission thail consider:
 - (1) Whether the geographical areas involved are config-
 - (2) Whether the cost of obtaining gas for each of the geographical areas involved can be esparately identified;
 - (3) The manner in which the prographical areas involved have been treated in the past; and
 - (4) Such other factors is the commission considers appropriete. Propries.

 HISTORY: 2005-DA OMR pam. #3 (A), eff. 10-7-05;
 2004-05 OMR pam. #2 (A), eff. 8-29-04; 1998-99 OMR
 364 (RRD); 1993-94 OMR 1212 (A), eff. 2-11-24; 1991-92
 OMR 576 (A), eff. 10-11-01; 1987-83 OMR 1432 (A), eff.
 5-20-38; 1982-83 OMR 43 (A), eff. 7-24-32; 1980-81
 OMR 73 (A), eff. 7-2-80; 1979-30 OMR 4-550 (A), eff. 11-50; 1978-79 OMR 4-182 (E), eff. 10-21-78 RC 119.002 rule review data(s): 11-30-92; 5-24-94; 11-30-03; 11-30-98

Historical and Statutery Notes Ed. Note: Effective 1949-05, Appendix A is repetied.

Cross References RC 4005.502, Limitalians on pain-through all costs of special purchase of

4901:1-14-06 Customer billing

; ₹

(A) Unless otherwise ordered by the communication, the quarterly updated and cost recovery rate filed in accordance while rule 4901:1-14-04 of the Administrative Code shall become effective on or after the thirtieth day following the filling date or as otherwise established by the complision. Registars to the expected gas coal compo-nent must be filed no later than fourteen days pairs to the Bat cost necovery rate effective dute and such fevisions do not affect the effective date of the gas cost necessary rate. The new gas cost recovery rates may be applied to continuer accounts on a sorvice rendered or bills sendered basis,

A CONTRACTOR OF THE PARTY OF TH

at the option of the gas or canural gas company. The commission may at any time order a reconciliation adjustmont as a result of errors or erroneous reporting.

- (B) Hacept as provided in paragraph (C) of this rule, if the gas cost recovery rate changes during a customer's billing type and the gas or patteral gas company elects to bill on a service resultered basis, the gas or astural gas company shall apply a weighted average gat out recovery rate to its customer bills. The weighted average gas cost secovery tate shall be determined in accordance with the appendix to this rule.
- (C) If the gas cost recovery rate changes during a customer's billing cycle, and the gas or materal gas company elects to bill un a service-rendered bests, and it the customer's actual daily consumption is known by the gas or natural gas company, the company may, instead of applying a waighted average gus cost recovery rate, apply each 248 cost recovery rate which was effective during the billing cycle to the volumes actually consumed when that rate was
- (D) Each goe or natural gas company shall indicate on each customer bill:
- (1) The gas cost recovery rate expressed in dollars and cents per bled or Cel; and
- (2) The total charge attributable to the gaz cract recovery rate expressed in dollars and capta-

HISTORY: 2004-05 OMR part. #2 (A), eff 8-29-04; 1998-99 OMR MA4 (PRD); 1991-91 OMR 377 (A), eff. 10-11-91; 1979-80 CHAR 4-531 (A), of 1-1-80; 1978-79 CMR 4-182 (E), of 10-21-78 RC 119,002 rate noview disto(s): 11-30-08; 5-24-04; 11-30-03;

Historical and Statutory Notes

Bit Hose. The appendix to this rain, off. \$-29-04, is retentated only produces are generally scalinth on Weetley trible CD-BOLL Substitu-Appendicus and generally mellatile on Worldow article CD-ROM. Subsection at the world is comprisely majorate can from the inchinosome Legislative Service Communication, of the housing species.

Cross References

EC 450514, Person to regulate public willities and reflecate RC 4705.10, Scupe of parietics BC 4002 Dei Cheartist Mithertoppioni angell, forfanzgen og fan Lybe ya RC 2005.100, Limitations on pen-through of costs of special products RC 4905.305, Perchase by gas manpery of synthetic asimal gas from rectain facilities; had to

4901:1-14-07 Audits

11-30-58

(A) The commission thall conduct, or cause to be conducted, periodic financial and management/performance andits of each gas or natural gas company subject to the provisions of this chapter and division (C)(3) of section 4905 302 of the Revised Code. Unless otherwise ordered by the commission, the saddle shall be conducted aromally. Parcent as provided in paragraph (B) of this rule and division (C) of section 4905.302 of the Revised Cycle, and unless otherwise ordered by the commission, each sudit that be conducted by a qualified independent mediting fine selected according to paragraphs (C) and (D) of this Willy.

rule. The cost of each such audit shall be paid by the gas or statural gar company.

- (B) The commission may, upon the request of any party ' or upon its own initiative, conduct the audits required under this rule. In determining whether to do 20, the commission shall countries:
 - (1) The purposer of costomers served by the company;
 - (2) The cost of employing an independent auditor:
- (3) The availability of the commission staff to conduct the required audite, and
- (4) Such other factors as the commission considers sopropsiata.
- (C) Each independent auditor shall file, with the commission's certificate of accountability as described in the appendix to this rule. The certificate of accountability shall atlest to the accuracy of financial data pertaining to the period of the gas cost recovery rate activity designated by the commission and reference my export or deviations from the calculations prescribed within Chapter 4901:1-14 of the Administrative Codo. Pursuant to this rule, the independent auditor shall assure the commission that:
- (1) The costs reflected in the get or natural ges compaoy's gas cost receivery rates were properly incurred by the
- (2) The gas cost coursely raits were accurately computect pla que Est or d'agrang Sur combant.
- (3) The gas cost recovery rates were accutately applied to costomer bille and
- if the company milliond weather-normalized historic and/or forecasted volumes, the auditor shall worlfy that the comband gas seasonapp, abblica comp abbroway tpronfigors the sudd oction.
- (O) Each gas or instituted gas company, to designated by the commission, shall sugges an independent auditor and/or consulting from to conduct a management/performance audit of the company's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 4301:1-14 of the Administrative Code. The commission shall develop a request for proposal (RFP) designed to solicit responses for conducting a management/performance swells. The commission shall bave the sole responsibility for sending out and accepting all responses to the RFP and shall select the company's management/performance auditor for the designated audit period. The management/performance audit report shall identify and evaluate the specific organizational structure, management policies, procedures, and reasoning of the company's existing or proposed procurences strategy. The report thall also contain management recommendations based on an evaluation of the company's performance during the audit period postulating to these areas designated by the contralization. The maintegeneral performance made that! review any specific areas of investigation as designated by the commission and selected superis of the company's gas production and purchasing policies to secretain whather.
 - (1) Company purchasing policies were designed to meet objectives of the company's service requirements;

- (2) Procurement plenning is sufficient to ensure reliable service at optimal prices and is consistent with the company's long-term strategic supply plan submitted pursuant to paragraph (H) of rule 4901:5-7-92 or paragraph (H) of rule 4901-7-7-05 of the Administrative Code; and
- (3) The company has terlawed existing and potential supply sources.

HISTORY: 2004-05 OMR pum. #2 (A), cff. 8-29-04; 1998-69 OMR 364 (RRD); 1992-62 OMR 377 (A), cff. 10-11-91; 1987-88 OMR 314 (A), cff. 11-20-87; 1983-84 OMR 1047 (A), cff. 5-13-84; 1978-79 OMR 4-182 (E), cff. 10-21-74

EC 119.032 rule review date(s): \$1-30-08; \$-24-04; 11-30-09; 11-30-98

Ministrical and Sintatury Notes

Ed. Name The appendix to this rule, eth. \$-10-04, is netwered only, possibles us generally equivale on Wester motion CD-8006. Subscribe Appendicus see generally manifeld on Wantleby modes CII-MORE. Subscribe on who wish so obtain a copy may sequent one from the publisher, the Legislative Survice Communication, or the limited agency.

Cross References

RC 4905.64, Power to regulate public willises and satiroids

RC 4905 At , Scope of Junio Market

BC 456246' General substituted rayed probection of the Infagrace EC 490 90. Liminima on paratheough of costs of special purchase of

RC-4005.203, Panelkow dry gas ecosposity of qualicatic natural quadratus bestalis facilitisti, Builte .

4901:1-14-08 Hearings

- (A) At least platy days after the filing of each audit seport required under paragraph (C) of rule 4901:1-14-07 of the Administrative Code, the commission shall hold a public hearing to review:
- (1) The sinds findings, conclusions, and recommendstions, and
- (2) Such other mathers relating to the gas or natural gas company's ges out recovery takes as the commission considers appropriate.
- (B) The gas by relieved gas company shall demonstrate et its purchased get adjustment bearing that its gas cost recovery rates were fair, just, and reasonable and that its gas purchasing mactices and policies promote minimum prices comistent with an adequate supply of gas. The commission shall consider, to the extent applicable:
 - (1) The results of the management/performance audic
 - (2) The results of the financial andit;
- (3) Compliance by the gas or natural gas company with previous communica performance recommendations;
- (4) The efficiency of the gas or matural gas company's gas production policies and practices; and
- (5) Such other practices, policies, or factors as the com-mission considers appropriate.
- (C) The gas or natural gas company shall publish notice of the hearing required under paragraph (A) of this rule throughout its service area at least differen and not more than thirty days prior to the scheduled date of hearing by:

The second residence

1901:1-14-08 Udl	dien 202	20
(1) Display ad in a newspaper on accepance of general chaulation;	(2) Unreasonable or improdent gas production or pur- thising policies or practices;	tie
(2) Bill message on or bill insert included with the customer hills; or	(3) Unauconted for the above a reasonable level. It shall be presumed that unaccounted for gas above five per	(3 (3)
(3) Separate direct mailing to customers.	cent, calculated purrount to paragraph (CC) of rule 4501:1-14-01 of the Administrative Code, is unrescentise,	R
(D) At team stry they prior to the scheduled date of hearing, the gas or natural gas company shall file with facts, date, or information relating to its gas cost monvey	and the project shall be on the combant to know other-	Ać Ri
rates as the commission requires.	(4) Such other factors, policies, or practices as the com- mission considers appropriate.	RL.
(E) Following the concludes of the hearing the cam- mission shall itsue an appropriate order consistent:	HISTORY: 2005-86 OMR pam. #3 (A), aff. 10-7-05; 2004-65 OMR pam. #2 (A), aff. 8-19-84; 1998-99 CMR	4
(1) A summary of the sudii findings, conclusions, and recommendations; and	364 (RRI)); 1993-94 OMR 1212 (A), cft. 3-11-94; 1991-92 OMR 378 (A), cft. 10-11-91; 1987-88 OMR 1432 (A), cft.	St.
(2) Such other information or directives as the commutation condiders appropriate.	3-20,88; 1935-86 (MR 535 (A), cff. 11-14-85; 1978-79 OMR 4-135 (E), aff. 10-21-78 RC 119032 rule review debe(s): 11-30-06; 5-20-14; 11-80-05;	- 13 EH
(F) The commission may adjust the company's fature gas cost necessary rates by means of a secondistion adjust-	11-30-98	P
ment an a result of: (1) Encore or erroneous reporting:	MC 4505.702, Limiterious and Landshrough of votes of Aportal parchese of the	r

Westlaw.

OH ADC 4901:1-14-06, App.

Page 1

OAC 4901:1-14-05, App.

Ohio Admin. Code § 4901:1-14-06, App.

BALDWIN'S OHIO ADMINISTRATIVE CODE ANNOTATED 4901 PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION 4901:1 UTILITIES

CHAPTER 4901:1-14 UNIFORM FURCHASED GAS ADJUSTMENT

Copr. (C) 2007 Thomson/West. No Claim to Orig. U.S. govt. Weeks.

Rules are current through March 17, 2007; Appendices are current through March 31, 2004

4901:1-14-06 Appendix Weighted Average Gas Cost Recovery Rate

If the Gas Cost Recovery Rate (GCR) changes during a billing cycle, the Weighted Average Gas Cost Recovery Rate (WGCR) shall be determined as follows (W denotes variable):

- (1) GCR1 c The Cas Cost Recovery Rate in effect during the first part of the billing cycle
- (1) GCR1 The Gas Cost Recovery Eate in effect during the latter part of the billing cycle
- (3) V14 = The total number of days in the billing cycle
- (4) WHA.1 = The total number of days in the billing cycle when GMH was in affect
- (5) V34.2 = The total number of days in the billing cycle whem GCR2 was in effect
- [6] MGCR = [GCRl x (V34.1 / V34)] + [GCR2 Y (V34.2 / V34)]

EEE. 8-29-04

General Materials (GM) - References, Annotations, or Tables

OAC 4901:1-14-06, App., OH ADC 4901:1-14-06, App.

OH AUC 4901:1-14-06, App. END OF DOCUMENT

© 2007 Thomson/West, No Claim to Orig. U.S., Govt. Works.

Westlaw.

OH ADC 4901:1-14-07, App.

Page 1

OAC 4901:1-14-07, App.

Ohio Admin, Code # 4901:1-14-07, App.

BALIDWIN'S OHIO ADMINISTRATIVE CODE ANNOTATED 4901 PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION 4901:1 UTILITIES

Chapter 4901:1-14. Uniform purchased gas adjustment

Copr. (C) 2007 Thomson/West, No Claim in Orig. U.S. govt. Works.

Rules are current through March 17, 2007; Appendices are current through March 31, 2004

4901:1-14-07 Appendix Sample Certificate of Accountability

We have examined the quarterly filings of (insert gas or natural gas company name) which support the gas cost recovery (GCR) rates for the fine-month periods ended (insert effective ending dates of GCR quarters being audited) for conformity in all material respects with the financial procedural aspects of the uniform purchased gas adjustment as set from in Chapter 4901:1-14 and related appendices of the Administrative Code. Our examination for this purpose was made in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and, accordingly, included such tests of the accounting records and such other auditing procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We diddied not make a detailed examination such as would be required to determine that each transaction has been recorded in accordance with the financial procedural aspects of Chapter 4901:1-14 and related appendices of the Administrative Code.

In our opinion, (insert gas or natural gas company name) hashes not fairly determined the GCR rates for the three-month periods unded (insert effective ending dates of GCR quarters being audited) in accordance with the financial procedural aspects of the uniform purchased gas adjustment as set forth in Chapter 4901:1-14 and related appendices of the Administrative Code and properly applied the GCR rates to customer bills.

(If applicable) specific findings presented for the attention of the commission are attached in a separate "Memorandum of Findines."

Eff. 8-29-04

<General Materials (GM) - References, Amentations, or Tables>

OAC 4901:1-14-07, App., OH ADC 4901:1-14-07, App.

OH ADC 4901:1-14-07, App. END OF DOCUMENT

© 2007 Thomson/West, No Claim to Orig, U.S. Govt. Works.

APPENDIX Written Summary Information

This summary information is intended to let customers know of the existence and how to get further information orally and in writing relating to the following topics by calling, writing, or e-mailing:

Kristy Smith
Glenwood Energy of Oxford, Inc.
5181 College Corner Pike
Oxford, OH 45056
(513) 523-2555
E-mail address: goxfordnatural@woh.rr.com

- A. Complaint Procedures available at Glenwood Energy of Oxford, Inc. or at the PUCO:
- B. Customers Rights and Responsibilities including installation of service, payment of bills, disconnection and reconnection of service, meter testing, security deposits, rights to usage history, deferred payment plans, low-income assistance, information relating to the area's "one-call" or "call-before-you-dig" protection services, and service line responsibility;
- C. Requirements of company personnel on customer premises;
- D. Availability of rate information and alternatives upon request;
- E. A statement that customers may review a copy of the minimum gas service standards on the Commission's website or obtain a copy from the Commission upon request;
- F. Privacy Rights;
- G. Actual meter readings;
- H. Gas choice programs available to Customers, including information on slamming;
- I. If your complaint is not resolved after you have called (Glenwood Energy of Oxford, Inc.) or for general utility information, residential and business customers may call the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio (PUCO), toll-free at 1-800-686-7826 or for TDD/TTY toll-free at 1-800-686-1570, from 8 A.M. to 5:30 P.M. weekdays, or visit www.puco.ohio.gov.

The Ohio Consumers' Counsel (OCC) represents residential utility customers in matters before the PUCO. The OCC can be contacted toll-free at 1-877-742-5622 from 8 A.M. to 5 P.M. weekdays, or visit www.pickocc.org.

COMPANY NAME: GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC.

GAS COST RECOVERY RATE CALCULATION

PARTICULARS	UNIT	AMOUNT
EXPECTED GAS COST (EGC) SUPPLIER REFUND AND RECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENT (RA) ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT (AA) GAS COST RECOVERY RATE (GCR) = EGC + RA + AA	\$/MCF \$/MCF \$/MCF \$/MCF	6.2064 0.0000 (0.2710) 5.9354

GAS COST RECOVERY RATE EFFECTIVE DATES: _____ January 1 through January 31, 2015

EXPECTED GAS COST SUMMARY CALCULATION

PARTICULARS	UNIT	AMOUNT
PRIMARY GAS SUPPLIERS EXPECTED GAS COST UTILITY PRODUCTION EXPECTED GAS COST INCLUDABLE PROPANE EXPECTED GAS COST	\$ \$ \$	2,945,295
TOTAL ANNUAL EXPECTED GAS COST	\$	2,945,295
TOTAL ANNUAL SALES	MCF	474,560
EXPECTED GAS COST (EGC) RATE	\$/MCF	6.2064

SUPPLIER REFUND AND RECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENT SUMMARY CALCULATION

PARTICULARS	UNIT	AMOUNT
CURRENT QUARTER SUPPLIER REFUND & RECONCILIATION ADJ. PREVIOUS QUARTER REPORTED SUPPLIER REFUND & RECON. ADJ. SECOND PREVIOUS QUARTER REPORTED SUPPLIER REFUND & RECON. ADJ. THIRD PREVIOUS QUARTER REPORTED SUPPLIER REFUND & RECON. ADJ.	\$/MCF \$/MCF \$/MCF \$/MCF	0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000
SUPPLIER REFUND AND RECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENT (RA)	\$/MCF	0.0000

ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT SUMMARY CALCULATION

ACTUAL ADJUST MENT SOMMART	77 (LOOL/ 11701 <u>1</u>	<u> </u>
PARTICULARS	UNIT	AMOUNT
CURRENT QUARTER ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT	\$/MCF	0.1569
PREVIOUS QUARTER REPORTED ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT SECOND PREVIOUS QUARTER REPORTED ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT THIRD PREVIOUS QUARTER REPORTED ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT	\$/MCF \$/MCF \$/MCF	(0.1934) (0.3215) 0.0870
ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT (AA)	\$/MCF	(0.2710)

THIS QUARTERLY REPORT FILED PURSUANT TO ORDER NO. 76-515-GA-ORD OF THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF OHIO, DATED OCTOBER 18, 1979.

January 12, 2015

BY: /s/ Richard A. Perkins

Richard A. Perkins, CPA

TITLE: Chief Financial Officer

SCHEDULE I

COMPANY NAME: GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC.

EXPECTED GAS COST RATE CALCULATION

DETAILS FOR THE EGC RATE IN EFFECT AS OF January 1, 2015 AND THE VOLUME FOR THE TWELVE MONTH PERIOD ENDED September 30, 2014

TANK TO THE PROPERTY OF THE PR

	DEMAND	COMMODITY	MISC	TOTAL
SUPPLIER NAME	EXPECTED GAS	EXPECTED GAS	EXPECTED GAS	EXPECTED GAS
	COST AMT (\$)	COST AMT (\$)	COST AMT (\$)	COST AMT (\$)
PRIMARY GAS SUPPLIERS			,	
INTERSTATE PIPELINE SUPPLIERS (SCH. I-A)	'			İ
Atmos Energy	0	2,163,794	0	2,163,794
Texas Eastern Transmission Corporation	322,483	0	154,230	476,713
Duke Energy Ohio	200,000	0	475	200,475
Columbia Gas Transmission Corporation	0	104,314	0	104,314
PRODUCER/MARKETER (SCH. I - A) SYNTHETIC (SCH. I - A) OTHER GAS COMPANIES (SCH. I - B) OHIO PRODUCERS (SCH. I - B)		0		
SELF-HELP ARRANGEMENTS (SCH. 1-B) SPECIAL PURCHASES (SCH. 1-B)			o	0
TOTAL PRIMARY GAS SUPPLIERS	522,483	2,163,794	154,705	2,945,295
UTILITY PRODUCTION TOTAL UTILITY PRODUCTION (ATTACH DETAILS	5)			
INCLUDABLE PROPANE (A) PEAK SHAVING (ATTACH DETAILS) (B) BASE LOADING (ATTACH DETAILS)				0
TOTAL INCLUDABLE PROPANE				0
TOTAL EXPECTED GAS COST AMOUNT				2,945,295

PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT OF THE PROGRAMMENT O

SCHEDULE I - A PAGE 1 OF 4

COMPANY NAME: GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC.

PRIMARY GAS SUPPLIER / TRANSPORTER

DETAILS FOR THE EGC IN EFFECT AS OF VOLUME FOR THE TWELVE MONTH PERIOD ENDED	January 1, 2015 AN September 30, 2014	D THE	
SUPPLIER OR TRANSPORTER NAME _ TARIFF SHEET REFERENCE _ EFFECTIVE DATE OF TARIFF _	Atmos Energy Marketing Contract	RATE SCHEDULE NUMBER	
TYPE GAS PURCHASED	MCF		SYNTHETIC OTHER DTH
INCLUDABLE GAS SUPPLIERS	•		
PARTICULARS	UNIT RATE (\$PER)	TWELVE MONTH VOLUME	EXPECTED GAS COST AMOUNT (\$)
DEMAND CONTRACT DEMAND CONTRACT DEMAND CONTRACT DEMAND CONTRACT DEMAND Transition Costs: Transportation Cost Rate Adjustment TOTAL DEMAND			
COMMODITY COMMODITY COMMODITY - SST Transition Costs: Transportation Cost Rate Adjustment	4.164	519,643	2,163,794
TOTAL COMMODITY			2,163,794
MISCELLANEOUS TRANSPORTATION OTHER MISCELLANEOUS (SPECIFY)(EES)NJECTION WITHDRAWAL Capacity Release - SST (System Sup)			
TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS			
TOTAL EXPECTED GAS COST OF PRIMARY SUPPLIE	R/TRANSPORTER		2,163,794

SCHEDULE I - A PAGE 2 OF 4

COMPANY NAME: GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC.

PRIMARY GAS SUPPLIER / TRANSPORTER

DETAILS FOR THE EGC IN EFFECT AS OF	January 1, 2015	_AND THE	
VOLUME FOR THE TWELVE MONTH PERIOD ENDE	ED September 30, 2014	-	
SUPPLIER OR TRANSPORTER NAM	METexas Eastern Transmis		
TARIFF SHEET REFERENCE	CE Sixth Revised Volume N		
EFFECTIVE DATE OF TARI	FF	RATE SCHEDULE NUMBER	₹
	16	_	
TYPE GAS PURCHASE	ED 16 NATURAL	LIQUIFIED	_SYNTHETIC
UNIT OR VOLUME TYP	PEMCF	CCFX	OTHER DTH
PURCHASE SOURCE	CE X INTERSTATE	INTRASTATE	
INCLUDABLE GAS SUPPLIERS			
	UNIT	TWELVE	EXPECTED GAS
PARTICULARS	RATE	MONTH	COST AMOUNT
	(\$ PER)	VOLUME	(\$)
DEMAND			
CONTRACT DEMAND	0.0040	62,832	251
Reservation Charge, Zone 1-2	3,3670	62,832	211,555
Demand Tarrif			_
Reservation Charge, Zone STX-AAB	2.7220	17,076	46,481
Reservation Charge, Zone ETX-AAB	0,8760		8,641
	1.1300		21,913
Reservation Charge, Zone WLA-AAB	0.9500		33,641
Reservation Charge, Zone ELA-AAB	0.9300	55,712	55,541
	1		
TOTAL DEMAND			322,483
•			
COMMODITY			
COMMODITY			
OTHER COMMODITY (SPECIFY)			!
			Ī
			1
TOTAL COMMODITY			-
MISCELLANEOUS			
TRANSPORTATION	0.296	8 519,643	154,230
OTHER MISCELLANEOUS (SPECIFY)			
Prepaid Transportation			-
· rational remarks and an		1	
	•		
TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS			154,230
TOTAL EVENTATED OAD COOT OF PRIMARY OUT	ODLIED/TOANSDORTED		476,713
TOTAL EXPECTED GAS COST OF PRIMARY SUP	YLIEK/IKANSYUK/IEK		4/0,/13

SCHEDULE ! - A PAGE 3 OF 4

COMPANY NAME: GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC.

PRIMARY G	AS SUPPLIER / TR/	ANSPORTER	
DETAILS FOR THE EGC IN EFFECT AS OF VOLUME FOR THE TWELVE MONTH PERIOD ENDED	January 1, 2015 September 30, 2014	AND THE	
SUPPLIER OR TRANSPORTER NAME	Duke Energy Ohio		
TARIFF SHEET REFERENCE EFFECTIVE DATE OF TARIFF	Contract	RATE SCHEDULE NUMBER	
TYPE GAS PURCHASED _ UNIT OR VOLUME TYPE _ PURCHASE SOURCE	MCF	LIQUIFIED CCF X INTRASTATE	SYNTHETIC OTHER DTH
INCLUDABLE GAS SUPPLIERS			
PARTICULARS	UNIT RATE (\$PER)	TWELVE MONTH VOLUME	EXPECTED GAS COST AMOUNT (\$)
DEMAND	Flat		200,000
			200,000
TOTAL DEMAND			200,000
COMMODITY COMMODITY OTHER COMMODITY (SPECIFY)	-	-	-
TOTAL COMMODITY			0
MISCELLANEOUS TRANSPORTATION OTHER MISCELLANEOUS (SPECIFY) Duke Energy Ohio - Odorization	0.0010	474,560	475
TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS			475
TOTAL EXPECTED GAS COST OF PRIMARY SUPPLIE	ER/TRANSPORTER		200,475

TOT MARKET PARTY TO AND THE PROPERTY OF THE PARTY OF THE

SCHEDULE I - A PAGE 4 OF 4

COMPANY NAME: GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC.

PRIMARY G	AS SUPPLIER / TR	RANSPORTER	
DETAILS FOR THE EGC IN EFFECT AS OF	January 1, 2015	AND THE	•
VOLUME FOR THE TWELVE MONTH PERIOD ENDED	September 30, 2014	-	
SUPPLIER OR TRANSPORTER NAME	Columbia Gas Transmiss	sion Corporation through Atmos E	Energy
TARIFF SHEET REFERENCE	ITS Tariff		
EFFECTIVE DATE OF TARIFF		RATE SCHEDULE NUMBE	R
TYPE GAS PURCHASED	X NATURAL	LIQUIFIED	SYNTHETIC
UNIT OR VOLUME TYPE	MCF	CCF	X OTHER DTH
PURCHASE SOURCE	X INTERSTATE	INTRASTATE	_
MOLLIDADI E CAS CURRILIERS			
INCLUDABLE GAS SUPPLIERS	UNIT	TWELVE	EXPECTED GAS
DADTION ADO	RATE	MONTH	COST AMOUNT
PARTICULARS		VOLUME	(\$)
	(\$PER)	VOLUME	(4)
DEMAND	1		
CONTRACT DEMAND		l	
CONTRACT DEMAND CREDIT ADJUSTMENT			
CONTRACT DEMAND ADJUSTMENT			
WINTER REQUIREMENT DEMAND (5 mos.)	1	1	- 1
WINTER REQUIREMENT DEMAND ADJUSTMENT			1
WINTER SERVICE CONTRACT QUANTITY			
	1		
OTHER DEMAND (SPECIFY)			
TOTAL DEMAND			
COMMODITY			l
COMMODITY	0.2135	488,588	104,314
COMMODITY			
OTHER COMMODITY (SPECIFY)	ļ		İ
OTHER COMMODITY (SI LON 1)	1		1.
			.
		Ì	
TOTAL COMMODITY			104,314
MISCELLANEOUS			
TRANSPORTATION - SUMMER	ı	•	-
TRANSPORTATION - WINTER			- I
OTHER MISCELLANEOUS (SPECIFY)			
·	1		1
TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS			
			45.52
TOTAL EVOCOTED GAS COST OF PRIMARY SLIPPLIF	:P/TRANSPORTER		104.314

SCHEDULE I - B PAGE 1 OF 1

OTHER PRIMARY GAS SUPPLIERS

DETAILS FOR THE EGC IN EFFECT AS OF	January 1, 2015 September 30, 2014	AND THE	
SUPPLIER NAME	UNIT RATE	TWELVE MONTH VOLUME	EXPECTED GAS COST AMOUNT
OTHER GAS COMPANIES			
TOTAL OTHER GAS COMPANIES			-
OHIO PRODUCERS			_
TOTAL OHIO PRODUCERS		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
SELF-HELP ARRANGEMENT TRANSPORTATION OTHER MISCELLANEOUS (SPECIFY)			
TOTAL SELF-HELP ARRANGEMENT			-
SPECIAL PURCHASES			

PURCHASED GAS ADJUSTMENT COMPANY NAME: GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC. SUPPLIER REFUND AND RECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENT

DETAILS FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED

September 30, 2014

	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	C
PARTICULARS	UNIT	AMOUNT
JURISDICTIONAL SALES: TWELVE MONTHS ENDED September 30, 2014	MCF	474,560
FOTAL SALES: TWELVE MONTHS ENDED September 30, 2014	MCF	474,560
RATIO OF JURISDICTIONAL SALES TO TOTAL SALES	RATIO	100%
SUPPLIER REFUNDS RECEIVED DURING THREE MONTH PERIOD		\$0
PURISDICTIONAL SHARE OF SUPPLIER REFUNDS RECEIVED		\$0
RECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENTS ORDERED DURING QUARTER		\$0
TOTAL JURISDICTIONAL REFUND & RECONCILIATION ADJ.		\$0
NTEREST FACTOR		1.0550
REFUNDS & RECONCILIATION ADJ. INCLUDING INTEREST		\$ 0
JURISDICTIONAL SALES: TWELVE MONTHS ENDED September 30, 2014	MCF	474,560
CURRENT SUPPLIER REFUND & RECONCILIATION ADJ.	\$/MCF	\$0.0000
DETAILS OF REFUNDS / ADJUSTMEI RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE MON		September 30, 2014
		September 30, 2014 AMOUNT
RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE MON		AMOUNT
RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE MON PARTICULARS		
RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE MON PARTICULARS		AMOUNT SEE DETAILS BELOW \$0
RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE MON PARTICULARS	TH PERIOD ENDED	AMOUNT SEE DETAILS BELOW
RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE MON PARTICULARS UPPLIER REFUNDS RECEIVED DURING QUARTER TOTAL SUPPLIE	TH PERIOD ENDED	AMOUNT SEE DETAILS BELOW \$0
RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE MON PARTICULARS UPPLIER REFUNDS RECEIVED DURING QUARTER TOTAL SUPPLIE	TH PERIOD ENDED	SEE DETAILS BELOW \$0 \$0
RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE MON PARTICULARS UPPLIER REFUNDS RECEIVED DURING QUARTER TOTAL SUPPLIE	TH PERIOD ENDED	AMOUNT SEE DETAILS BELOW \$0 \$0
RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE MON PARTICULARS SUPPLIER REFUNDS RECEIVED DURING QUARTER	TH PERIOD ENDED	SEE DETAILS BELOW \$0 \$0
RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE MON PARTICULARS SUPPLIER REFUNDS RECEIVED DURING QUARTER TOTAL SUPPLIER RECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENTS ORDERED DURING QUARTER TOTAL RECONCILIATION AD	TH PERIOD ENDED	SEE DETAILS BELOW \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0
RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE MON PARTICULARS UPPLIER REFUNDS RECEIVED DURING QUARTER TOTAL SUPPLIE ECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENTS ORDERED DURING QUARTER TOTAL RECONCILIATION AD DETAILS OF SUPPLIER REFUNDS FOR THE THREE	TH PERIOD ENDED	AMOUNT SEE DETAILS BELOW \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0
RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE MON PARTICULARS UPPLIER REFUNDS RECEIVED DURING QUARTER TOTAL SUPPLIE ECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENTS ORDERED DURING QUARTER TOTAL RECONCILIATION AD DETAILS OF SUPPLIER REFUNDS FOR THE THREE	TH PERIOD ENDED R REFUNDS JUSTMENTS EE MONTHS ENDED MONTH-YEAR	SEE DETAILS BELOW \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$AMOUNT
RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE MON PARTICULARS UPPLIER REFUNDS RECEIVED DURING QUARTER TOTAL SUPPLIE ECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENTS ORDERED DURING QUARTER TOTAL RECONCILIATION AD DETAILS OF SUPPLIER REFUNDS FOR THE THRI	TH PERIOD ENDED R REFUNDS JUSTMENTS EE MONTHS ENDED MONTH-YEAR Jul-14	SEE DETAILS BELOW \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0
RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE MON PARTICULARS SUPPLIER REFUNDS RECEIVED DURING QUARTER TOTAL SUPPLIER RECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENTS ORDERED DURING QUARTER TOTAL RECONCILIATION AD	TH PERIOD ENDED R REFUNDS JUSTMENTS EE MONTHS ENDED MONTH-YEAR	SEE DETAILS BELOW \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$AMOUNT

SCHEDULE III

COMPANY NAME: GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC.

ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT

DETAILS FOR THE THREE MONTH PERIOD ENDED September 30, 2014

PARTICULARS	UNIT	MONTH Jul-2014	MONTH Aug-2014	MONTH Sep-2014
SUPPLY VOLUME PER BOOKS	<u> </u>		<u> </u>	
PRIMARY GAS SUPPLIERS	DTH	9,660	9,178	13,178
UTILITY PRODUCTION	DTH	·		
INCLUDABLE PROPANE	DTH			
OTHER VOLUMES (SPECIFY)	DTH			
	DTH			
TOTAL SUPPLY VOLUMES	DTH	9,660	9,178	13,178
SUPPLY COST PER BOOKS				
PRIMARY GAS SUPPLIERS	\$ \$	77,406	67,296	92,586
UTILITY PRODUCTION	\$			
INCLUDABLE PROPANE	\$			
OTHER COST (SPECIFY)	\$			
	\$			
TOTAL SUPPLY COST	\$	77,406	67,296	92,586
SALES VOLUMES				
JURISDICTIONAL	MCF	8,235	7,453	10,197
NON-JURISDICTIONAL	MCF			
OTHER VOLUMES (SPECIFY)	MCF			
	MCF			
TOTAL SALES VOLUME	MCF	8,235	7,453	10,197
UNIT BOOK COST OF GAS (SUPPLY \$ / SALES MCF)	\$/MCF	9.3996	9.0294	9,0797
LESS: EGC IN EFFECT FOR MONTH	\$/MCF	6.8080	6.1597	6.3229
= DIFFERENCE	\$/MCF	2.5916	2.8697	2.7568
TIMES: MONTHLY JURISDICTIONAL SALES	MCF	8,235	7,453	10,197
= MONTHLY COST DIFFERENCE	\$	21,342	21,388	28,111
BALANCE ADJUSTMENT SCHEDULE IV				3,639
PARTICULARS			UNIT	
COST DIFFERENCE FOR THE THREE MONTH PERIOD			\$	74,481
DIVIDED BY: TWELVE MONTHS SALES ENDED	September 30, 2014		MCF	474,560
= CURRENT QUARTERLY ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT			\$/MCF	0.1569

PURCHASED GAS ADJUSTMENT COMPANY NAME: GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC. BALANCE ADJUSTMENT

AND THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPER

DETAILS FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED

September 30, 2014

PARTICULARS	AMOUNT
COST DIFFERENCE BETWEEN BOOK AND EFFECTIVE EGC AS USED TO COMPUTE AA OF THE GCR IN EFFECT FOUR QUARTERS PRIOR TO THE CURRENTLY EFFECTIVE GCR	(\$21,133)
LESS: DOLLAR AMOUNT RESULTING FROM THE AA OF (\$0.0522) / MCF AS USED TO COMPUTE THE GCR IN EFFECT FOUR QUARTERS PRIOR TO THE CURRENTLY EFFECTIVE GCR TIMES THE JURISDICTIONAL SALES O 474,560 MCF AND THE PERIOD BETWEEN THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE CURRENT GCR RATE AND THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE GCR RATE IN EFFECT APPROXIMATELY ONE YEAR PRIOR TO THE CURRENT RATE.	(\$24,772)
BALANCE ADJUSTMENT FOR THE AA	\$3,639
DOLLAR AMOUNT OF SUPPLIER REFUNDS AND COMMISSION ORDERED RECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENTS AS USED TO COMPUTE THE RA OF THE GCR IN EFFECT FOUR QUARTERS PRIOR TO THE CURRENTLY EFFECTIVE GCR.	\$0
LESS: DOLLAR AMOUNT RESULTING FROM UNIT RATE FOR SUPPLIER REFUNDS AND RECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENTS OF \$ - / MCF AS USED TO COMPUTE THE RA OF THE GCR IN EFFECT FOUR QUARTERS PRIOR TO THE CURRENTLY EFFECTIVE GCR TIMES THE JURISDICTIONAL SALES OF 474,560 MCF FOR THE PERIOD THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE CURRENT GCR RATE AND THE	
EFFECTIVE DATE OF GCR RATE IN EFFECT APPROXIMATELY ONE YEAR PRIOR TO THE CURRENT RATE.	\$0_
BALANCE ADJUSTMENT FOR THE RA	\$0
DOLLAR AMOUNT OF BALANCE ADJUSTMENT AS USED TO COMPUTE THE BA OF THE GCR IN EFFECT ONE QUARTER PRIOR TO THE CURRENTLY EFFECTIVE GCR.	\$0
LESS: DOLLAR AMOUNT RESULTING FROM THE BA OF / MCF AS USED TO COMPUTE THE GCR IN EFFECT ONE QUARTER PRIOR TO THE CURRENTLY EFFECTIVE GCR TIMES THE JURISDICTIONAL SALES OF 474,560 MCF FOR THE	
PERIOD BETWEEN THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE CURRENT GCR RATE AND THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE GCR RATE IN EFFECT IMMEDIATELY PRIOR TO THE CURRENT RATE.	\$0
BALANCE ADJUSTMENT FOR THE BA	\$0
TOTAL BALANCE ADJUSTMENT AMOUNT	\$3,639

					_
Ex	h	:1	٠i	+	ĸ
- P∠X	LI	ы	.,,	ι	IJ

Proposed Changes to Tariff

P.U.C.O. No. 1

SECTION I - SERVICE

1. <u>Definitions</u>. As used throughout these Rules and Regulations, the terms set for the below are defined as follows:

"Company" means Glenwood Energy of Oxford, Inc., its successors and assigns.

"Gas", "Gas Cost", and "Cost of Gas" have the same meanings as defined in Chapter 4901:1-14 of the OAC.

"GCR" means "gas cost recovery rate" as defined in Chapter 4901:1-14 of the OAC.

"Mcf" means 1,000 cubic feet.

"OAC" means the Ohio Administrative Code.

"ORC" means the Ohio Revised Code.

"PIPP" means the "percent of income payment plan".

"PUCO" or "Commission" means The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

"Self-Help Arrangement" has the same meaning as defined in Chapter 4901:1-14, OAC.

"Supplier(s)" means any pipeline, transmission company, broker, or producer supplying gas.

2. <u>Availability</u>. Available to the extent of Company's gas supply and Company's gas distribution facilities in all territory where Company's distribution facilities are located, to customers who contract for gas service under the terms and conditions stated herein, and subject to the Rules and Regulations filed by the Company from time to time with the Commission, and any subsequent revision thereof, and to the lawful orders of regulatory authorities having jurisdiction.

To the extent the Company's gas supply and Company's gas distribution facilities are available, the Company will provide natural gas service to the City of Oxford and vicinity and also to the Village of College Corner and vicinity. The rates applicable to customers domiciled in the City of Oxford and vicinity or in the Village of College Corner and vicinity will be governed by the applicable rates established by the regulatory authority having authority over the rates established for the City of Oxford.

3. <u>Application for Service</u>. All applications for service shall be made through the local office of the Company or its authorized agents.

Issued: September 18, 2007 April 8, 2015

Effective: October 10, 2007 May 8, 2015

Filed in accordance with the October 10, 2007_____, 2015_Finding and Order of the Commission in Case No. 07-102615-680-GA-ATA.

Issued by
GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC.
Keith G. Smith, CEOJohn Stenger, Chief Operating Officer

P.U.C.O. No. 1

Decrease the pressure in the Company's lines intermittently to such extent as to interfere with continuous service to other customers.

- 11. <u>No Customer Shall Sell to Another</u>. The customer shall not supply or sell gas for use in any location or by any person other than that specified in the application for service.
- 12. <u>Access to Premises</u>. The Company and its authorized employees shall have access at all reasonable times to its facilities and at all of the premises in which gas supplied by the Company is used or is to be used. The Company's employees and agents seeking access to the customer's or landlord's premises shall, upon request, identify himself/herself, provide company photo and state the reasons for visit.
- 13. <u>Customer's Responsibility</u>. The customer assumes all responsibility for property owned by the customer on customer's side of the point of delivery, which will be the <u>outlet-inlet</u> side of the <u>service line</u> connection at the <u>Company's linemeter</u>, for the service supplied or taken, as well as for the installation and appliances used in connection therewith, and will save Company harmless from and against all claims for injury or damage to persons or property occasioned by or in any way resulting from such service or the use thereof on customer's side of the point of delivery.
- 14. <u>Right-of-Way and Line</u>. The customer, without reimbursement, will make or procure conveyance to Company of right-of-way and installed lines satisfactory to it across property between Company's lines and the customer's property at the location where service is to be furnished, including property owned or controlled by the customer for Company's distribution mains, extensions thereof, or appurtenances necessary for or incidental to the supplying of service to the customer.
- 15. <u>Charges and Payment for Temporary Service</u>. In addition to regular payments for gas used, the customer shall pay the cost for all material, labor, and other necessary expense incurred by the Company in supplying gas service to the customer at his request for any temporary purpose or use.
- 16. <u>Customer Indebted to Company</u>. Subject to the requirements of Chapter 4901:1-17, OAC, service will not be supplied to any premises if at the time of application for service the applicant is indebted to Company for any service previously supplied at the same or other premises, until payment of such indebtedness or other arrangement satisfactory to the Company shall have been made.

Issued: September 18, 2007 April 8, 2015

Effective: October 10, 2007 May 8, 2015

Filed in accordance with the October 10, 2007 _____, 2015 - Finding and Order of the Commission in Case No. 07-102615-680-GA-ATA.

llenwood Energy of Oxford, Inc.	First Revised Sheet 13
	Cancels
P.U.C.O. No. 1	Original Sheet 13
ancellation date corresponding with or previous to the last ccepted by the Company as within the net payment period. Updated list of ways to pay bills.	date of the net payment period will be pon request, the Company will provide an
33. Change in Financial Status of Customer. Veccomes bankrupt, when a receiver, trustee, guardian, or consustomer, or when the customer makes assignment for the bershe following rights: at the option of the Company, and after a gas and to remove its property from the customer's premises concurrent with the right to shut off, to demand immediate payrous tours and not paid for, which amount shall become due and for residential customers, such rights shall be subject to the requirement.	servator is appointed for the assets of the nefit of creditors, the Company shall have reasonable notice, the right to shut off the s; and the further right, independent of or ment for all gas theretofore delivered to the d payable immediately upon such demand.
34. <u>Service Lines</u> . The general term "service complete line or connection between the Company's line and the meter connection at the customer's location. It consists connection, and (b) the customer service line.	he customer's location, up to and including
(a) Service Line Connection	
The service line connection consists of the concompany's line. This connection shall be made by the Compacustomer, and it shall remain the property of the Company. It may gas into the customer service line.	any or its representative without cost to the
(b) <u>Customer Service Line</u> The customer service line consists of the pipe including the meter connection. The customer's service line shand any part of it not contained within the customer's proposition of the conveyed to the Company and remain the proposition of the customer's service line. The customer shall imperfections in or for damage, injury or loss resulting, directly that part of the customer service line contained.	hall be installed at the customer's expense, erty at the location where service is to be roperty of the Company in accordance with secifications, size, location and termination labeled for maintenance of, for y or indirectly, from the escape of gas from

Issued: April 8, 2015September 18, 2007

Filed in accordance with the October 10, 2007 Finding and Order of the Commission in Case No. 1507-1026-680-GA-ATA.

Issued by

(lenwood Energy of Oxford, Inc. First Revised Sheet 13 Cancels	
	Original Sheet 13	_
	P.U.C.O. No. 1 ancellation date corresponding with or previous to the last date of the net payment period will be accepted by the Company ithin the net payment period. Upon request, the Company will provide an updated list of ways to pay bills.	
	33. Change in Financial Status of Customer. When the customer vacates the premises or become ankrupt, when a receiver, trustee, guardian, or conservator is appointed for the assets of the customer, or when the customer askes assignment for the benefit of creditors, the Company shall have the following rights: at the option of the Company, a fter reasonable notice, the right to shut off the gas and to remove its property from the customer's premises; and the furthing ght, independent of or concurrent with the right to shut off, to demand immediate payment for all gas theretofore delivered ne customer and not paid for, which amount shall become due and payable immediately upon such demand. For resident ustomers, such rights shall be subject to the requirements of Chapter 4901:1-18, OAC.	ner and her I to
	34. <u>Service Lines</u> . The general term "service line" is commonly used to designate the complete line onnection between the Company's <u>line-main</u> and the customer's location, up to and including the meter connection at sustomer's location. It consists of two distinct parts, (a) the service line connection, and (b) the customer service line.	or the
1	(a) <u>Service Line Connection</u> The service line connection consists of the connection of the customer service line at the Company's li This connection shall be made by the Company or its representative without cost to the customer, and it shall remain property of the Company. It may include a valve for stopping the flow of any gas into the customer service line.	ine. the
	(b) <u>Customer Service Line</u> , <u>Responsibility</u> , <u>Right-of-Way and Installation</u> The Company assumes responsibility for the initial installation of the curb-to-meter customer service line including, if necessary, any riser. The initial installation will be paid by the customer to the Company at the Company's continuous responsibility for activities by the customer and the customer's agents which cause damage to Company's equipment, the curb-to-meter customer service line or the riser and for appliances and apparatus used conjunction with the customer's piping. The Company assumes responsibility for the repair, replacement and maintenance the curb-to-meter customer service line, including the riser.	the l in
	The customer, without reimbursement, shall furnish all necessary rights of way upon or across propowned or controlled by the customer for any and all of the company's facilities that are necessary or incidental to the supply of service to the customer, or to continue service to the customer.	erty ying
	The customer, without reimbursement, will make or procure conveyance to the Company, all necessary rigorial of way upon or across property owned or controlled by the customer, satisfactory to the Company, for the Company's main extensions thereof necessary for maintenance incidental to the supplying of service to the customer in the form of Gran instrument customarily used by the Company for these facilities.	12 OT
ļ	The customer will be charged the cost for the initial installation of the entire curb-to-meter service line equipment, including tap, risers, meters and service regulators on its side of the point of delivery (outlet of the meter); Company will maintain the same without invoicing the customer directly. Only the Company's agents are authorize connect the Company's customer service line to the customer's service.	<u>, me</u>

Issued: April 8, 2015 September 18, 2007

Filed in accordance with the October 10, 2007 Finding and Order of the Commission in Case No. 15-68007-1026-GA-ATA.

١

P.U.C.O. No. 1

- 46. <u>Amendments</u>. The Company reserves the right to modify, alter or amend the foregoing Rules and Regulations and to make such further and other rules and regulations as experience may suggest as the Company may deem necessary or convenient in the conduct of its business, and as the Commission may approve.
- 47. <u>Consumer Safeguards.</u> The Company shall maintain a listing including the 24-hour emergency number in each local telephone service provider's directory operating in the Company's service territory. The Company shall not commit any unfair or deceptive acts or practices in connection with the promotion or provision of service. The Company shall only disclose a customer's account number or social security number without the customer's written consent for natural gas company credit evaluation, collections, and/or credit reporting or pursuant to a court order or subpoena. Upon customer request, the Company shall timely provide twelve months of a customer's usage history and twenty-four months of a customer's payment history to the customer.
- 48. <u>Written Summary Information</u>. The Company shall provide to new customers and to existing customers who request it, a written summary information dealing with who to contact concerning different rights and responsibilities. Pursuant to Rule 4901:1-13-06, OAC, this written summary information is contained in an appendix to this tariff.

SECTION IV – GAS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

- 49. <u>Description of Service</u>. Applicable for gas service from existing distribution lines of Company having sufficient capacity therefore, to customers at one location who will guarantee payment of the minimum monthly charge for a term of twelve consecutive months. Company shall have the right to curtail deliveries of gas hereunder whenever and to the extent necessary in its sole judgment for the protection of service to its human needs customers. Company shall not be required to furnish gas service hereunder to any customer or applicant except by written application for gas service by the customer to Company.
 - 50. Gas Distribution Rates and Charges.

The gas distribution rates and charges set forth below have been superseded by the rates and charges established by the City of Oxford's most recent Ordinance which is attached to this tariff. Those rates and charges established by the City of Oxford's most recent Ordinance which is attached to this tariff also apply to the Village of College Corner and vicinity. Other rates and charges that do not appear in this tariff have also been established by the City of Oxford.

Monthly Customer Charge - \$6.50 per meter per month charged to each customer regardless of the amount of gas if any, consumer during the month; provided,

Issued: September 18, 2007 April 8, 2015 Effective: October 10, 2007 May 8, 2015

Filed in accordance with the October 10, 2007 ______, 2015 -Finding and Order of the Commission in Case No. 07-102615-680-GA-ATA.

Issued by
GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC.
Keith G. Smith, CEOJohn Stenger, Chief Operating Officer

ORDINANCE NO. 3298

THE STREET WAS DONE OF THE STREET OF STREET

AN ORDINANCE TO REGULATE THE RATES AND CHARGES TO BE CHARGED AND COLLECTED AND THE SERVICES TO BE RENDERED BY GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC., ITS SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, FOR GAS AND GAS SERVICE FURNISHED TO ALL OF ITS CUSTOMERS WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF OXFORD DURING THE PERIOD ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2018, AND REPEALING AND SUPERSEDING ORDINANCE NOS. 3147, 3157, AND 3267, WHICH, TOGETHER, PREVIOUSLY REGULATED SUCH RATES, CHARGES, AND SERVICES.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OXFORD, BUTLER COUNTY, STATE OF OHIO, THAT:

SECTION 1: <u>Rates, Charges, Rules, and Regulations</u>. The rates and charges to be charged and collected and the rules and regulations governing services to be rendered by Glenwood Energy of Oxford, Inc., its successors and assigns, for gas and gas service furnished to all of its customers within the limits of the City of Oxford during the period ending February 28, 2018 shall be as set forth in this ordinance, which is hereby adopted pursuant to Article XVIII, Section 4 of the Ohio Constitution and Section 4909.34 of the Ohio Revised Code.

1. <u>Definitions.</u> The following definitions shall apply in the interpretation and enforcement of this ordinance unless the context clearly shows a different meaning is intended.

"City" means City of Oxford, Ohio.

"City Manager" means the city manager of the City of Oxford, Ohio.

"Company" means Glenwood Energy of Oxford, Inc., its successors and assigns.

"Council" means City Council of the City of Oxford, Ohio.

"Gas," "gas costs," and "cost of gas" have the same meanings as defined in Chapter 4901:1-14, OAC.

"GCR" means "gas cost recovery rate" as defined in Chapter 4901:1-14, OAC.

"Mcf" means one thousand cubic feet.

"OAC" means the Ohio Administrative Code.

"ORC" means the Ohio Revised Code.

"PIPP" means the "percent of income payment plan" as set forth in Chapter 4901;1-18, OAC.

"PUCO" means the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

THE PRESENCE TO BE WELLED TO SERVE THE

"Self-Help Arrangement" has the same meaning as defined in Chapter 4901:1-14, OAC.

- 2. <u>Authorized Gas Distribution Rates and Charges.</u> Effective with bills rendered on or after March 1, 2015 through the bills for the monthly service period ending February 28, 2018, the Company shall charge the following rates and charges for delivering gas to its customers within the City limits:
 - a. Monthly Customer Charge. The Company shall charge a fixed monthly customer charge of \$8.00 per meter per month to each customer regardless of the amount of gas if, any, consumed during the month; provided, however, that the customer charge shall not be imposed in any month in which there is no consumption as a result of a voluntary request by the customer for the shutoff of the meter.
 - b. <u>General Service Rate</u>. The Company shall charge a base distribution rate of \$3.03 per Mcf of gas delivered to all general service customers.
 - c. <u>Self-Help Arrangements.</u> Nothing contained in this ordinance shall prevent the Company from entering into self-help arrangements with customers to provide for the transportation of gas owned by the customer to the customer's premises; provided, however, that all such special contracts must be filed with and approved by the PUCO pursuant to Section 4905.31, ORC.
 - Gas Cost Recovery Rate. In addition to the rates and charges for gas distribution 3. service set forth in Section 1.2 above, the Company shall be entitled to recover the cost of obtaining the gas it sells to its customers through a GCR rate, which shall be subject to the jurisdiction of, and regulated by, the PUCO. As provided in Ordinance No. 3147, and in accordance with the PUCO's September 19, 2007 Opinion and Order in its Case Nos. 06-350-GA-CMR and 06-521-GA-GCR, the Company shall be authorized to include as an expected gas cost eligible for recovery though the GCR rate under Rule 4901:1-14-05, OAC, the amount of the actual, invoiced fixed charges imposed by Duke Energy Ohio in connection with the Company's use of the Duke Energy Ohio's transportation pipeline to transport gas from the Millville Station to the Company's Oxford city gate, up to a maximum of \$200,000 per year. Any such Duke Energy Ohio charges in excess of \$200,000 annually shall not be included by the Company as a cost of gas and shall not be proposed for recovery through the GCR rate. If the arrangement under which the Company transports gas from the Millville Station to the Company's city gate changes during the term of this ordinance, the Company may

continue to include the amount of any actual, invoiced fixed charges or, if applicable, capital costs associated with this pipeline as an expected gas cost eligible for recovery through the GCR rate; provided, however that the amount proposed for recovery through the GCR rate shall be limited as necessary to fairly allocate the total charges or costs between the Company's GCR customers and other customers served through the pipeline on a relative throughput basis. The Company shall provide the City Manager with documentation supporting such charges or costs and the allocation methodology prior to including the cost as an expected gas cost in its GCR filings with the PUCO. The Company shall be subject to PUCO financial and management/ performance audits relating to its GCR calculations and its gas procurement practices as provided in Rule 4901:1-14-07, OAC.

- 4. Mcf Tax Rider. In addition to all other rates and charges set forth in this section, all gas consumed shall be subject to an Mcf tax rider to provide for the recovery of the Company's excise tax liability under Section 5727.811, ORC.
- 5. Gross Receipts Tax Rider. In addition to all other rates and charges set forth in this section, amounts billed by the Company shall be subject to a rider at the Company's effective gross receipts tax rate to provide for the recovery of the Company's gross receipts tax liability under Section 5727.25, ORC.
- Pipeline Relocation Rider. In addition to all other rates and charges set forth in 6. this section, all gas consumed shall be subject to the Pipeline Relocation Rider of \$0.2406 per Mcf of gas delivered to recover the actual costs incurred by the Company, including the actual carrying costs, associated with moving its natural gas pipeline to accommodate the relocation of US Rt. 27. Pursuant to Ordinance No. 3267, the Pipeline Relocation Rider was implemented effective with bills rendered on or after May 1, 2014 and said rider shall remain in effect through the bills for the monthly service period ending April 30, 2019 or until the costs are fully recovered, whichever first occurs. This Pipeline Relocation Rider shall be the exclusive mechanism for recovery of the costs associated with moving the natural gas pipeline, and the Company shall not be entitled to include said costs in the revenue requirement used to determine rates and charges in any subsequent City rate ordinance or in any proceeding before the PUCO. Commencing in 2014, the reduction in annual pro forma tax expense resulting from the investment associated with moving the pipeline that would otherwise be recognized in determining the General Service Rate revenue requirement shall be quantified by the Company and shall be credited to customers through an adjustment to the Pipeline Relocation Rider rate, such adjustment to be effective with the bills for the monthly service period ending May 31 of the year following the tax year. The Company shall provide documentation to the City Manager showing the calculation of the credit no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the date of the annual adjustment.

- 7. <u>PIPP Cost-Recovery Rider</u>. In addition to all other rates and charges set forth in this section, the Company shall be entitled to recover the costs associated with the PIPP program through a PIPP cost-recovery rider, which shall be subject to the jurisdiction of, and regulated by, the PUCO.
- 8. <u>Uncollectible Expense Rider</u>: In addition to all other rates and charges set forth in this section, the Company shall be entitled to recover its uncollectible expense through an uncollectible expense rider, which shall be subject to the jurisdiction of, and regulated by, the PUCO.
- Tax Change Adjustments. If, during the term of this ordinance, a governmental 9. authority imposes a new tax, removes an existing tax, or increases or reduces the rate of an existing tax, the effect of which is to increase or reduce the annual tax liability of the Company, the Company shall be entitled to adjust the rates authorized in this section by implementing a new rider or, if applicable, eliminating or adjusting an existing rider, calculated so as to produce the pro forma annual revenues that will reflect the increase or decrease in the Company's annual tax liability. This provision does not apply to changes in the property tax rates or liability. A rider implemented or adjusted pursuant to this provision may be rounded to nearest one-quarter (\$0.0025) cent per Mcf. The Company shall provide written notice to the City Manager of its intent to implement any such new rider or adjust or eliminate an existing rider, and of the proposed effective date of such rate change, said notice to be provided no later than thirty (30) days prior to the proposed effective date of the rate change. The written notice shall include all documentation, information, and calculations relied on by the Company to support the proposed rate change. The City shall, upon notice to the Company, be entitled to inspect any Company books or records as may be necessary to verify the accuracy of the proposed change. No rate change as described herein shall become effective until the City Manager advises the Company that the City finds the proposed rate change to be a tax-related change of the type contemplated by this provision and that the proposed rate has been properly calculated; provided, however, if the City Manager does not so inform the Company within fourteen (14) days of receipt of the written notice, the rate change shall take effect automatically as of the proposed effective date.
 - 10. <u>Miscellaneous Charges</u>. In addition to all other rates and charges set forth in this section, the Company shall be entitled to impose the following charges:
 - a. <u>Late Payment Charge</u>. If a bill payment is not received in the Company's offices or by the Company's authorized agent within twenty-five (25) days of date of the invoice, an additional amount of one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the unpaid balance will be assessed on the customer's subsequent bill. This charge is not applicable to the unpaid account balances of a customer enrolled in PIPP or a payment plan pursuant to Rule 4901:1-18-04, OAC.

- b. Returned Check Charge. Where the customer's financial institution returns a customer's check for insufficient funds, the Company shall assess a returned check charge of \$25.00; provided, however, that this charge will not be assessed if the customer establishes that the cause of the dishonored check was bank error.
- c. <u>Credit Check Processing Charge</u>. The Company may impose a charge of \$15.00 for a credit check on an applicant for service..
- d. Field Collection Fee. Where a Company employee is dispatched to a customer's premises to disconnect service for nonpayment, the customer may avoid disconnection by paying the full amount owed; provided, however, that the Company may assess a \$20.00 field collection charge for accepting such payment. This charge may be assessed either at the time the delinquent amount is collected or on a subsequent bill.
- Reconnection Charge. Where service to a premises has been e. disconnected by the Company by shutting off the meter, the Company may charge and collect a reconnection charge of \$50.00 as a condition of restoring service to the premises. The reconnection charge shall apply without regard to the length of time the service was disconnected, whether the disconnection was voluntary or involuntary, or whether the customer requesting reconnection is the same customer as the customer at the time service to the premises was disconnected. Upon a request by a customer for a voluntary disconnection of service to a premises, the Company shall advise the customer that the \$50.00 reconnection charge will apply if service is subsequently restored. If service was disconnected as a result of unauthorized or fraudulent use by the customer, the Company may impose, in addition to the \$50.00 reconnection charge, a charge to recover any actual expense incurred by the Company as a result of such unauthorized or fraudulent use, including an estimate of the cost of gas improperly used prior to reconnecting service.
- f. New Service Tap Charge. Applicants applying for a new tap on the Company's system shall be assessed a new service tap charge of \$850.00 for single-family residences and \$1,200.00 for multi-family and commercial premises, or the actual cost of the installing the new tap, whichever is less. The Company shall provide documentation to an applicant for a new service tap showing the actual cost of installing the new tap in as a part of, on in conjunction with, the bill on which the charge is assessed.
- g. Meter Test Fee. Upon request by a customer, the Company shall test the accuracy of the meter by removing the meter and engaging a independent outside vendor to perform the test. The Company shall assess a fee of \$75.00 for the meter test; provided, however, that this fee will not be

assessed if the meter is not found to be operating within accepted tolerances (plus or minus the 3%), nor shall it be assessed for the first meter test performed in any 36-month period.

TOWN TORSESTANDS TO THE SERVE OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY

- h. Stop Payment Fee Return of Security Deposit. Upon notification by a customer entitled to the return of all or part of a security deposit held by the Company pursuant to Rules 4901:1-17-04 through 4901:1-17-07, OAC, that the refund check has been lost or has not been received, the Company shall promptly notify its bank to stop payment on the check. If the check was lost by the customer, or was not received by the customer due to the customer's failure to notify the company of a change in the customer's mailing address, the company shall be entitled to assess a fee of \$34.50 for stopping payment on the refund check. The fee shall be deducted from the amount of the security deposit to be returned to the customer though the replacement check. No stop payment fee shall be assessed if the check was not received by the customer due to the Company's error.
- i. Pressure Test Fee. The Company shall offer to perform the pressure test required by Rule 4901:1-13-05(A)(3)(c), OAC, as a condition of reestablishing service in instances where service has been disconnected for thirty (30) days or longer. The Company may charge and collect a fee of \$80.00 for performing such pressure test, such fee to be in addition to the \$50.00 reconnection fee authorized in Paragraph 9.e of this Section. If the piping fails the pressure test, the owner of the premises shall be responsible for all necessary repairs. Upon a request by a customer for a voluntary disconnection of service to a premises, the Company shall advise the customer of the pressure test requirement that must be satisfied prior to reestablishing service and that, if the Company performs the pressure test, the \$80.00 pressure test fee will apply.
- Rules and Regulations. The Company shall be subject to the PUCO's Minimum Gas Service Standards set forth in Chapter 4901:1-13, OAC. The Company's rules and regulations governing the terms and conditions of service to customers within the corporate limits of the City shall be identical to the rules and regulations set forth in the Company's tariff filed with and approved by the PUCO, and any subsequent PUCO-approved amendments thereto; provided, however, that in the event of any conflict between the Company's PUCO-approved tariff and this ordinance (including, but not limited to, conflicts in the specified rates, charges, and fees), the terms of the ordinance shall apply.
- 12. Notice of PUCO Filings: The Company shall serve a copy of all filings made with the PUCO upon the City Manager on the date the filing is made, including, without limitation, applications for approval of special contracts, all GCR-related filings, applications to adjust the PIPP cost-recovery rider, applications to adjust

the uncollectible expense rider, applications to amend its PUCO tariff, and its annual reports to the PUCO. The Company shall provide a copy of any notice it receives from the PUCO initiating a financial and/or management/performance audit pursuant to Rule 4901:1-14-07, OAC, within three (3) business days after the notice is received.

- Company Office and Information to be Made Available to Customers. The Company shall, by notice to the City Manager, designate a place or places within the City where customers may play bills, submit complaints, and inspect copies of documents relating to the service provided by the Company. The place or places so designated may be changed at any time by written notice to the City Manager. The Company shall maintain copies of this ordinance, its PUCO-approved tariff, and all ORC statutes and OAC rules cited herein. Such documents shall be made available for inspection upon customer request.
- 14. <u>City Access to Company Financial Information</u>. The Company shall provide a copy of its annual financial statements to the City Manager within seven (7) days of availability. The financial statements shall include, without limitation, a balance sheet and statements of income, retained earnings, and cash flow.
- 15. Rates and Charges Upon Expiration of Ordinance. In the event that the City has not enacted a new ordinance to replace and supersede this ordinance upon the expiration of its term, the Company shall continue to render service to customers within the corporate limits of the City pursuant to the terms of this ordinance until a new ordinance takes effect as provided by law or until such time as the PUCO establishes rates, charges, rules and regulations pursuant to Section 4909.18, ORC, or Section 4909.39, ORC. If the Company proposes to increase in its rates and charges following the expiration of this ordinance, the Company shall so advise the City Manager in writing, and shall provide documentation supporting any such proposed increase sufficiently in advance of the expiration of this ordinance to permit the City and the Company to attempt to negotiate a mutually acceptable ordinance prior to the Company filing a 4909.18, ORC, rate increase application with the PUCO.
- 16. <u>Customer Notice</u>. The Company shall provide written notice to its customers, by bill insert or separate mailing, of the increase in rates and charges authorized by this ordinance. The Company shall submit a copy of this notice to the City Manager or the City Manager's designee for review and approval prior to distributing the notice to its customers.

SECTION 2. Repeal of Prior Ordinances. Ordinance Nos. 3147, 3157, and 3267, adopted, respectively on April 29, 2011, October 4, 2011, and March 18, 2014, are hereby repealed and superseded by this ordinance.

SECTION 3. Company Acceptance of Ordinance. If the Company accepts this ordinance, the Company shall file a written acceptance of this ordinance with the Clerk of the City within thirty (30) days after its passage by Council and this ordinance shall constitute a contract between the City and the Company. If the Company does not accept this ordinance, the Company shall file a complaint and appeal from this ordinance with the PUCO pursuant to Section 4909.34, ORC, within (30) days after its passage. If the Company does not file a written acceptance of this ordinance with the Clerk of the City within thirty (30) days after its passage and does not file a complaint and appeal from this ordinance with the PUCO within (30) days after its passage by Council, the Company shall be deemed to have accepted this ordinance and shall be bound by its terms as if it had filed a written acceptance.

SECTION 4: Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect at the earliest time allowed by law.

MAYOR MAYOR

ADOPTED: January 6, 2015

ATTEST:

CLERK OF OXFORD CITY COUNCIL

INTRODUCED BY: KEVIN MCKEEHAN

PREPARED BY: LAW

				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
ì						
:	•			•		
			attachment a			
	•		•	·	•	
		•				
				-	•	

Public Utilities Commission

Chapter 4901:1-14
Uniform Purchased Gas
Adjustment Clause

Definitions 4901:1-14-01 Purpose and Scope 4901:1-14-02 Applicability 4901:1-14-03 Reports 4901:1-14-04 Gas Cost Recovery Rate 4901:1-14-05 **Customer Billing** 4901:1-14-06 **Audits** 4901:1-14-07 Hearings 4901:1-14-08 **Tariffs** 4901:1-14-09

Note: Case No. 13-1132-GA-ORD, pursuant to Section 111.15 of the Ohio

Revised Code.

Selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the select

4901:1-14-01 Definitions No Change

For purposes of this chapter:

- (A) "Ccf" means a unit of gas equal to one hundred cubic feet.
- (B) "Commission" means the public utilities commission of Ohio.
- (C) "Commodity rate" means the portion of gas costs billed by a gas or natural gas company's suppliers (expressed in dollars and cents per Mcf, dekatherm, or BTU), which relates volumetrically to the cost of the units of gas obtained by the company for sale to its customers. For purposes of the calculations required under rule 4901:1-14-05 of the Administrative Code, "commodity rate" means the average of the commodity rates expected to be in effect during the period the new gas cost recovery rate will be in effect.
- (D) "Customer" means each billing account of a gas or natural gas company.
- (E) "Current direct cost of production" means the production and gathering expenses associated with utility production volumes from old wells which are included in accounts 750 through 769 of the "Uniform System of Accounts for Class A and B Gas Utilities," and accounts 710, 711, 713, 714, 715, 716, 717, and 719 of the "Uniform System of Accounts for Class C and D Gas Utilities."
- (F) "Demand and service charges" means the portion of gas costs billed by a gas or natural gas company's suppliers or other service providers (expressed in dollars and cents per Mcf, dekatherm, or BTU), which relates to the cost of demand, capacity reservation or use, transportation, storage, balancing, gathering and other related services which are costs to the company of obtaining the gas that it sells prior to and including the physical delivery of the gas to the company's own system to the extent such charges are not included in the "commodity rate" as defined in paragraph (C) of this rule. For purposes of the calculations required under rule 4901:1-14-05 of the Administrative Code, "demand and service charges" mean the average of the demand charges expected to be in effect during the period the new gas cost recovery rate will be in effect.
- (G) "Expected gas cost (EGC)" means the weighted average cost of primary gas supplies, utility production from old wells, and includable propane expressed in dollars and cents per Mcf and determined in accordance with the appendix to rule 4901:1-14-05 of the Administrative Code.
- (H) "Gas" means any vaporized fuel transported or supplied to consumers by a gas or natural gas company, including, but not limited to, natural gas, synthetic gas, liquefied natural gas, and propane.
- (I) "Gas company" and "natural gas company" have the meanings set forth in section 4905.03 of the Revised Code.

- (J) "Gas costs" or "cost of gas" means the cost to a gas or natural gas company of obtaining the gas which it sells to its customers. The cost of gas shall include demand, capacity, reservation or use, transportation, storage, balancing, gathering, and other related costs to the company for services rendered or supplies provided by others prior to and including the physical delivery of the gas to the company. The cost of gas does not include the cost of utility storage otherwise recovered in base rates.
- (K) "Gas cost recovery rate (GCR)" means the quarterly update, or other periodic update as approved by the commission, of the gas cost adjustment determined in accordance with the appendix to rule 4901:1-14-05 of the Administrative Code.
- (L) "Includable gas supplies" means primary gas supplies, includable propane, and utility production volumes.
- (M) "Includable propane" means propane used for peak shaving purposes, and propane used for volumetric purposes at the end of a supply period to avoid monetary penalties.
- (N) "Jurisdictional sales" means total historic, forecasted, and/or weather-normalized historic sales, less sales to customers under municipal ordinance rates, except sales under municipal ordinances which have adopted, by reference or otherwise, rates established by the commission.
- (O) "Mcf" means a unit of gas equal to one thousand cubic feet.
- (P) "New well" is either a well where drilling commenced after December 4, 1982, or an old well which is completed to a different pool after December 4, 1982.
- (Q) "Old well" is a well where drilling commenced before December 4, 1982.
- (R) "Pool" has the meaning set forth in paragraph (A)(35) of rule 1501:9-1-01 of the Administrative Code.
- (S) "Primary gas supplies" means historic, forecasted, and/or weather-normalized historic:
 - (1) Supplies of natural gas or liquefied natural gas obtained from producers, interstate pipelines, brokers/marketers, or other suppliers;
 - (2) Supplies of synthetic gas purchased under agreements approved by the commission under section 4905.303 of the Revised Code, and other supplies of synthetic gas, except short-term supplies, purchased under contracts approved by the commission;
 - (3) Supplies of gas obtained from other gas or natural gas companies;
 - (4) Supplies of gas, other than utility production volumes from old wells, obtained from Ohio producers;
 - (5) Supplies of gas made available to a gas or natural gas company under self-help arrangements;
 - (6) Special purchases of natural gas not included in short-term supplies; and
 - (7) Utility production volumes from new wells provided that such volumes are priced no higher than the price currently being paid by the utility to independent Ohio producers for gas from like wells.
- (T) "Production unit cost" means the current direct cost of production expressed in dollars and cents per Mcf.
- (U) "Purchased gas adjustment clause" has the meaning set forth in section 4905.302 of the Revised Code.

Case No. 13-1132-GA-ORD

Page 3 of 13

Published: April 7, 2014

- (V) "Reconciliation adjustment" means a positive or negative adjustment to future gas cost recovery rates ordered by the commission pursuant to this chapter.
- (W) "Supplier refund" means a refund from an interstate pipeline company ordered by the federal energy regulatory commission, or from any other supplier or service provider, including interest where appropriate, where such refund is received as one lump-sum payment or credit.
- (X) "Self-help arrangement" means an arrangement between a gas or natural gas company and a customer providing for the transportation of gas owned by the customer from the point of production to the point of consumption.
- (Y) "Short-term supplies" means all special purchases of gas, to the extent that those purchases decrease the level of curtailment to any customer or class of customers, except special purchases approved by the commission under section 4905.303 of the Revised Code. For purposes of this chapter, a special purchase decreases curtailment to a class of customers if curtailment of that class is reduced, maintained at the same level, or increased to a lesser degree as a result of the special purchase.
- (Z) "Special purchase" has the meaning set forth in section 4905.302 of the Revised Code.
- (AA) "Synthetic gas" means gas formed from feedstocks other than natural gas, including, but not limited to, coal, oil, or naphtha.
- (BB) "Total sales" means all historic, forecasted, and/or weather-normalized historic sales of includable gas supplies to retail customers. "Total sales" does not include volumes transported to consumers under self-help arrangements. For purposes of recovery of the balance adjustment, actual adjustment, and reconciliation adjustment, "total sales" does not include sales to customers for which the reverse migration rider applies.
- (CC) "Unaccounted-for gas" means the difference between the measured volume of total gas supply, which includes gas purchased, gas produced by the company, and gas received by the company on behalf of specific customers for redelivery; and the measured volume of gas disposition, which includes gas billed or redelivered to customers and gas for company use. For the purpose of this rule, unaccounted-for gas should be calculated on an annual basis for the twelve months ended August thirty-first of each year, or such other date as the company may show to be more appropriate for its system. The percentage of unaccounted-for gas should be calculated by taking the volumes of unaccounted-for gas as specified above, divided by the volume of total gas supply.
- (DD) "Unit book cost" means the cost of total sales expressed in dollars and cents per Mcf as calculated using standard accounting methods acceptable to the commission and the gas or natural gas company's independent auditors submitting the certificate of accountability as required under paragraph (C) of rule 4901:1-14-07 of the Administrative Code.
- (EE) "Utility production volumes" means all volumes of gas, other than synthetic gas, produced by a gas or natural gas company, or by a subsidiary or affiliate of a gas or natural gas company, unless the rates or charges for such production are subject to the jurisdiction of the federal energy regulatory commission.

Case No. 13-1132-GA-ORD

Page 4 of 13

Published: April 7, 2014

(FF) "Utility storage" means storage facilities operated and maintained by a gas or natural gas company, or by a subsidiary or affiliate of a gas or natural gas company, unless the charges for such facilities are incorporated in commodity rates or monthly demand charges filed with or approved by the federal energy regulatory commission or by the commission, provided, however, that no gas or natural gas company shall reflect charges for its own storing facilities or service in its own gas cost recovery rate.

R.C. 119.032 Review Date(s):	1/29/2019
Promulgated Under:	111.15
Statutory Authority:	4905.302
Rule Amplifies:	4905.302
Prior Effective Dates:	10/21/78, 1/1/80, 7/16/80, 12/4/82, 5/15/84,
	5/20/88, 10/11/91, 8/29/04

4901:1-14-02 Purpose and Scope No Change

- (A) The purpose of this chapter is to establish a uniform purchased gas adjustment clause to be included in the schedules of gas and natural gas companies subject to the jurisdiction of the commission. The provisions of this chapter establish a gas cost recovery process, which is designed to separate the cost of gas from all other costs incurred by gas or natural gas companies, to provide for each company's recovery of the cost of its includable gas supplies from its customers by means of the quarterly update (or other periodic update as approved by the commission) of the gas cost recovery rate and other provisions of this chapter and to balance the interest of retail sales customers with those of transportation customers. The provisions of this chapter also establish investigative procedures and proceedings, including periodic reports, audits, and hearings, to examine the arithmetic and accounting accuracy of the gas costs reflected in each company's gas cost recovery rate, and to review each company's gas production and purchasing policies to the extent that those policies affect the gas cost recovery rate.
- (B) The commission may, upon an application or a motion filed by a party, waive any requirement of this chapter, other than a requirement mandated by statute, for good cause shown.
- (C) The rules of this chapter supersede any inconsistent provisions, terms, and conditions of the gas or natural gas company's tariffs.

R.C. 119.032 Review Date(s):_	1/29/2019
Promulgated Under:	111.15
Statutory Authority:	4905.04, 4905.05, 4905.06
Rule Amplifies:	4905.302, 4905.303
Prior Effective Dates:	10/21/78, 2/1/80, 8/29/04

4901:1-14-03 Applicability No Change

The provisions of this chapter shall apply to all gas and natural gas companies subject to the jurisdiction of the commission except as provided in divisions (C)(4) and (D) of section 4905.302 of the Revised Code, with respect to all schedules of rates established or approved by the commission, including, but not limited to, rate schedules approved or established under sections 4905.31, 4909.19, and 4909.39 of the Revised Code. The provisions of this chapter shall not apply to municipal ordinance rates established under section 743.26 or 4909.34 of the Revised Code or Article XVIII, Section 4 of the Ohio Constitution, except in instances where a municipal ordinance adopts, by reference or otherwise, rates established by the commission.

Case No. 13-1132-GA-ORD

Page 5 of 13 Published: April 7, 2014

R.C. 119.032 Review Date(s):	1/29/2019
Promulgated Under:	111.15
Statutory Authority:	4905.04, 4905.05, 4905.06
Rule Amplifies:	4905.302, 4905.303
Prior Effective Dates:	10/21/78, 1/1/80, 10/11/91

4901:1-14-04 Reports No Change

Each gas or natural gas company subject to the provisions of this chapter shall file with the commission's docketing division quarterly gas cost recovery reports. With commission approval, the gas or natural gas company may revise the expected gas cost component of the gas cost recovery report on a monthly basis. Unless otherwise determined by the commission, the expected gas cost component may be revised, as market conditions warrant, and filed with the commission's docketing division no later than fourteen days prior to the effective date of the gas cost recovery rate. The filing interval for each such report shall be established by the commission. Each gas cost recovery report shall contain:

- (A) An updated gas cost recovery rate, determined in accordance with rule 4901:1-14-05 of the Administrative Code and its appendix;
- (B) The data and calculations used to determine the updated gas cost recovery rate;
- (C) Where appropriate, notations indicating the use of weather-normalized or forecasted sales volumes in the gas cost recovery report and/or updates;
- (D) The frequency of revisions to the expected gas cost component, the effective dates, and the dates such revisions will be filed with the commission; and
- (E) Such other information as the commission requires.

R.C. 119.032 Review Date(s):	1/29/2019
Promulgated Under:	111.15
Statutory Authority:	4905.04, 4905.05, 4905.06
Rule Amplifies:	4905.302, 4905.303
Prior Effective Dates:	10/21/78, 1/1/80, 10/11/91

4901:1-14-05 Gas Cost Recovery Rate No Change

- (A) The gas cost recovery rate equals:
 - (1) The gas or natural gas company's expected gas cost for the upcoming quarter, or other period as approved by the commission, pursuant to paragraph (K) of rule 4901:1-14-01 of the Administrative Code, plus or minus;
 - (2) The supplier refund and reconciliation adjustment, which reflects:
 - (a) Refunds received from the gas or natural gas company's interstate pipeline suppliers or other suppliers or service providers plus ten per cent annual interest; and
 - (b) Adjustments ordered by the commission following hearings held pursuant to rule 4901:1-14-08 of the Administrative Code, plus ten per cent annual interest, plus or minus;
 - (3) The actual adjustment, which compensates for differences between the previous quarter's, or other commission-approved period's, expected gas cost and the actual cost of gas during that period, plus or minus; and

4901:1-14 (Uniform Purchased Gas Adjustment Clause)

Case No. 13-1132-GA-ORD

Page 6 of 13 Published: April 7, 2014

abilistica. April 7, 201

The balance adjustment, which compensates for any under- or overcollections which have occurred as a result of prior adjustments, plus or minus.

- (B) The gas cost recovery rate shall be calculated on a companywide basis, except as provided in paragraph (C) of this rule, in accordance with the appendix to this rule.
- (C) The commission may, upon the request of any party or upon its own initiative, permit the company to calculate different gas cost recovery rates for different geographical areas. In determining whether to do so, the commission shall consider:
 - (1) Whether the geographical areas involved are contiguous;

- (2) Whether the cost of obtaining gas for each of the geographical areas involved can be separately identified;
- (3) The manner in which the geographical areas involved have been treated in the past; and
- (4) Such other factors as the commission considers appropriate.

R.C. 119.032 Review Date(s):	1/29/2019
Promulgated Under:	111.15
Statutory Authority:	4905.04, 4905.05, 4905.06
Rule Amplifies:	4905.302, 4905.303
Prior Effective Dates:	10/21/78, 1/1/80, 7/2/82, 5/20/88, 10/11/91,
	2/11/94, 8/29/04

Appendix to Rule 4901:1-14-05 Gas Cost Recovery Rate Calculation

The Gas Cost Recovery Rate (GCR) shall be determined in accordance with the formulas set forth in this appendix. For purposes of these calculations, the following subscripts shall be used:

- (1) "q" means the quarter which contains the three monthly accounting periods immediately prior to the most recently ended monthly accounting period.
- (2) "m" means each monthly accounting period in q.
- (3) "y" means the period containing the twelve monthly accounting periods immediately prior to the most recently ended monthly accounting period.
- (4) "p" means the time period between the effective date of the current Gas Cost Recovery Rate and the effective date of the Gas Cost Recovery Rate in effect immediately prior to the current rate.
- (5) "z" means the time period between the effective date of the current Gas Cost Recovery Rate and the effective date of the Gas Cost Recovery Rate in effect approximately one year prior to the current rate.
- (6) "s" means each source of primary gas supplies.

Where the calculations require the use of volumes used during a given period, and those volumes did not exist for a particular source for the entire period, or the company expects the volumes to change substantially, the company may make appropriate adjustments in its calculations and shall fully describe any adjustments in the quarterly Gas Cost Recovery Report to be reviewed in a subsequent audit. All bulk supply volumes shall be corrected to standard temperature and pressure.

(A) EXPECTED GAS COST

MANAGER CONTRACTOR OF TWO PROPERTY CONTRACTOR OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY

The Expected Gas Cost (EGC), expressed in dollars and cents per Mcf, shall be determined as follows ("V" denotes variable"):

- (1) V1 = Commodity Rate for each source of Primary Gas Supplies.
- (2) V2 = Volumes Purchased from each source of Primary Gas Supplies
- (3) V3 = Demand and Service Charges for each source of Primary Gas Supplies and each supplier of demand, capacity reservation or use, transportation, storage, balancing, gathering or other related services rendered prior to and including the physical delivery of the gas to the company's own system to the extent such charges are not included in the commodity rate as defined in paragraph (C) of rule 4901:1-14-01 of the Administrative Code.

(4)
$$\begin{array}{rcl} & j \\ & \searrow \left[\left(V1_S \times V2_{Sy} \right) + \left(V3_S \right) \right] \\ & & = 1 \\ & & \left(\text{"}j" equals the total number of primary gas suppliers} \right) \end{array}$$

- (5) V5 = Production Unit Cost
- (6) V6 = Utility Production Volumes from old wells

4901:1-14 (Uniform Purchased Gas Adjustment Clause)

TENNER, ET BESTERNER TENNER TIL SELECTION FOR THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF

Case No. 13-1132-GA-ORD

Page 8 of 13

Published: April 7, 2014

Appendix to Rule 4901:1-14-05 Gas-Cost-Recovery-Rate-Calculation (Continued)

(7) $V7 = V5 \times V6_V$

Self de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la company de la compa

- (8) V8 = Book Cost of Includable Propane
- (9) V9 = Gallons of Includable Propane
- (10) $V10 = V8 \times V9_V$
- (11) V11 = Total Sales
- (12) EGC= $(V4 + V7 + V10) \div V11_y$

(B) SUPPLIER REFUND AND RECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENT

The Supplier Refund and Reconciliation Adjustment (RA), expressed in dollars and cents per Mcf, shall be determined as follows:

- (13) V12 = Reconciliation Adjustments ordered by the commission during q
- (14) V13 = Supplier Refunds received during q
- (15) V14 = Jurisdictional Sales
- (16) V15 = $1.0550 [V12 + (V13 \times (V14_V \div V11_V))]$
- (17) V16 = V15 ÷ V14_y
- (18) V17 = V16 as used in computing the currently effective GCR
- (19) V18 = V16 as used in computing the GCR in effect one quarter prior to the currently effective GCR
- (20) V19 = V16 as used in computing the GCR in effect two quarters prior to the currently effective GCR.
- (21) RA = V16 + V17 + V18 + V19

(C) ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT

The Actual Adjustment (AA), expressed in dollars and cents per Mcf, shall be determined as follows:

- (22) V20 = Unit Book Cost of Total Sales
- (23) V21 = EGC in effect during each period m (if the EGC changed during any period m, weighted average EGC shall be used for that period)

(24) V22 =
$$\sum_{m=1}^{3} [(V20_m - V21) \times V14_m] \pm V33$$

(25)
$$V23 = V22 \div V14_V$$

Published: April 7, 2014

Appendix to Rule 4901:1-14-05 Gas Cost Recovery Rate Calculation (Continued)

- (26) V24 = V23 as used in computing the currently effective GCR
- (27) V25 = V23 as used in computing the GCR in effect one quarter prior to the currently effective GCR
- (28) V26 = V23 as used in computing the GCR in effect two quarters prior to the currently effective GCR
- (29) AA = V23 + V24 + V25 + V26
- (D) BALANCE ADJUSTMENT

The Balance Adjustment (BA), expressed in dollars and cents per Mcf, shall be determined as follows:

- (30) V27 = V22 as used to compute the GCR in effect four quarters prior to the currently effective GCR
- (31) V28 = V23 as used to compute the GCR in effect four quarters prior to the currently effective GCR
- (32) $V29 = V27 (V28 \times V14_Z)$
- (33) V30 = V15 as used to compute the GCR in effect four quarters prior to the currently effective GCR
- (34) V31 = V16 as used to compute the GCR in effect four quarters prior to the currently effective
- (35) $V32 = V30 (V31 \times V14_z)$
- (36) V33 = V29 + V32
- (E) GAS COST RECOVERY RATE

The Gas Cost Recovery Rate (GCR) shall be determined as follows:

(37) GCR= EGC + RA + AA

4901:1-14-06

Customer Billing

Effective Date: 4/17/2014

- (A) Unless otherwise ordered by the commission, the quarterly updated gas cost recovery rate filed in accordance with rule 4901:1-14-04 of the Administrative Code shall become effective on or after the thirtieth day following the filing date or as otherwise established by the commission. Revisions to the expected gas cost component must be filed no later than fourteen days prior to the gas cost recovery rate effective date and such revisions do not affect the effective date of the gas cost recovery rate. The new gas cost recovery rates may be applied to customer accounts on a service-rendered or bills-rendered basis, at the option of the gas or natural gas company. The commission may at any time order a reconciliation adjustment as a result of errors or erroneous reporting.
- (B) Except as provided in paragraph (C) of this rule, if the gas cost recovery rate changes during a customer's billing cycle and the gas or natural gas company elects to bill on a service-rendered

Published: April 7, 2014

basis, the gas or natural gas company shall apply a weighted average gas cost recovery (WGCR) rate to its customer bills. The WGCR rate shall be determined in accordance with the following:

- (1) GCR1 equals the gas cost recovery rate in effect during the first part of the billing cycle.
- (2) GCR2 equals the gas cost recovery rate in effect during the latter part of the billing cycle.
- (3) V34 equals a variable representing the total number of days in the billing cycle.
- (4) V34.1 equals a variable representing the total number of days in the billing cycle when GCR1 was in effect.
- (5) V34.2 equals a variable representing the total number of days in the billing cycle when GCR2 was in effect.
- (6) WGCR = $[GCR1 \times (V34.1 \div V34)] + [GCR2 \times (V34.2 \div V34)].$
- (C) If the gas cost recovery rate changes during a customer's billing cycle, and the gas or natural gas company elects to bill on a service-rendered basis, and if the customer's actual daily consumption is known by the gas or natural gas company, the company may, instead of applying a weighted average gas cost recovery rate, apply each gas cost recovery rate which was effective during the billing cycle to the volumes actually consumed when that rate was in effect.
- (D) Each gas or natural gas company shall indicate on each customer bill:
 - (1) The gas cost recovery rate expressed in dollars and cents per Mcf or Ccf; and
 - (2) The total charge attributable to the gas cost recovery rate expressed in dollars and cents.

R.C. 119.032 Review Date(s):	1/29/2019
Promulgated Under:	111.15
Statutory Authority:	4905.04, 4905.05, 4905.06
Rule Amplifies:	4905.302, 4905.303
Prior Effective Dates:	10/21/78, 1/1/80, 10/11/91, 8/29/04

4901:1-14-07 Audits Effective Date: 4/17/2014

- (A) The commission shall conduct, or cause to be conducted, periodic financial and management/performance audits of each gas or natural gas company subject to the provisions of this chapter and division (C)(4) of section 4905.302 of the Revised Code. Unless otherwise ordered by the commission, the audits shall be conducted annually. Except as provided in paragraph (B) of this rule and division (C) of section 4905.302 of the Revised Code, and unless otherwise ordered by the commission, each audit shall be conducted by a qualified independent auditing firm selected according to paragraphs (C) and (D) of this rule. The cost of each such audit shall be paid by the gas or natural gas company.
- (B) The commission may, upon the request of any party or upon its own initiative, conduct the audits required under this rule. In determining whether to do so, the commission shall consider:
 - (1) The number of customers served by the company;
 - The cost of employing an independent auditor;
 - (3) The availability of the commission staff to conduct the required audits; and
 - (4) Such other factors as the commission considers appropriate.

Published: April 7, 2014

- (C) Each independent auditor shall file, with the commission, a certificate of accountability as described in paragraph (E) of this rule. The certificate of accountability shall attest to the accuracy of financial data pertaining to the period of the gas cost recovery rate activity designated by the commission and reference any errors or deviations from the calculations prescribed within Chapter 4901:1-14 of the Administrative Code. Pursuant to this rule, the independent auditor shall assure the commission that:
 - (1) The costs reflected in the gas or natural gas company's gas cost recovery rates were properly incurred by the company;
 - (2) The gas cost recovery rates were accurately computed by the gas or natural gas company;
 - (3) The gas cost recovery rates were accurately applied to customer bills; and
 - (4) If the company utilized weather-normalized historic and/or forecasted volumes, the auditor shall verify that the company has reasonably applied such approach throughout the audit period.
- (D) Each gas or natural gas company, so designated by the commission, shall engage an independent auditor and/or consulting firm to conduct a management/performance audit of the company's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 4901:1-14 of the Administrative Code. The commission shall develop a request for proposal (RFP) designed to solicit responses for conducting a management/performance audit. The commission shall have the sole responsibility for sending out and accepting all responses to the RFP and shall select the company's management/performance auditor for the designated audit period. The management/performance audit report shall identify and evaluate the specific organizational structure, management policies, procedures, and reasoning of the company's existing or proposed procurement strategy. The report shall also contain management recommendations based on an evaluation of the company's performance during the pertaining to those areas designated by the commission. management/performance audit shall review any specific areas of investigation as designated by the commission and selected aspects of the company's gas production and purchasing policies to ascertain whether:
 - Company purchasing policies were designed to meet objectives of the company's service requirements;
 - (2) Procurement planning is sufficient to ensure reliable service at optimal prices and is consistent with the company's long-term strategic supply plan submitted pursuant to paragraph (H) of rule 4901:5-7-02 or paragraph (H) of rule 4901:5-7-05 of the Administrative Code; and
 - (3) The company has reviewed existing and potential supply sources.
- (E) The certificate of accountability required by paragraph (C) of this rule shall read as follows:

We have examined the periodic filings of (insert gas or natural gas company name) which support the gas cost recovery (GCR) rates for the periods ended (insert effective ending dates of GCR periods being audited) for conformity in all material respects with the financial procedural aspects of the uniform purchased gas adjustment as set forth in Chapter 4901:1-14 and related appendices of the Administrative Code. Our examination for this purpose was made in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and, accordingly, included such tests of the accounting records and such other auditing procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We did/did not make a detailed examination such as would be required to determine that each transaction has been recorded in accordance with the financial procedural aspects of Chapter 4901:1-14 and related appendices of the Administrative Code.

In our opinion, (insert gas or natural gas company name) has/has not fairly determined the GCR rates for the periods ended (insert effective ending dates of GCR periods being audited) in accordance with the financial procedural aspects of the uniform purchased gas adjustment as set

forth in Chapter 4901:1-14 and related appendices of the Administrative Code and properly applied the GCR rates to customer bills.

(If applicable) specific findings presented for the attention of the commission are attached in a separate "memorandum of findings."

R.C. 119.032 Review Date(s):_	1/29/2019
Promulgated Under:	111.15
Statutory Authority:	4905.04, 4905.05, 4905.06
Rule Amplifies:	4905.302, 4905.303
Prior Effective Dates:	10/21/78, 11/20/87, 5/15/84, 10/11/91, 8/26/04

4901:1-14-08 Hearings Effective Date: 4/17/2014

- (A) At least sixty days after the filing of each audit report required under paragraph (C) of rule 4901:1-14-07 of the Administrative Code, the commission shall hold a public hearing to review:
 - (1) The audit findings, conclusions, and recommendations; and
 - (2) Such other matters relating to the gas or natural gas company's gas cost recovery rates as the commission considers appropriate.
- (B) The gas or natural gas company shall demonstrate at its purchased gas adjustment hearing that its gas cost recovery rates were fair, just, and reasonable and that its gas purchasing practices and policies promote minimum prices consistent with an adequate supply of gas. The commission shall consider, to the extent applicable:
 - (1) The results of the management/performance audit;
 - (2) The results of the financial audit;
 - (3) Compliance by the gas or natural gas company with previous commission performance recommendations;
 - (4) The efficiency of the gas or natural gas company's gas production policies and practices; and
 - (5) Such other practices, policies, or factors as the commission considers appropriate.
- (C) The gas or natural gas company shall publish notice of the hearing required under paragraph (A) of this rule throughout its service area at least fifteen and not more than thirty days prior to the scheduled date of hearing by:
 - (1) Display ad in a newspaper or newspapers of general circulation;
 - (2) Bill message on or bill insert included with the customer bills; or
 - (3) Separate direct mailing to customers.
- (D) At least sixty days prior to the scheduled date of hearing, the gas or natural gas company shall file such facts, data, or information relating to its gas cost recovery rates as the commission requires.
- (E) Following the conclusion of the hearing, the commission shall issue an appropriate order containing:
 - A summary of the audit findings, conclusions, and recommendations; and
 - Such other information or directives as the commission considers appropriate.

4901:1-14 (Uniform Purchased Gas Adjustment Clause)

Case No. 13-1132-GA-ORD

Page 13 of 13

Published: April 7, 2014

- (F) The commission may adjust the company's future gas cost recovery rates by means of a reconciliation adjustment as a result of:
 - (1) Errors or erroneous reporting;
 - (2) Unreasonable or imprudent gas production or purchasing policies or practices;
 - (3) Unaccounted-for gas above a reasonable level. It shall be presumed that unaccounted-for gas above five per cent, calculated pursuant to paragraph (CC) of rule 4901:1-14-01 of the Administrative Code, is unreasonable, and the burden shall be on the company to prove otherwise; or
 - (4) Such other factors, policies, or practices as the commission considers appropriate.

R.C. 119.032 Review Date(s):	1/29/2019
Promulgated Under:	111.15
Statutory Authority:	4905.302
Rule Amplifies:	4905.302
Prior Effective Dates:	10/21/78, 11/14/85, 5/20/88, 10/11/91
	2/11/94, 8/29/04

4901:1-14-09 Tariffs No Change

Each gas or natural gas company subject to the provisions of this chapter shall file tariffs with the commission which incorporate this chapter in its entirety.

R.C. 119.032 Review Date(s):_	1/29/2019	
Promulgated Under:	111.15	
Statutory Authority:	4905.04, 4905.05, 4905.06	
Rule Amplifies:	4905.302, 4905.303	
Prior Effective Dates:	10/28/78	

NOTICE: The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio speaks through its published decisions. This document is provided for the convenience of the Commission's staff and the public, but is published subject to revision. Please contact the Commission's Legal Department (614-466-7702) for further information or if there appears to be an error.

APPENDIX Written Summary Information

This summary information is intended to let customers know of the existence and how to get further information orally and in writing relating to the following topics by calling, writing, or e-mailing:

Kristy Smith
Glenwood Energy of Oxford, Inc.
5181 College Corner Pike
Oxford, OH 45056
(513) 523-2555
E-mail address: Kristysmith@glenwoodenergy.com

- A. Complaint Procedures available at Glenwood Energy of Oxford, Inc. or at the PUCO;
- B. Customers Rights and Responsibilities including installation of service, payment of bills, disconnection and reconnection of service, meter testing, security deposits, rights to usage history, deferred payment plans, low-income assistance, information relating to the area's "one-call" or "call-before-you-dig" protection services, and service line responsibility;
- C. Requirements of company personnel on customer premises;
- D. Availability of rate information and alternatives upon request;
- E. A statement that customers may review a copy of the minimum gas service standards on the Commission's website or obtain a copy from the Commission upon request;
- F. Privacy Rights;
- G. Actual meter readings;
- H. Gas choice programs available to Customers, including information on slamming;
- I. If your complaint is not resolved after you have called (Glenwood Energy of Oxford, Inc.) or for general utility information, residential and business customers may call the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio (PUCO), toll-free at 1-800-686-7826 or for TDD/TTY toll-free at 1-800-686-1570, from 8 A.M. to 5:30 P.M. weekdays, or visit www.puco.ohio.gov.

The Ohio Consumers' Counsel (OCC) represents residential utility customers in matters before the PUCO. The OCC can be contacted toll-free at 1-877-742-5622 from 8 A.M. to 5 P.M. weekdays, or visit www.pickocc.org.

BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF OHIO

ta a seguina de la calega de la

In the Matter of the Application)
Of Glenwood Energy of Oxford, Inc. for) Case No. 15-210-GA-GCR
Assignment of a Gas Cost Recovery Case) .
Number, Submission to Jurisdiction of the)
Commission over Gas Cost Recovery Matters,)
And Submission of a First Gas Recovery)
Filing.)

MONTHLY GCR FILING OF GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC.

Pursuant to Chapter 4901:1-14 of the Ohio Administrative Code, Glenwood Energy of Oxford, Inc. files its Monthly Gas Cost Recovery Report establishing the gas cost recovery rate to be in effect for the period March 1, 2015 through March 31, 2015.

The gas cost recovery rate effective March 1, 2015 will be \$5.7274 per thousand cubic feet ("Mcf"). This is a decrease of \$0.0175 per Mcf from the gas cost recovery rate approved for the prior month of \$5.7449 per Mcf. This filing includes an Expected Gas Cost of \$5.9983 per Mcf. Glenwood Energy of Oxford's rates will decrease by \$0.0175 per Mcf. effective with bills rendered for service during the month of March 2015.

/s/ Richard A. Perkins

Richard A. Perkins, CPA Chief Financial Officer Glenwood Energy of Oxford, Inc. 5181 College Corner Pike Oxford, OH 45056

Tel:

(513) 523-2555

Fax:

(513) 524-3409

E-mail: richnerkins@glenwoodenergy.com

COMPANY NAME: GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC.

GAS COST RECOVERY RATE CALCULATION

PARTICULARS	UNIT	AMOUNT
EXPECTED GAS COST (EGC) SUPPLIER REFUND AND RECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENT (RA) ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT (AA) GAS COST RECOVERY RATE (GCR) = EGC + RA + AA	\$/MCF \$/MCF \$/MCF \$/MCF	5.9983 0.0000 (0.2710) 5.7274

GAS COST RECOVERY RATE EFFECTIVE DATES: March 1 through March 31, 2015

THE RESIDENCE OF THE PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND PROPERTY OF THE SECOND P

EXPECTED GAS COST SUMMARY CALCULATION

PARTICULARS	UNIT	AMOUNT
PRIMARY GAS SUPPLIERS EXPECTED GAS COST UTILITY PRODUCTION EXPECTED GAS COST INCLUDABLE PROPANE EXPECTED GAS COST	\$ \$ \$	2,846,563
TOTAL ANNUAL EXPECTED GAS COST	\$	2,846,563
TOTAL ANNUAL SALES	MCF	474,560
EXPECTED GAS COST (EGC) RATE	\$/MCF	5.9983

SUPPLIER REFUND AND RECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENT SUMMARY CALCULATION

PARTICULARS	UNIT	AMOUNT
CURRENT QUARTER SUPPLIER REFUND & RECONCILIATION ADJ. PREVIOUS QUARTER REPORTED SUPPLIER REFUND & RECON. ADJ. SECOND PREVIOUS QUARTER REPORTED SUPPLIER REFUND & RECON. ADJ. THIRD PREVIOUS QUARTER REPORTED SUPPLIER REFUND & RECON. ADJ.	\$/MCF \$/MCF \$/MCF \$/MCF	0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000
SUPPLIER REFUND AND RECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENT (RA)	\$/MCF	0.0000

ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT SUMMARY CALCULATION

ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT SUMMANTS	// 1=00 = / 121011	
PARTICULARS	UNIT	AMOUNT
CURRENT QUARTER ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT PREVIOUS QUARTER REPORTED ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT SECOND PREVIOUS QUARTER REPORTED ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT THIRD PREVIOUS QUARTER REPORTED ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT	\$/MCF \$/MCF \$/MCF \$/MCF	0.1569 (0.1934) (0.3215) 0.0870
ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT (AA)	\$/MCF	(0.2710)

THIS QUARTERLY REPORT FILED PURSUANT TO ORDER NO. 76-515-GA-ORD OF THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF OHIO, DATED OCTOBER 18, 1979.

March 16, 2015

BY: /s/ Richard A. Perkins

Richard A. Perkins, CPA

TITLE: Chief Financial Officer

SCHEDULE I

COMPANY NAME: GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC.

EXPECTED GAS COST RATE CALCULATION

DETAILS FOR THE EGC RATE IN EFFECT AS OF March 1, 2015 AND THE VOLUME FOR THE TWELVE MONTH PERIOD ENDED September 30, 2014

	DEMAND	COMMODITY	MISC	TOTAL
SUPPLIER NAME	EXPECTED GAS	EXPECTED GAS	EXPECTED GAS	EXPECTED GAS
	COST AMT (\$)	COST AMT (\$)	COST AMT (\$)	COST AMT (\$)
PRIMARY GAS SUPPLIERS				
INTERSTATE PIPELINE SUPPLIERS (SCH. I-A)				
Atmos Energy	0	2,065,062	0	2,065,062
Texas Eastern Transmission Corporation	322,483	0	154,230	476,713
Duke Energy Ohio	200,000	0	475	200,475
Columbia Gas Transmission Corporation	0	104,314	0	104,314
PRODUCER/MARKETER (SCH. 1-A)				1
SYNTHETIC (SCH. I-A)				
OTHER GAS COMPANIES (SCH. 1-B)				
OHIO PRODUCERS (SCH. I-B)		o		ol
SELF-HELP ARRANGEMENTS (SCH. 1-B)		_	0	o
SPECIAL PURCHASES (SCH. I - B)			-	ĺ
5t 25 ii 12 i 5tt 5 i 10 i 11 i 1 j				
TOTAL PRIMARY GAS SUPPLIERS	522,483	2,065,062	154,705	2,846,563
UTILITY PRODUCTION				
TOTAL UTILITY PRODUCTION (ATTACH DETAILS)		'	
INCLUDABLE PROPANE				1
(A) PEAK SHAVING (ATTACH DETAILS)				0
(B) BASE LOADING (ATTACH DETAILS)				
TOTAL INCLUDABLE PROPANE				0
TOTAL EXPECTED GAS COST AMOUNT				2,846,563

CONTROL OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE

SCHEDULE 1 - A PAGE 1 OF 4

COMPANY NAME: GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC.

PRIMARY G	AS SUPPLIER/TRA	NSPORTER	
DETAILS FOR THE EGC IN EFFECT AS OF VOLUME FOR THE TWELVE MONTH PERIOD ENDED	March 1, 2015 A September 30, 2014	AND THE	
SUPPLIER OR TRANSPORTER NAME_ TARIFF SHEET REFERENCE_ EFFECTIVE DATE OF TARIFF_	Atmos Energy Marketing Contract	RATE SCHEDULE NUMBER	
TYPE GAS PURCHASED UNIT OR VOLUME TYPE PURCHASE SOURCE	MCF	LIQUIFIED CCF X INTRASTATE	SYNTHETIC OTHER DTH
INCLUDABLE GAS SUPPLIERS			THE PARTY AND AND
PARTICULARS	UNIT RATE (\$ PER)	TWELVE MONTH VOLUME	EXPECTED GAS COST AMOUNT (\$)
DEMAND CONTRACT DEMAND CONTRACT DEMAND CONTRACT DEMAND CONTRACT DEMAND Transition Costs: Transportation Cost Rate Adjustment			
TOTAL DEMAND			<u>u</u>
COMMODITY COMMODITY COMMODITY - SST Transition Costs: Transportation Cost Rate Adjustment	3.974	519,643	2,065,062
TOTAL COMMODITY	(Hardrann - American -		2,065,062
MISCELLANEOUS TRANSPORTATION OTHER MISCELLANEOUS (SPECIFY)(EES)INJECTIONWITHDRAWAL Capacity Release - SST (System Sup)			
TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS			
TOTAL EXPECTED GAS COST OF PRIMARY SUPPL	IER/TRANSPORTER		2,085,062

NOTE: IF ANY RATE SHOWN ABOVE IS DIFFERENT THAN THE UNIT RATE REPORTED IN PREVIOUS QUARTERLY REPORT, INDICATE WITH AN ASTERISK (*) AND ATTACH COPY OF SUPPLIER TARIFF SHEET, IF TARIFF SHEET IS NOT AVAILABLE, THEN PROVIDE A DETAILED EXPLANATION.

STANTAL MARKETANIST COMMENTS OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE OF STANTAGE O

SCHEDULE 1 - A PAGE 2 OF 4

COMPANY NAME: GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC.

PRIMARY	Y GAS SUPPLIER/TR	ANSPUKIER	
DETAILS FOR THE EGC IN EFFECT AS OF	14444411111	AND THE	
VOLUME FOR THE TWELVE MONTH PERIOD ENDI	ED <u>September 30, 2014</u>	•	
SUPPLIER OR TRANSPORTER NAI	ME Texas Eastern Transmiss	sion Corporation	
TARIFF SHEET REFEREN). 2	
EFFECTIVE DATE OF TARI		RATE SCHEDULE NUME	BER
	16		and the region of the second of the
TYPE GAS PURCHAS		LIQUIFIED .	SYNTHETIC X OTHER DTH
UNIT OR VOLUME TY	PEMCF	CCF INTRASTATE	X OTHER DIM
PURCHASE SOUR	CE X INTERSTATE	INTERMOTATE	
INCLUDABLE GAS SUPPLIERS			
	UNIT	TWELVE	EXPECTED GAS
PARTICULARS	RATE	MONTH	COST AMOUNT
	(\$PER)	VOLUME	(\$)
DEMAND	0.0040	62.832	251
CONTRACT DEMAND	0.0040 3.3670	62,832	211,555
Reservation Charge, Zone 1-2	3.30/0	02,002	
Demand Tarrif	2.7220	17,076	46,481
Reservation Charge, Zone STX-AAB	0.8760	9.864	8,641
Reservation Charge, Zone ETX-AAB	1.1300	19,392	21,913
Reservation Charge, Zone WLA-AAB	0.9500	35,412	33,641
Reservation Charge, Zone ELA-AAB	0.5555		
			į.
			and the
TOTAL DEMAND			322,483
COMMODITY			
COMMODITY			ł
OTHER COMMODITY (SPECIFY)			
TOTAL COMMODITY			
MISCELLANEOUS		540.049	154,230
TRANSPORTATION	0.2968	519,643	104,200
OTHER MISCELLANEOUS (SPECIFY)			_
Prepaid Transportation			

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS			154,230
Attended Hand American			
TOTAL EVEROTED OVE DOCT OF DOMARY SIL	IPPLIER/TRANSPORTER		476,713

NOTE: IF ANY RATE SHOWN ABOVE IS DIFFERENT THAN THE UNIT RATE REPORTED IN PREVIOUS QUARTERLY REPORT, INDICATE WITH AN ASTERISK (*) AND ATTACH COPY OF SUPPLIER TARIFF SHEET. IF TARIFF SHEET IS NOT AVAILABLE, THEN PROVIDE A DETAILED EXPLANATION.

SCHEDULE I - A PAGE 3 OF 4

COMPANY NAME: GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC.

PRIMARY GAS SUPPLIER / TRANSPORTER AND THE DETAILS FOR THE EGC IN EFFECT AS OF March 1, 2015 September 30, 2014 VOLUME FOR THE TWELVE MONTH PERIOD ENDED Duke Energy Ohio SUPPLIER OR TRANSPORTER NAME TARIFF SHEET REFERENCE Contract RATE SCHEDULE NUMBER **EFFECTIVE DATE OF TARIFF** SYNTHETIC LIQUIFIED TYPE GAS PURCHASED X NATURAL X OTHER DTH CCF MCF UNIT OR VOLUME TYPE INTRASTATE PURCHASE SOURCE X INTERSTATE INCLUDABLE GAS SUPPLIERS EXPECTED GAS TWELVE UNIT MONTH COST AMOUNT RATE **PARTICULARS** (\$) (\$ PER) VOLUME DEMAND 200,000 Flat 200,000 TOTAL DEMAND COMMODITY COMMODITY OTHER COMMODITY (SPECIFY) 0 TOTAL COMMODITY MISCELLANEOUS TRANSPORTATION OTHER MISCELLANEOUS (SPECIFY) 475 474,560 Duke Energy Ohio - Odorization 0.0010 475 TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 200,475

NOTE: IF ANY RATE SHOWN ABOVE IS DIFFERENT THAN THE UNIT RATE REPORTED IN PREVIOUS QUARTERLY REPORT, INDICATE WITH AN ASTERISK (*) AND ATTACH COPY OF SUPPLIER TARIFF SHEET. IF TARIFF SHEET IS NOT AVAILABLE, THEN PROVIDE A DETAILED EXPLANATION.

TOTAL EXPECTED GAS COST OF PRIMARY SUPPLIER/TRANSPORTER

多数是一种的现在分词。 第一种的,我们就是一种的,我们就是一种的,我们就是一种的,我们就是我们的一种的,我们就是一种的人,也可以是一种的人,也可以是一种的人,也可以是一种的人,也可以是

> SCHEDULE 1 - A PAGE 4 OF 4

COMPANY NAME: GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC.

PRIMARY G	AS SUPPLIER/TRAN	SPORTER	
DETAILS FOR THE EGC IN EFFECT AS OF	March 1, 2015 ANI	THE	
VOLUME FOR THE TWELVE MONTH PERIOD ENDED	September 30, 2014		
SUPPLIER OR TRANSPORTER NAME _	Columbia Gas Transmission (Corporation through Atmos Ene	тру
TARIFF SHEET REFERENCE _	ITS Tariff	DATE OF LED II E MEMBER	
EFFECTIVE DATE OF TARIFF		RATE SCHEDULE NUMBER	
TYPE GAS PURCHASED	V NATIDAL	LIQUIFIED	SYNTHETIC
UNIT OR VOLUME TYPE	MCF		OTHER DTH
PURCHASE SOURCE		INTRASTATE	
, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,		•	
•			
INCLUDABLE GAS SUPPLIERS	A VIL 4 1946	TWELVE	EXPECTED GAS
m A mirror I II A MID	UNIT RATE	MONTH	COST AMOUNT
PARTICULARS	(SPER)	VOLUME	(\$)
DEMAND	1 (41217)	E TO See to A 17 a fee.	
CONTRACT DEMAND			
CONTRACT DEMAND CREDIT ADJUSTMENT			
CONTRACT DEMAND ADJUSTMENT			
WINTER REQUIREMENT DEMAND (5 mos.)	İ		-
WINTER REQUIREMENT DEMAND ADJUSTMENT		f	
WINTER SERVICE CONTRACT QUANTITY			
OTHER DEMAND (SPECIFY)	<u>.</u>		
		İ	
TOTAL DEMAND			. #
COLUMN CODITY			
COMMODITY COMMODITY	0,2135	488,588	104,314
COMMODITY	414144	1	·
OTHER COMMODITY (SPECIFY)	-		
OTTIER COMMODITY (OF EON 1)			
			*04.344
TOTAL COMMODITY			104,314
يشه كيست سدين م د سسيسيسين]		
MISCELLANEOUS			-
TRANSPORTATION - SUMMER			-
TRANSPORTATION - WINTER OTHER MISCELLANEOUS (SPECIFY)			1
OTHER MIGGERMAEOUS (GLEON 1)	1		
			1
TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS	***************************************		*
			464 94.
TOTAL EXPECTED GAS COST OF PRIMARY SUPPLIE	R/TRANSPORTER		104,314

NOTE: IF ANY RATE SHOWN ABOVE IS DIFFERENT THAN THE UNIT RATE REPORTED IN PREVIOUS QUARTERLY REPORT, INDICATE WITH AN ASTERISK (*) AND ATTACH COPY OF SUPPLIER TARIFF SHEET. IF TARIFF SHEET IS NOT AVAILABLE, THEN PROVIDE A DETAILED EXPLANATION.

SCHEDULE I - B PAGE 1 OF 1

OTHER PRIMARY GAS SUPPLIERS

DETAILS FOR THE EGC IN EFFECT AS OF	March 1, 2015	AND THE	
VOLUME FOR THE TWELVE MONTH PERIOD ENDED	September 30, 2014		
SUPPLIER NAME	UNIT RATE	TWELVE MONTH VOLUME	EXPECTED GAS COST AMOUNT
OTHER GAS COMPANIES			
TOTAL OTHER GAS COMPANIES			-
OHIO PRODUCERS			_
TOTAL OHIO PRODUCERS			-
SELF-HELP ARRANGEMENT TRANSPORTATION OTHER MISCELLANEOUS (SPECIFY)			
TOTAL SELF-HELP ARRANGEMENT			
SPECIAL PURCHASES			

COMPANY NAME: GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC. SUPPLIER REFUND AND RECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENT

DETAILS FOR THE THREE MON	ITHS ENDED	<u>September 30, 2014</u>
PARTICULARS	UNIT	AMOUNT
JURISDICTIONAL SALES: TWELVE MONTHS ENDED September 30, 20 TOTAL SALES: TWELVE MONTHS ENDED September 30, 20		474,560 474,560
RATIO OF JURISDICTIONAL SALES TO TOTAL SALES	RATIO	100%
SUPPLIER REFUNDS RECEIVED DURING THREE MONTH PERIOD		\$0
JURISDICTIONAL SHARE OF SUPPLIER REFUNDS RECEIVED	•	\$0
RECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENTS ORDERED DURING QUARTER		\$0
TOTAL JURISDICTIONAL REFUND & RECONCILIATION ADJ.		\$0
NTEREST FACTOR		1.0550
REFUNDS & RECONCILIATION ADJ. INCLUDING INTEREST		\$0
JURISDICTIONAL SALES: TWELVE MONTHS ENDED September 30, 20	14 MCF	474,560
CURRENT SUPPLIER REFUND & RECONCILIATION ADJ.	\$/MCF	\$0.0000
DETAILS OF REFUNDS / ADJUSTA		Douboubou 20 0044
DETAILS OF REFUNDS / ADJUSTN RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE M PARTICULARS		September 30, 2014 AMOUNT
RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE M		SEE DETAILS BELOW
RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE M PARTICULARS		SEE DETAILS BELOW
RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE M PARTICULARS SUPPLIER REFUNDS RECEIVED DURING QUARTER		SEE DETAILS BELOW \$0
RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE M PARTICULARS SUPPLIER REFUNDS RECEIVED DURING QUARTER TOTAL SUPP	ONTH PERIOD ENDED	SEE DETAILS BELOW \$0
RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE M PARTICULARS SUPPLIER REFUNDS RECEIVED DURING QUARTER TOTAL SUPP	ONTH PERIOD ENDED	SEE DETAILS BELOW \$0
RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE M PARTICULARS SUPPLIER REFUNDS RECEIVED DURING QUARTER TOTAL SUPP	PLIER REFUNDS	SEE DETAILS BELOW \$0 \$0 \$0
RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE M PARTICULARS SUPPLIER REFUNDS RECEIVED DURING QUARTER TOTAL SUPP RECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENTS ORDERED DURING QUARTER TOTAL RECONCILIATION	PLIER REFUNDS ADJUSTMENTS	SEE DETAILS BELOW \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0
RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE M PARTICULARS SUPPLIER REFUNDS RECEIVED DURING QUARTER TOTAL SUPP RECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENTS ORDERED DURING QUARTER TOTAL RECONCILIATION DETAILS OF SUPPLIER REFUNDS FOR THE TI	PLIER REFUNDS ADJUSTMENTS	SEE DETAILS BELOW \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0
RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE M PARTICULARS SUPPLIER REFUNDS RECEIVED DURING QUARTER TOTAL SUPP RECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENTS ORDERED DURING QUARTER TOTAL RECONCILIATION DETAILS OF SUPPLIER REFUNDS FOR THE TI	PLIER REFUNDS ADJUSTMENTS HREE MONTHS ENDED	\$0 September 30, 2014
RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE M PARTICULARS SUPPLIER REFUNDS RECEIVED DURING QUARTER TOTAL SUPP RECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENTS ORDERED DURING QUARTER TOTAL RECONCILIATION	PLIER REFUNDS ADJUSTMENTS HREE MONTHS ENDED	\$0 September 30, 2014

SCHEDULE III

COMPANY NAME: GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC.

ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT

DETAILS FOR THE THREE MONTH PERIOD ENDED September 30, 2014

	1 31 75-	MONTH	MONTH Aug-2014	MONTH Sep-2014
PARTICULARS	UNIT	Jul-2014	Aug-2014	Gep-201-4
SUPPLY VOLUME PER BOOKS PRIMARY GAS SUPPLIERS	DTH	9,660	9,178	13,178
	DTH	0,000		,
UTILITY PRODUCTION	DTH			
INCLUDABLE PROPANE	DTH			
OTHER VOLUMES (SPECIFY)	DTH	-		
TOTAL SUPPLY VOLUMES	DTH	9,660	9,178	13,178
SUPPLY COST PER BOOKS			A E	55.550
PRIMARY GAS SUPPLIERS	\$	77,406	67,296	92,586
UTILITY PRODUCTION	\$			
INCLUDABLE PROPANE	\$			
OTHER COST (SPECIFY)	\$			
	\$			
TOTAL SUPPLY COST	\$	77,406	67,296	92,586
SALES VOLUMES	MOE	8,235	7,453	10,197
JURISDICTIONAL	MCF	0,233	7,400	10, 137
NON-JURISDICTIONAL	MCF			
OTHER VOLUMES (SPECIFY)	MCF MCF	_	_	_
TOTAL SALES VOLUME	MCF	8,235	7,453	10,197
TOTAL SALES VOLUME			<u></u>	
UNIT BOOK COST OF GAS (SUPPLY \$ / SALES MCF)	\$/MCF	9.3996	9.0294	9.0797
LESS: EGC IN EFFECT FOR MONTH	\$/MCF	6.8080	6.1597	6.3229
= DIFFERENCE	\$/MCF	2.5916	2.8697	2.7568
TIMES: MONTHLY JURISDICTIONAL SALES	MCF	8,235	7,453	10,197
= MONTHLY COST DIFFERENCE	\$	21,342	21,388	28,111
BALANCE ADJUSTMENT SCHEDULE IV				3,639
and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and the transmit and th			LIEUT I	
PARTICULARS			UNIT \$	74,481
COST DIFFERENCE FOR THE THREE MONTH PERIOD)		— ▼ MCF	474,560
DIVIDED BY: TWELVE MONTHS SALES ENDED	September 30, 2014		\$/MCF	0.1569
= CURRENT QUARTERLY ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT			ψ/143-Ο1	**************************************

PURCHASED GAS ADJUSTMENT COMPANY NAME: GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC. BALANCE ADJUSTMENT

DETAILS FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED	September 30, 2014
PARTICULARS	AMOUNT
COST DIFFERENCE BETWEEN BOOK AND EFFECTIVE EGC AS USED TO COMPUTE AA OF THE GCR IN EFFECT FOUR QUARTERS PRIOR TO THE CURRENTLY EFFECTIVE GCR	(\$21,133)
LESS: DOLLAR AMOUNT RESULTING FROM THE AA OF (\$0.0522) / MCF AS USED TO COMPUTE THE GCR IN EFFECT FOUR QUARTERS PRIOR TO THE CURRENTLY EFFECTIVE GCR TIMES THE JURISDICTIONAL SALES O 474,560 MCF AND THE PERIOD BETWEEN THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE CURRENT GCR RATE AND THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE GCR RATE IN EFFECT APPROXIMATELY ONE YEAR PRIOR TO THE CURRENT RATE.	(\$24,772)
BALANCE ADJUSTMENT FOR THE AA	\$3,639
DOLLAR AMOUNT OF SUPPLIER REFUNDS AND COMMISSION ORDERED RECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENTS AS USED TO COMPUTE THE RA OF THE GCR IN EFFECT FOUR QUARTERS PRIOR TO THE CURRENTLY EFFECTIVE GCR.	. \$0
LESS: DOLLAR AMOUNT RESULTING FROM UNIT RATE FOR SUPPLIER REFUNDS AND RECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENTS OF \$ - / MCF AS USED TO COMPUTE THE RA OF THE GCR IN EFFECT FOUR QUARTERS PRIOR TO THE CURRENTLY EFFECTIVE GCR TIMES THE JURISDICTIONAL SALES OF 474,560 MCF FOR THE PERIOD THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE CURRENT GCR RATE AND THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF GCR RATE IN EFFECT APPROXIMATELY ONE YEAR PRIOR TO	
THE CURRENT RATE.	\$0
BALANCE ADJUSTMENT FOR THE RA	\$0
DOLLAR AMOUNT OF BALANCE ADJUSTMENT AS USED TO COMPUTE THE BA OF THE GCR IN EFFECT ONE QUARTER PRIOR TO THE CURRENTLY EFFECTIVE GCR.	\$0
LESS: DOLLAR AMOUNT RESULTING FROM THE BA OF / MCF AS USED TO COMPUTE THE GCR IN EFFECT ONE QUARTER PRIOR TO THE CURRENTLY EFFECTIVE GCR TIMES THE JURISDICTIONAL SALES OF 474,560 MCF FOR THE PERIOD BETWEEN THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE CURRENT GCR RATE AND THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE GCR RATE IN EFFECT IMMEDIATELY PRIOR TO THE	
CURRENT RATE.	\$0
BALANCE ADJUSTMENT FOR THE BA	\$0

TOTAL BALANCE ADJUSTMENT AMOUNT

\$3,639

Exhibit C Proposed Revised Tariffs

P.U.C.O. No. 1

P.U.C.O. NO. 1 OF GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC. RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING THE DISTRIBUTION, SALE, AND TRANSPORTATION OF NATURAL GAS

CANCELS

P.U.C.O. NO. 2 OF OXFORD NATURAL GAS COMPANY

Issued: September 18, 2007

Effective: October 10, 2007

Filed in accordance with the October 10, 2007 Finding and Order of the Commission in Case No. 07-1026-GA-ATA.

Effective: October 10, 2007

P.U.C.O. No. 1

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Section	Sheet
SERVICE		I	
1.	Definitions	-	4
2.	Availability		4
3.	Application for Service		4
4.	Initiation and Installation of Service		5
5.	Scheduled Appointments		5-6
6.	Turning on Gas		6
7.	Service not Transferable		6
8.	Continuity of Service		6
9.	Character of Service		6
10.	Service not to be Disturbed		6-7
11.	No Customer Shall Sell to Another		7
12.	Access to Premises		7
13.	Customer's Responsibility		7
14.	Right-of-Way and Line		7
15.	Charges and Payment for Temporary Service		7
16.	Customer Indebted to Company		7
17.	Customer Shall Satisfactorily Secure Account		8
18.	Right to Shut Off Gas		8-9
19.	Change of Address of Customer		9
20.	Information Relative to Service	•	9
21.	Reconnection of Service		9-10
22.	Complaints and Complaint Handling Procedures		10
23.	Records and Accounts		10
METERIN	G AND BILLING	II	
24.	Quantity of Gas Delivered by Meter		10
25.	Unit of Measurement		10-11
26.	Non-Metered Service		11
27.	Estimated Bill		11
28.	Correct Meter		12
29	Incorrect Meter Readings		12

Issued: September 18, 2007

Filed in accordance with the October 10, 2007 Finding and Order of the Commission in Case No. 07-1026-GA-ATA.

Issued by
GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC.
Keith G. Smith, CEO

Effective: October 10, 2007

P.U.C.O. No. 1

30.	Meter Test		12
31	Billing Periods		12
32.	Payment of Bills		12-13
33.	Change in Financial Status of Customer		13
34.	Service Lines		13
35.	Pressure Regulators		14
36.	Meter Furnished		14
37.	Meter Location		14
38.	Only Company Can Connect Meter		14
39.	Customer Piping		14
40.	Appliances		14
41.	Standards for Customer's Property		15
42.	Discontinuance of Supply on Notice of Defect		
	in Customer's Property		15
43.	No Responsibility for Material or Workmanship		15
44.	Inspection of Altered Piping		15
GENERA!		III	4.5
45.	Subject to PUCO Rules and Regulations		15
46.	Amendments		16
47.	Consumer Safeguards		16
48.	Written Summary Information		16
GAS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE		IV	
49.	Description of Service		16
50.	Gas Distribution Rates and Charges		16-17
51.	Gas Cost Recovery Rate		17
52.	GCR Over-Recovery Credit		17
53.	Mcf Excise Tax Rider		17-18
54.	Gross Receipts Tax Rider		18
55.	PIPP Gas Cost Recovery Rider		18
56.	Late Payment Charge		18
57.	Returned Check Charge		18-19
58.	Field Collection Fee		19
59.	Reconnection Charge		19
60.	Service Tap Charge		19

Issued: September 18, 2007

Filed in accordance with the October 10, 2007 Finding and Order of the Commission in Case No. 07-1026-GA-ATA.

Issued by GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC. Keith G. Smith, CEO

First Revised Sheet 3
Cancels
Original Sheet 3

P.U.C.O. No. 1

61.	Meter Test Fees		19
62.	Credit Check Processing Charge		19
62.1	Uncollectible Expense Rider		19.1
TRANSPO	ORTATION SERVICE	V	
63.	Description of Service		20
64.	Rate		20
65.	New Facilities		20
66.	Banking		20
67.	Late Payment Charge		21
68.	Additional Terms and Conditions		21
69.	Application		21
70	Title to Gas		2.1

Attachment A

Appendix

Issued: May 22, 2009 Effective: September 30, 2009

Filed in accordance with the September 30, 2009 Finding and Order of the Commission in Case No. 09-439-GA-UEX.

· 中央公司、政治等等基金的,不是是一直是有的的数据。 - "他的对话来说是我们还是不是是这个人,也是是这一个知识是是否不断是这个一个。"

SECTION I - SERVICE

1. <u>Definitions</u>. As used throughout these Rules and Regulations, the terms set for the below are defined as follows:

"Company" means Glenwood Energy of Oxford, Inc., its successors and assigns.

"Gas", "Gas Cost", and "Cost of Gas" have the same meanings as defined in Chapter 4901:1-14 of the OAC.

"GCR" means "gas cost recovery rate" as defined in Chapter 4901:1-14 of the OAC.

"Mcf" means 1,000 cubic feet.

"OAC" means the Ohio Administrative Code.

"ORC" means the Ohio Revised Code.

"PIPP" means the "percent of income payment plan".

"PUCO" or "Commission" means The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

"Self-Help Arrangement" has the same meaning as defined in Chapter 4901:1-14, OAC.

"Supplier(s)" means any pipeline, transmission company, broker, or producer supplying gas.

2. <u>Availability</u>. Available to the extent of Company's gas supply and Company's gas distribution facilities in all territory where Company's distribution facilities are located, to customers who contract for gas service under the terms and conditions stated herein, and subject to the Rules and Regulations filed by the Company from time to time with the Commission, and any subsequent revision thereof, and to the lawful orders of regulatory authorities having jurisdiction.

To the extent the Company's gas supply and Company's gas distribution facilities are available, the Company will provide natural gas service to the City of Oxford and vicinity and also to the Village of College Corner and vicinity. The rates applicable to customers domiciled in the City of Oxford and vicinity or in the Village of College Corner and vicinity will be governed by the applicable rates established by the regulatory authority having authority over the rates established for the City of Oxford .

3. <u>Application for Service</u>. All applications for service shall be made through the local office of the Company or its authorized agents.

Issued: April 8, 2015	Effective: May 8, 2015
Filed in accordance with the _	, 2015 Finding and Order of the Commission in Case No. 15-680-GA-ATA.
	Issued by GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC.
	Keith G. Smith, CEO

4. <u>Initiation and Installation of Service.</u> Where no installation of gas pipelines is required, the Company will initiate service within five business days after the Company has been notified that the customer's service location is ready for service and all necessary tariff and regulatory requirements have been met or by the requested installation date when a customer requests an installation date more than five business days after the customer's service location is ready for service and all necessary tariff and regulatory requirements have been met.

Where a new service installation requiring installation of the service line including the setting of the meter is required but does not involve a main line extension installation, the Company will initiate service either within twenty business days after the Company has been notified that the customer's service location is ready for service and all necessary tariff and regulatory requirements have been met or by the requested installation date if such a requested installation date is more than twenty business days after the customer's service location is ready for service and all necessary tariff and regulatory requirements have been met.

Where a residential and small commercial customer requests new service that requires the installation of a main line extension, the Company shall determine if the main line should be extended. If it determines to extend the main line, it shall contact the customer within thirty days with an estimate of the cost of the main line extension and the amount, if any, of a deposit and an estimated date to complete the main line extension.

Prior to initial operation or reestablishing residential or non-residential gas service (including after an outage), the Company shall conduct pressure testing or dial testing on the gas piping downstream of the meter to determine that no leaks exist. The pressure testing shall be accomplished consistent with the requirements of Rule 4901:1-13-05(A)(3), OAC.

If the Company cannot complete the requested service installation on time, it shall promptly notify the customer of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the steps being taken to complete the work, and the probable completion date. If a reschedule completion date cannot be met, the customer shall be promptly notified and if the completion date is delayed by more than five business days, written notification shall be given to the customer providing the reasons for the delay, the steps being taken to complete the work and the new rescheduled completion date.

5. <u>Scheduled Appointments With Customers</u>. The Company shall provide customers with an expected Company arrival time window of four hours or less for all appointments requiring the customer to be present. When the Company will not be able to meet a scheduled appointment, it shall

Issued: September 18, 2007

Effective: October 10, 2007

reasonably attempt to notify the customer in advance of the failure to meet the appointment and arrange a new appointment date and time.

- 6. <u>Turning Gas On.</u> The customer, after making proper application for service, shall notify the Company when he desires service to be established. In no case shall he or his agent or employee turn on the gas at the curb or meter cock.
- 7. Service not Transferable. No person may commence the use of gas until after making application therefore. Any successor in interest to a customer, including without limitation, heirs, executors, administrators, assignees, trustees, guardians, receivers, and conservators, shall be deemed to be a person who must make application for service, provided that successors in interest whose rights arise from death or incompetence of the customer shall have thirty days in which to make application.
- 8. Continuity of Service. The Company shall make reasonable provision to supply gas in sufficient quantity and at adequate or uniform pressure, but does not guarantee constant supply or adequate pressure. The Company shall not be liable in damages for failure to supply gas or for interruptions in service, and shall be relieved of its obligations to serve and may discontinue or modify service, if such failure or interruption is due to acts of God, or the public enemy, military action, wars, insurrections, riots, civil disturbances, vandalism, strikes, fires, floods, washouts, explosions, acts or orders of any civil, judicial or military authorities, failure of gas supply or gas facilities, and without limitation by the foregoing, accidents, contingencies or other causes beyond the control of the Company.

Without incurring any liability therefore, the Company may also suspend service after reasonable notice, for such period as may be reasonably necessary to make repairs to or changes in its plant, transmission or distribution systems or other property.

- 9. <u>Character of Service</u>. The Company's supply of natural gas is received principally from other gas suppliers. The heating value and specific gravity of gases received may vary between delivery points from day to day. These variations are beyond the control of the Company, which can only dispatch the gases received.
- 10. <u>Service Not to be Disturbed</u>. No customer shall attach or use any appliance which may result in the injection of air, water, or other foreign matter into the Company's lines; and, without prior approval from the Company, no customer shall attach or use any appliance which will increase or

Issued: September 18, 2007

Effective: October 10, 2007

Glenwood Energy of Oxford, Inc. First Revised Sheet 7 Cancels Original Sheet 7

P.U.C.O. No. 1

Decrease the pressure in the Company's lines intermittently to such extent as to interfere with continuous service to other customers.

- 11. No Customer Shall Sell to Another. The customer shall not supply or sell gas for use in any location or by any person other than that specified in the application for service.
- 12. Access to Premises. The Company and its authorized employees shall have access at all reasonable times to its facilities and at all of the premises in which gas supplied by the Company is used or is to be used. The Company's employees and agents seeking access to the customer's or landlord's premises shall, upon request, identify himself/herself, provide company photo and state the reasons for visit.
- by the customer on customer's side of the point of delivery, which will be the inlet side of the meter, for the service supplied or taken, as well as for the installation and appliances used in connection therewith, and will save Company harmless from and against all claims for injury or damage to persons or property occasioned by or in any way resulting from such service or the use thereof on customer's side of the point of delivery.
- 14. Right-of-Way and Line. The customer, without reimbursement, will make or procure conveyance to Company of right-of-way and installed lines satisfactory to it across property between Company's lines and the customer's property at the location where service is to be furnished, including property owned or controlled by the customer for Company's distribution mains, extensions thereof, or appurtenances necessary for or incidental to the supplying of service to the customer.
- 15. <u>Charges and Payment for Temporary Service</u>. In addition to regular payments for gas used, the customer shall pay the cost for all material, labor, and other necessary expense incurred by the Company in supplying gas service to the customer at his request for any temporary purpose or use.
- 16. <u>Customer Indebted to Company</u>. Subject to the requirements of Chapter 4901:1-17, OAC, service will not be supplied to any premises if at the time of application for service the applicant is indebted to Company for any service previously supplied at the same or other premises, until payment of such indebtedness or other arrangement satisfactory to the Company shall have been made.

Issued: April 8, 2015	Effective: May 8, 2015
Filed in accordance with the	, 2015 Finding and Order of the Commission in Case No. 15-680-GA-ATA
	Issued by
	GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC.
	Keith G. Smith, CEO

17. <u>Customer Shall Satisfactorily Secure Account</u>. Subject to the requirements of Section 4933.17, ORC, and Chapter 4901:1-17, OAC, the Company may require a customer satisfactorily to secure a new account unless other arrangements are made. A deposit of one-twelfth of the estimated charges for the ensuing twelve months plus 30% of the monthly estimated charge shall be requested at commencement of service.

With respect to small commercial customers, the Company shall establish equitable and non-discriminatory written procedures to determine creditworthiness. Upon request, the Company shall provide small commercial customers with their credit history with the Company, a copy of Rule 4901:1-13-08, OAC, the Commission's website, and local, toll-free and TDD/TTY numbers of the Commission's consumer hotline.

The Company may require a cash deposit of a small commercial customer. If so, it shall give the reason for its decision, options available to establish credit, and may allow the customer to contest the Company's decision and show creditworthiness, raise concerns with the Commission and its staff, and shall provide the customer with the Commission's website and local toll-free and TDD/TTY number of the Commission's call center.

Upon acceptance of the deposit, the Company shall furnish a receipt showing the name of the customer, the address of the premises, the billing address, a statement as to the interest rate to be paid, the length of time the deposit will be held in order to qualify for interest, and the conditions for refunding the deposits.

- 18. <u>Right to Shut Off Gas.</u> After reasonable notice, the Company shall have the right to discontinue service and the right to disconnect and remove from the premises of any consumer the meter and any other property belonging to the Company for any of the following reasons or purposes:
 - (1) Refusing access.
 - (2) Non-payment of bills for gas or transportation, when due.
 - (3) Failure to furnish or maintain required security;
 - (4) Non-use of gas or transportation service;
 - (5) Theft of service, tampering of property, or fraudulent representation or practice;
 - (6) Whenever deemed necessary by the Company for safety reasons;
 - (7) Violation of any of these Rules and Regulations, any Service Agreement, or the General Terms and Conditions applicable to any such agreement;
 - (8) Customer request;

Issued: September 18, 2007

Effective: October 10, 2007

- (9) Customer vacates premises;
- (10) When a safety hazard or emergency may threaten the health and safety of others or other property;
- (11) When the use of gas adversely affects the service of others;
- (12) Violation of law;
- (13) Failure to comply with a contract or tariff;

For residential customers, such rights shall be subject to the requirements of Chapter 4901:1-18, OAC. For small commercial customers, such right shall be subject to the requirements of Rule 4901:1-13-08(C), OAC.

Before disconnecting small commercial customers, the Company shall give the small commercial customer written notice, not less than 5 business days after the postmark date, before services is disconnected in accordance with the provisions of Rule 4901:1-13-08(D), OAC.

The Company shall follow the provisions of Rule 4901:1-13-09, OAC in the event of disconnection of service for tampering or unauthorized reconnection or for disconnection of service for fraudulent practice.

- 19. <u>Change of Address of Customer</u>. When the customer changes address, the customer shall give oral notice, followed within three (3) days by written notice, thereof to Company prior to the date of change. The customer is responsible for all service supplied to the vacated premises until such notice has been received and Company has had a reasonable time, but not less than three (3) days to discontinue service.
- 20. <u>Information Relative to Service</u>. Information relative to the service that will be supplied at a given location should be obtained from the Company. Information given orally or over the telephone shall be subject to confirmation by these Rules and Regulations and the written communications of the company.
- 21. Reconnection of Service. The Company will follow the provisions of Chapter 4901:1-18 for reconnection of service for residential customers. Unless a small commercial customer requests or agrees otherwise, the Company shall reconnect service by the close of the following regular working day after it receives full amount in arrears for which service was disconnected and receives any deposit required and any tariffed charges, and agrees with the customer on a deferred payment plan and already received a payment (if required under the plan) as well as any required deposit or tariff charges,

Issued: September 18, 2007

Effective: October 10, 2007

or the customer establishes that the conditions that warranted disconnection of service have been eliminated. Before a small commercial customer is reconnected, the Company may not require such customer to pay any amount owed but not yet past due or require such customer to pay any amount owed or overdue on other small commercial accounts where the customer has multiple small commercial accounts.

- 22. Complaints and Complaint Handling Procedures. The Company will make a good faith effort to settle unresolved disputes. It will provide a status report within three business days of receipt to the consumer and to the Commission Staff. If the investigation is not completed within ten days, the Company shall provide status reports to update the customer/consumer or update the customer/consumer and Commission Staff when investigating a complaint at five business day intervals. The Company shall inform the customer/consumer and Commission Staff of the results of the investigation either orally or in writing no later than five business days after the completion of the investigation. If requested, the final report may be reduced to writing. If the customer/consumer disputes the Company's report, the Company shall inform the consumer/customer that the Commission Staff is available to mediate complaints and the Company will provide contact information.
- 23. Records and Accounts. The Company shall maintain and retain records consistent with Rules 4901:1-13-03 and Appendix A to Rule 4901:1-9-06, OAC. The company shall keep its books and accounts and records in accordance with the Uniform System of Accounts as required by the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio pursuant to Rule 4901:1-13-13, OAC.

SECTION II - METERING AND BILLING

- 24. Quantity of Gas Delivered by Meter. Gas will be measured by a volumetric or thermal meter installed by the Company, which shall be and remain the property of the Company. Subject to certain exceptions, enumerated below, consumption shall be determined on the basis of the meter registration and bills shall reflect the consumption so registered. Any mistake in reading the registration, however, shall not affect the liability for gas consumed as determined by a corrected reading of the registration. A correction billing based upon discovery of a prior error shall be honored by the customer.
- 25. <u>Unit of Measurement</u>. The unit of measurement shall be either that quantity of gas which will occupy one (1) cubic foot at a pressure base of fourteen and seventy-three hundredths (14.73) pounds per square inch absolute (thirty [30] inches of mercury), a temperature base of sixty (60) degrees Fahrenheit, (five hundred twenty [520] degrees absolute), and without adjustment for water vapor

Issued: September 18, 2007

Effective: October 10, 2007

content. To determine the volume of gas delivered, factors such as those required for pressure, temperature, and specific gravity and deviation from Boyle's law, shall be applied; or one million British thermal units of heat as determined by an accurate device.

- 26. <u>Non-metered Service</u>. Without prejudice to its providing metered service, where warranted, the Company may provide gas light service on a non-metered basis, using for billing purposes the approximate average consumption of such appliance at the Company's current applicable rate.
- 27. Estimated Bill. When the meter is not read, the Company may estimate the quantity of gas consumed and render a bill for such quantity. All estimated bills shall at some time be followed by a billing based upon a meter reading. The Company shall obtain actual readings of its customer meters at least once every twelve months as well as at the initiation of service and the termination of service. If the Company fails to read a residential or small commercial customer's meter for any reason for any twelve month period and the Company has underestimated the customer's usage, the Company may only bill the customer for the difference between the estimated usage and actual usage under the terms of Section 4933.28, Revised Code, based upon the appropriate rates in effect at the time the natural gas was used. If the Company fails to read a residential or small commercial customer's meter for any twelve month period and the Company has overestimated the customer's usage, the Company shall credit such customer for the overestimated usage at the appropriate rate in effect at the time the natural gas was used.

A customer may request an actual meter read, without charge, if the customer's usage has been estimated for more than two of the immediately preceding billing cycles consecutively or if the customer has reasonable grounds to believe that the meter is malfunctioning. The customer also has the ability to obtain a meter read prior to transferring service to a new retail natural gas supplier or governmental aggregator.

If the Company has read the meter within the immediately preceding 70 days it shall inform the customer, when the customer contacts the Company to initiate or terminate service, of the customer's right to have an actual meter read at no charge to the customer. In a landlord/tenant relationship where neither the Company nor the customer/tenant has access to the meter, the Company shall give notice by mail to both the landlord, when the address is available, and the tenant summarizing its inability to obtain access to the meter.

Issued: September 18, 2007

Effective: October 10, 2007

P.U.C.O. No. 1

- 28. <u>Correct Meter</u>. A meter registering between 3% fast and 3% slow shall be deemed for all purposes to be registering correctly. A meter registering incorrectly shall be repaired or replaced by the Company at its expense.
- 29. <u>Incorrect Meter Readings</u>. During any period that incorrect registration can be established, the meter readings and bills based thereon shall be adjusted by the Company on the basis of all available information concerning the use of gas by the customer. If, as a result of such adjustment, overpayments or underpayments are shown to have occurred, the Company shall reimburse the customer in the amount of such overpayment; and, subject to the requirements of Section 4933.28, ORC, the customer shall pay the Company the amount of such underpayments. The Company shall continue to supply gas to the customer, and the customer shall continue to pay the amounts billed pending the adjustment.
- 30. Meter Test. Metering accuracy shall be the responsibility of the Company. The Company shall test the meter at the request of the customer using the method prescribed by the Commission. The meter will be removed from the customer's premise and tested by an outside vendor. If the meter is found to be operating within accepted tolerances (plus or minus 3%), the customer shall pay the meter test fee charged by the Company. The date of re-inspection shall be stamped on the meter. If the meter was not operating within accepted tolerances, there shall be no charge for the test or removal. This charge shall not be assessed for the first such test performed in any 36-month period. This section does not apply in the event there has been either tampering or an unauthorized reconnection of the meter or related equipment during the subject period of time.
- 31. <u>Billing Periods</u>. Bills ordinarily are rendered regularly at monthly intervals. Non-receipt of bills by the customer does not release or diminish the obligation of the customer with respect to payment thereof. Bills are due 25 days from the date of the postmark. Bills shall contain the information required by Rule 4901:1-13-11, OAC.

Meters are ordinarily read at monthly intervals.

32. <u>Payment of Bills</u>. Bills may be paid by the customer at any office of the Company during its regular office hours, to any one of the Company's authorized collecting agents during the regular office hours of such agent, or by first-class mail addressed to the Company address shown on the bill. Any remittance received by the Company by first-class mail bearing U.S. Postal Office

Issued: September 18, 2007

Effective: October 10, 2007

cancellation date corresponding with or previous to the last date of the net payment period will be accepted by the Company as within the net payment period. Upon request, the Company will provide an updated list of ways to pay bills.

- 33. Change in Financial Status of Customer. When the customer vacates the premises or becomes bankrupt, when a receiver, trustee, guardian, or conservator is appointed for the assets of the customer, or when the customer makes assignment for the benefit of creditors, the Company shall have the following rights: at the option of the Company, and after reasonable notice, the right to shut off the gas and to remove its property from the customer's premises; and the further right, independent of or concurrent with the right to shut off, to demand immediate payment for all gas theretofore delivered to the customer and not paid for, which amount shall become due and payable immediately upon such demand. For residential customers, such rights shall be subject to the requirements of Chapter 4901:1-18, OAC.
- 34. <u>Service Lines</u>. The general term "service line" is commonly used to designate the complete line or connection between the Company's main and the customer's location, up to and including the meter connection at the customer's location. It consists of two distinct parts, (a) the service line connection, and (b) the customer service line.

(a) Service Line Connection

The service line connection consists of the connection of the customer service line at the Company's line. This connection shall be made by the Company and it shall remain the property of the Company. It may include a valve for stopping the flow of any gas into the customer service line.

(b) Customer Service Line, Responsibility, Right-of-Way and Installation

The Company assumes responsibility for the initial installation of the curb-to-meter customer service line, including, if necessary, any riser. The initial installation will be paid by the customer to the Company at the Company's cost. The customer assumes responsibility for activities by the customer and the customer's agents which cause damage to the Company's equipment, the curb-to-meter customer service line or the riser and for appliances and apparatus used in conjunction with the customer's piping. The Company assumes responsibility for the repair, replacement and maintenance of the curb-to-meter customer service line, including the riser.

The customer, without reimbursement, shall furnish all necessary rights of way upon or across property owned or controlled by the customer for any and all of the company's facilities that are necessary or incidental to the supplying of service to the customer, or to continue service to the customer.

The customer, without reimbursement, will make or procure conveyance to the Company, all necessary rights of way upon or across property owned or controlled by the customer, satisfactory to the Company, for the Company's mains or extensions thereof necessary for maintenance incidental to the supplying of service to the customer in the form of Grant or instrument customarily used by the Company for these facilities.

The customer will be charged the cost for the initial installation of the entire curb-to-meter service line and equipment, including tap, risers, meters and service regulators on its side of the point of delivery (outlet of the meter); the Company will maintain the same without invoicing the customer directly. Only the Company's agents are authorized to connect the Company's customer service line to the customer's service.

Issued: April 8, 2015	Effective: May 8, 2015
Filed in accordance with the	Finding and Order of the Commission in Case No. 15-680-GA-ATA.
	Issued by
	GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC.

Keith G. Smith, CEO

35. <u>Pressure Regulators</u>. Where service is provided from low pressure lines, the Company shall furnish the necessary pressure regulator or regulators, which regulator or regulators shall remain the property of the Company.

The customer shall install and maintain, at his expense, substantial housing acceptable to the Company in size and design for the regulator or regulators and the meter in order to protect them from the weather and molestation.

If it becomes necessary to construct, operate, and maintain a heater to maintain satisfactory operation of the regulator or regulators, the gas used in such heater shall be at the expense of the customer and shall be taken from the outlet side of the meter serving the customer.

- 36. <u>Meter Furnished</u>. The Company will furnish each customer with a meter of such size and type as the Company may determine will adequately serve the property of the Company, and the Company shall have the right to replace it as the Company may deem it necessary.
- 37. <u>Meter Location</u>. The Company shall determine the location of the meter, which shall ordinarily be outside of any enclosed building and shall be accessible to the Company without the necessity of customer presence or approval.

When changes in building or arrangements therein render the meter inaccessible or exposed to hazards, the Company may require the customer, at the customer's expense, to relocate the meter setting together with any portion of the customer's service line necessary to accomplish such relocation.

- 38. Only Company Can Connect Meter. The owner or customer shall not permit anyone who is not an authorized agent of the Company to connect or disconnect the Company's meters, regulators or gauges or in any way alter or interfere with the Company's meter, regulators or gauges.
- 39. <u>Customer Piping</u>. The customer shall install, own and maintain, at the customer's expense, the customer piping from the outlet of the meter to gas burning equipment.
- 40. <u>Appliances</u>. The customer shall install and maintain all gas burning equipment at the Customer's expense.

Issued: September 18, 2007

Effective: October 10, 2007

41. Standards for Customer's Property. The customer's service line, customer piping, fittings, valves, connections, equipment venting and all associated equipment shall be installed with materials and workmanship which meet the reasonable requirements of the Company and shall be subject to inspection or test by the Company. The Company shall have no obligation to establish service until after such requirements of the Company with respect to the facilities in place at the time of the test.

The first inspection or test at any premises, including both service lines and customer piping, shall be without charge. In the case of leak, error, patent defect or other unsatisfactory condition resulting in the disapproval of the line or piping by the Company, the necessary correction shall be made at the customer's expense; and then the lines and piping will be inspected and tested again by the Company. Each additional inspection and test, when required after correction, shall be subject to a charge covering the cost thereof.

- 42. <u>Discontinuance of Supply on Notice of Defect in Customer's Property</u>. If the customer's service line, customer piping, pressure regulators, fittings, valves, connections, equipment, venting and any other associated equipment on a customer's premises are defective or in such condition as to constitute a hazard, the Company, upon notice to it of such defect or condition and reasonable notice to the customer, may discontinue the supply of gas to such customer until such defect or condition has been rectified by the customer in compliance with the reasonable requirements of the Company.
- 43. No Responsibility for Material or Workmanship. The Company is not responsible for maintenance of, or any imperfect material or defective or faulty workmanship in, the customer's service line, customer piping, pressure regulators, fittings, valves, connections, equipment, venting and any other associated equipment and is not responsible for any loss or damage arising from inadequate or improper maintenance or from imperfect material or defective or faulty workmanship.
- 44. <u>Inspection of Altered Piping</u>. It shall be the duty of the customer to notify the Company promptly of any additions, changes, alterations, remodeling or reconstruction affecting gas piping on the customer's premises.

SECTION III – GENERAL

45. <u>Subject to PUCO Rules and Regulations</u>. These Rules and Regulations are subject to and include as part thereof all orders, rules and regulations applicable to the Company from time to time issued or established by the Commission under its powers.

Issued: September 18, 2007

Effective: October 10, 2007

- 46. <u>Amendments</u>. The Company reserves the right to modify, alter or amend the foregoing Rules and Regulations and to make such further and other rules and regulations as experience may suggest as the Company may deem necessary or convenient in the conduct of its business, and as the Commission may approve.
- 47. <u>Consumer Safeguards.</u> The Company shall maintain a listing including the 24-hour emergency number in each local telephone service provider's directory operating in the Company's service territory. The Company shall not commit any unfair or deceptive acts or practices in connection with the promotion or provision of service. The Company shall only disclose a customer's account number or social security number without the customer's written consent for natural gas company credit evaluation, collections, and/or credit reporting or pursuant to a court order or subpoena. Upon customer request, the Company shall timely provide twelve months of a customer's usage history and twenty-four months of a customer's payment history to the customer.
- 48. Written Summary Information. The Company shall provide to new customers and to existing customers who request it, a written summary information dealing with who to contact concerning different rights and responsibilities. Pursuant to Rule 4901:1-13-06, OAC, this written summary information is contained in an appendix to this tariff.

SECTION IV - GAS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

49. <u>Description of Service</u>. Applicable for gas service from existing distribution lines of Company having sufficient capacity therefore, to customers at one location who will guarantee payment of the minimum monthly charge for a term of twelve consecutive months. Company shall have the right to curtail deliveries of gas hereunder whenever and to the extent necessary in its sole judgment for the protection of service to its human needs customers. Company shall not be required to furnish gas service hereunder to any customer or applicant except by written application for gas service by the customer to Company.

50. Gas Distribution Rates and Charges.

The gas distribution rates and charges set forth below have been superseded by the rates and charges established by the City of Oxford's most recent Ordinance which is attached to this tariff. Those rates and charges established by the City of Oxford's most recent Ordinance which is attached to this tariff also apply to the Village of College Corner and vicinity. Other rates and charges that do not appear in this tariff have also been established by the City of Oxford.

Monthly Customer Charge

\$6.50 per meter per month charged to each customer regardless of the amount of gas if any, consumer during the month; provided,

Issued: April 8, 2015	Effective: May 8, 2015
Filed in accordance with the _	, 2015 Finding and Order of the Commission in Case No. 15-680-GA-ATA
	Issued by
	GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC.
	Keith G. Smith, CEO

		however, that the customer charge shall not be imposed in any month in which there is no consumption as a result of a voluntary request by the customer for the shut-off of the meter.
General Service Rate	-	A volumetric base rate of \$2.39 per MCF of gas delivered shall be charged to all general service customers.
Self-Help Arrangements	-	Nothing shall prevent the Company from entering into self-help arrangements with customers to provide for the transportation of gas owned by the customer to the customer's premises. All such special contracts must be filed and approved by the Commission.

- 51. <u>Gas Cost Recovery ("GCR") Rate.</u> In addition to the rates and charges set forth above and below, the Company shall also be entitled to recover the cost of obtaining gas it sells to its customers through a GCR rate, which shall comply, in all respects, with the rules governing GCR rates set forth in Chapter 4901:1-14, OAC, and with the Commission's Opinion and Order in Case Nos. 06-350-GA-CMR and 06-521-GA-GCR. Chapter 4901:1-14,OAC, is attached to this tariff as Attachment A.
- 52. GCR Over-Recovery Credit. The general service rate set forth in Paragraph 50 of Section IV shall be offset by a credit of \$0.20 per Mcf to effectuate the refund of certain past GCR over-recoveries in accordance with the Commission's Opinion and Order in Case No. 06-350-GA-CMR and 06-521-GA-GCR. This rider amount will decrease to \$0.00 when the total refund has been completed in accordance with the terms approved in the Commission's Opinion and Order in Case Nos. 06-350-GA-CMR and 06-521-GA-GCR.
- 53. <u>Mcf Excise Tax Rider</u>. In addition to all other rates and charges, all gas consumed shall be subject to an Mcf tax rider to provide for the recovery of the Company's excise tax liability under Section 5727.811, ORC.

Issued: May 22, 2009

Effective: September 30, 2009

Filed in accordance with the September 30, 2009 Finding and Order of the Commission in Case No. 09-439-GA-UEX.

Bearing and a second second second second second second second second second second second second second second

P.U.C.O. No. 1

A rate of \$.0411 per Mcf shall be applicable to all volumes delivered, except volumes statutorily exempted from the tax or to flex customers, to recover the tax on natural gas distribution pursuant to Section 5727.811, ORC.

Flex Customers

All bills rendered to a flex customer as defined by Section 5727.80(N), ORC, shall be adjusted to provide for recovery of the Mcf excise tax at the rate of \$.02 per Mcf on all volumes delivered.

54. <u>Gross Receipts Tax Rider</u>. In addition to all other rates and charges, amounts billed by the Company shall be subject to a rider at the Company's effective gross receipts tax rate to provide for the recovery of the Company's gross receipts tax liability under Section 5727.25, ORC.

The Gross Receipts Tax Rider is applicable to all charges billed by the Company, including miscellaneous charges and all applicable rider rates, except that this rider shall not be billed to those customers statutorily exempted from the payment of gross receipts taxes.

All bills rendered shall be adjusted to include the effect of the Ohio excise tax on gross receipts billings at a rate of 4.9032%.

- 55. <u>PIPP Cost Recovery Rider</u>. In addition to all other rates and charges, the Company shall be entitled to recover, through a rider, the cost associated with the PIPP program. Such rider is to be calculated and adjusted in accordance with the order of the Commission in Case No. 02-2297-GA-PIPP. Customers receiving service shall pay an additional amount per Mcf for the recovery of PIPP costs. The current PIPP charge is \$0.0293 per Mcf.
- 56. <u>Late Payment Charge</u>. If a bill payment is not received in the Company's offices or by the Company's authorized agent within 25 days of the date of the invoice, an additional amount of 5% of the unpaid balance will become due and payable as a part of the customer's total obligation. The Company will notify customers of the amount that will be due in the event the customer fails to make timely payment by utilizing a net/gross bill format. The late payment charge shall not be applicable to the unpaid balances of any customer enrolled in PIPP or a payment plan pursuant to Rule 4901:1-18-04, OAC.
- 57. <u>Returned Check Charge</u>. Where the customer's financial institution returns a customer's check for insufficient funds, the Company shall assess a return check charge of the lesser of

Issued: November 22, 2013 Effective: January 7, 2014

Filed under authority of the Commission in Case No. 13-2254-GA-PIP.

Issued by
GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC.

John Stenger, Chief Operating Officer

Krith G Sunt, C E0

Effective: October 10, 2007

\$25.00 or the amount actually charged the Company by its bank for dishonored checks. However, this charge will not be assessed if the customer establishes that the cause of the dishonored check was bank error.

- 58. Field Collection Fee. Where a Company employee is dispatched to a customer's premises to disconnect service for non-payment, the customer may avoid disconnection by paying the full amount owed. However, the Company may assess a \$15.00 field collection charge for accepting such payment. This charge may be assessed either at the time the delinquent amount is collected or on a subsequent bill.
- 59. Reconnection Charge. Where the Company has actually disconnected service to a customer premises, the Company may assess and collect a reconnection charge of \$40.00 as a condition for reconnecting service to said premises, regardless of the length of time the service was disconnected and regardless whether the disconnection was voluntary or involuntary. If service was disconnected as a result of unauthorized or fraudulent use by the customer, the Company may, in addition to the \$40.00 reconnection charge, also impose a charge to recover any actual expense incurred by the Company as a result of such unauthorized or fraudulent use, including an estimate of the cost of gas improperly used, prior to restoring service to said customer.
- 60. <u>Service Tap Charge</u>. Applicants applying for a new tap on the Company's system shall be assessed a service tap charge of \$500.00 for single family residences and \$1,000.00 for multifamily and commercial premises, or the actual cost of installing the new tap, whichever is less.
- 61. Meter Test Fee. The Company shall test the meter at the request of the customer using the method prescribed by the Commission. The meter will be removed from the customer's premise and tested by an outside vendor. If the meter is found to be operating within accepted tolerances (plus or minus the 3%), the customer shall pay the meter test fee of \$62.50 for such a test. The date of reinspection shall be stamped on the meter. However, this charge will not be assessed if the meter was not operating within plus or minus three percent nor shall it be assessed if it is the first test performed in any 36-month period.
- 62. <u>Credit Check Processing Charge</u>. The Company may impose a charge of \$10.00 when making a credit check for a customer who applies to have service initiated.

Issued: September 18, 2007

Glenwood Energy of Oxford, Inc.

Second Revised Sheet 19.1 Cancels First Revised Sheet 19.1

P.U.C.O. No. 1

62.1 <u>Uncollectible Expense Rider</u>. In addition to the above rates, a charge of \$0.0459 per Mcf will be applied to all gas consumed pursuant to this rate schedule to recover the cost associated with uncollectible accounts of those Customers subject to Uncollectible Expense Riders. The Company will file an application with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio requesting approval to change this charge if the Company determines that the annual uncollectible expense has increased or decreased by more than ten percent compared to the uncollectible expense experience during the annual period upon which the current charge is based.

Issued: September 5, 2013

Effective: September 30, 2013

Filed in accordance with the September 18, 2013 Finding and Order of the Commission in Case No. 13-310-GA-UEX.

SECTION V - TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

63. <u>Description of Service</u>. This service consists of delivery of customer-owned or supplied natural gas volumes injected by the customer into the Company's facilities, with no assurance of continued delivery of natural gas from general system supply in the event of interruption of the customer's supply.

64. Rate.

For all MCF transported/month

\$2.39/Mcf

This rate does not reflect any sale of gas from the Company to the customer, but are agreed transportation charges. In the event the rate of applicable taxes already included in the transportation service charge are increased or decreased, or new taxes applicable to the transportation of natural gas are imposed, the customer's rate shall be adjusted upward or downward to reflect such tax increases, tax decreases or new taxes.

The Company, at its sole discretion, may offer the transportation service specified above at rates that are downwardly flexible from the maximum rates above. Such reduced rates will be determined based on competitive services available to the customer and the Company's need to achieve load preservation or the economic recovery of costs of the Company.

- 65. New Facilities. Where necessary, and after the customer agrees, the Company will construct all additions, replacements or betterments of its facilities in order to accommodate the volumes of gas delivered to and by the Company on the customer's behalf; the Company will bill the customer for the cost thereof; and the customer agrees to pay such costs within 30 days after receipt of the Company's bill, or as the parties may otherwise agree. The Company shall own all or part of the customer's service line contained within the customer's property at the location where service is to be furnished.
- 66. <u>Banking</u>. The Company will not be required for any period of time to bank any gas that is delivered to the Company for the account of the customer and which is not consumed by the customer. In the event the customer uses in any billing period natural gas in excess of the customer-owned or supplied volumes, the excess volumes shall be billed to the customer at the actual cost to the Company, not to exceed the then applicable rate .for gas distribution service as provided in Section IV of these Rules and Regulations.

Issued: September 18, 2007

Effective: October 10, 2007

- 67. <u>Late Payment Charge</u>. If a bill payment is not received in the Company's offices or by the Company's authorized agent within 25 days of the date of the invoice, an additional amount of 5% of the unpaid balance will become due and payable as a part of the customer's total obligation. The Company will notify customers of the amount that will be due in the event the customer fails to make timely payment by utilizing a net/gross billing format.
- 68. Additional Terms and Conditions. Transportation service is available to the extent of the Company's gas distribution facilities in all territory where the Company's distribution facilities may be located, to customers who apply for gas service under the terms and conditions stated herein, and subject to the Company's utility service obligations to its distribution customers, to law, to the applicable Rules, Regulations and Rates filed by the Company from time to time with the Commission and any subsequent revision thereof, and to the lawful orders and applicable gas transportation guidelines of regulatory authorities having jurisdiction.
- 69. <u>Application</u>. The company shall not be required to furnish transportation service hereunder to any customer or applicant except by written application for transportation service between the Company and the customer setting forth the following information:
- (a) The name, address, and telephone number of the customer.
- (b) The nature and extent of any interest which each party to the arrangement holds in any other party to the arrangement, or in any public utility subject to the jurisdiction of the Commission.
- (c) The location of the intended points of delivery to the customer.
- (d) Minimum and maximum volumes and nominating procedures for transportation service.
- 70. <u>Title to Gas</u>. The customer warrants the title to the gas delivered to the Company and covenants and agrees to indemnify the Company for and save it harmless from all suits, actions, debts, accounts, damages, costs, losses and expenses arising from or attributable to the adverse claims of any and all other persons or parties to such gas.

Issued: September 18, 2007

Effective: October 10, 2007

ORDINANCE NO. 3298

AN ORDINANCE TO REGULATE THE RATES AND CHARGES TO BE CHARGED AND COLLECTED AND THE SERVICES TO BE RENDERED BY GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC., ITS SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, FOR GAS AND GAS SERVICE FURNISHED TO ALL OF ITS CUSTOMERS WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF OXFORD DURING THE PERIOD ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2018, AND REPEALING AND SUPERSEDING ORDINANCE NOS. 3147, 3157, AND 3267, WHICH, TOGETHER, PREVIOUSLY REGULATED SUCH RATES, CHARGES, AND SERVICES.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OXFORD, BUTLER COUNTY, STATE OF OHIO, THAT:

SECTION 1: Rates, Charges, Rules, and Regulations. The rates and charges to be charged and collected and the rules and regulations governing services to be rendered by Glenwood Energy of Oxford, Inc., its successors and assigns, for gas and gas service furnished to all of its customers within the limits of the City of Oxford during the period ending February 28, 2018 shall be as set forth in this ordinance, which is hereby adopted pursuant to Article XVIII, Section 4 of the Ohio Constitution and Section 4909.34 of the Ohio Revised Code.

- 1. <u>Definitions.</u> The following definitions shall apply in the interpretation and enforcement of this ordinance unless the context clearly shows a different meaning is intended.
 - "City" means City of Oxford, Ohio.
 - "City Manager" means the city manager of the City of Oxford, Ohio.
 - "Company" means Glenwood Energy of Oxford, Inc., its successors and assigns.
 - "Council" means City Council of the City of Oxford, Ohio.
 - "Gas," "gas costs," and "cost of gas" have the same meanings as defined in Chapter 4901:1-14, OAC.
 - "GCR" means "gas cost recovery rate" as defined in Chapter 4901:1-14, OAC.
 - "Mcf" means one thousand cubic feet.
 - "OAC" means the Ohio Administrative Code.
 - "ORC" means the Ohio Revised Code.

"PIPP" means the "percent of income payment plan" as set forth in Chapter 4901:1-18, OAC.

"PUCO" means the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

"Self-Help Arrangement" has the same meaning as defined in Chapter 4901:1-14, OAC.

- 2. <u>Authorized Gas Distribution Rates and Charges.</u> Effective with bills rendered on or after March 1, 2015 through the bills for the monthly service period ending February 28, 2018, the Company shall charge the following rates and charges for delivering gas to its customers within the City limits:
 - a. Monthly Customer Charge. The Company shall charge a fixed monthly customer charge of \$8.00 per meter per month to each customer regardless of the amount of gas if, any, consumed during the month; provided, however, that the customer charge shall not be imposed in any month in which there is no consumption as a result of a voluntary request by the customer for the shutoff of the meter.
 - b. <u>General Service Rate</u>. The Company shall charge a base distribution rate of \$3.03 per Mcf of gas delivered to all general service customers.
 - c. <u>Self-Help Arrangements.</u> Nothing contained in this ordinance shall prevent the Company from entering into self-help arrangements with customers to provide for the transportation of gas owned by the customer to the customer's premises; provided, however, that all such special contracts must be filed with and approved by the PUCO pursuant to Section 4905.31, ORC.
- Gas Cost Recovery Rate. In addition to the rates and charges for gas distribution 3. service set forth in Section 1.2 above, the Company shall be entitled to recover the cost of obtaining the gas it sells to its customers through a GCR rate, which shall be subject to the jurisdiction of, and regulated by, the PUCO. As provided in Ordinance No. 3147, and in accordance with the PUCO's September 19, 2007 Opinion and Order in its Case Nos. 06-350-GA-CMR and 06-521-GA-GCR, the Company shall be authorized to include as an expected gas cost eligible for recovery though the GCR rate under Rule 4901:1-14-05, OAC, the amount of the actual, invoiced fixed charges imposed by Duke Energy Ohio in connection with the Company's use of the Duke Energy Ohio's transportation pipeline to transport gas from the Millville Station to the Company's Oxford city gate, up to a maximum of \$200,000 per year. Any such Duke Energy Ohio charges in excess of \$200,000 annually shall not be included by the Company as a cost of gas and shall not be proposed for recovery through the GCR rate. If the arrangement under which the Company transports gas from the Millville Station to the Company's city gate changes during the term of this ordinance, the Company may

continue to include the amount of any actual, invoiced fixed charges or, if applicable, capital costs associated with this pipeline as an expected gas cost eligible for recovery through the GCR rate; provided, however that the amount proposed for recovery through the GCR rate shall be limited as necessary to fairly allocate the total charges or costs between the Company's GCR customers and other customers served through the pipeline on a relative throughput basis. The Company shall provide the City Manager with documentation supporting such charges or costs and the allocation methodology prior to including the cost as an expected gas cost in its GCR filings with the PUCO. The Company shall be subject to PUCO financial and management/ performance audits relating to its GCR calculations and its gas procurement practices as provided in Rule 4901:1-14-07, OAC.

- 4. <u>Mcf Tax Rider</u>. In addition to all other rates and charges set forth in this section, all gas consumed shall be subject to an Mcf tax rider to provide for the recovery of the Company's excise tax liability under Section 5727.811, ORC.
- 5. Gross Receipts Tax Rider. In addition to all other rates and charges set forth in this section, amounts billed by the Company shall be subject to a rider at the Company's effective gross receipts tax rate to provide for the recovery of the Company's gross receipts tax liability under Section 5727.25, ORC.
- Pipeline Relocation Rider. In addition to all other rates and charges set forth in 6. this section, all gas consumed shall be subject to the Pipeline Relocation Rider of \$0.2406 per Mcf of gas delivered to recover the actual costs incurred by the Company, including the actual carrying costs, associated with moving its natural gas pipeline to accommodate the relocation of US Rt. 27. Pursuant to Ordinance No. 3267, the Pipeline Relocation Rider was implemented effective with bills rendered on or after May 1, 2014 and said rider shall remain in effect through the bills for the monthly service period ending April 30, 2019 or until the costs are fully recovered, whichever first occurs. This Pipeline Relocation Rider shall be the exclusive mechanism for recovery of the costs associated with moving the natural gas pipeline, and the Company shall not be entitled to include said costs in the revenue requirement used to determine rates and charges in any subsequent City rate ordinance or in any proceeding before the PUCO. Commencing in 2014, the reduction in annual pro forma tax expense resulting from the investment associated with moving the pipeline that would otherwise be recognized in determining the General Service Rate revenue requirement shall be quantified by the Company and shall be credited to customers through an adjustment to the Pipeline Relocation Rider rate, such adjustment to be effective with the bills for the monthly service period ending May 31 of the year following the tax year. The Company shall provide documentation to the City Manager showing the calculation of the credit no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the date of the annual adjustment.

- 7. <u>PIPP Cost-Recovery Rider</u>. In addition to all other rates and charges set forth in this section, the Company shall be entitled to recover the costs associated with the PIPP program through a PIPP cost-recovery rider, which shall be subject to the jurisdiction of, and regulated by, the PUCO.
- 8. <u>Uncollectible Expense Rider</u>: In addition to all other rates and charges set forth in this section, the Company shall be entitled to recover its uncollectible expense through an uncollectible expense rider, which shall be subject to the jurisdiction of, and regulated by, the PUCO.
- Tax Change Adjustments. If, during the term of this ordinance, a governmental 9. authority imposes a new tax, removes an existing tax, or increases or reduces the rate of an existing tax, the effect of which is to increase or reduce the annual tax liability of the Company, the Company shall be entitled to adjust the rates authorized in this section by implementing a new rider or, if applicable, eliminating or adjusting an existing rider, calculated so as to produce the pro forma annual revenues that will reflect the increase or decrease in the Company's annual tax liability. This provision does not apply to changes in the property tax rates or liability. A rider implemented or adjusted pursuant to this provision may be rounded to nearest one-quarter (\$0.0025) cent per Mcf. The Company shall provide written notice to the City Manager of its intent to implement any such new rider or adjust or eliminate an existing rider, and of the proposed effective date of such rate change, said notice to be provided no later than thirty (30) days prior to the proposed effective date of the rate change. The written notice shall include all documentation, information, and calculations relied on by the Company to support the proposed rate change. The City shall, upon notice to the Company, be entitled to inspect any Company books or records as may be necessary to verify the accuracy of the proposed change. No rate change as described herein shall become effective until the City Manager advises the Company that the City finds the proposed rate change to be a tax-related change of the type contemplated by this provision and that the proposed rate has been properly calculated; provided, however, if the City Manager does not so inform the Company within fourteen (14) days of receipt of the written notice, the rate change shall take effect automatically as of the proposed effective date.
- 10. <u>Miscellaneous Charges</u>. In addition to all other rates and charges set forth in this section, the Company shall be entitled to impose the following charges:
 - a. <u>Late Payment Charge</u>. If a bill payment is not received in the Company's offices or by the Company's authorized agent within twenty-five (25) days of date of the invoice, an additional amount of one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the unpaid balance will be assessed on the customer's subsequent bill. This charge is not applicable to the unpaid account balances of a customer enrolled in PIPP or a payment plan pursuant to Rule 4901:1-18-04, OAC.

- b. Returned Check Charge. Where the customer's financial institution returns a customer's check for insufficient funds, the Company shall assess a returned check charge of \$25.00; provided, however, that this charge will not be assessed if the customer establishes that the cause of the dishonored check was bank error.
- c. <u>Credit Check Processing Charge</u>. The Company may impose a charge of \$15.00 for a credit check on an applicant for service..
- d. <u>Field Collection Fee.</u> Where a Company employee is dispatched to a customer's premises to disconnect service for nonpayment, the customer may avoid disconnection by paying the full amount owed; provided, however, that the Company may assess a \$20.00 field collection charge for accepting such payment. This charge may be assessed either at the time the delinquent amount is collected or on a subsequent bill.
- Reconnection Charge. Where service to a premises has been e. disconnected by the Company by shutting off the meter, the Company may charge and collect a reconnection charge of \$50.00 as a condition of restoring service to the premises. The reconnection charge shall apply without regard to the length of time the service was disconnected, whether the disconnection was voluntary or involuntary, or whether the customer requesting reconnection is the same customer as the customer at the time service to the premises was disconnected. Upon a request by a customer for a voluntary disconnection of service to a premises, the Company shall advise the customer that the \$50.00 reconnection charge will apply if service is subsequently restored. If service was disconnected as a result of unauthorized or fraudulent use by the customer, the Company may impose, in addition to the \$50.00 reconnection charge, a charge to recover any actual expense incurred by the Company as a result of such unauthorized or fraudulent use, including an estimate of the cost of gas improperly used prior to reconnecting service.
- f. New Service Tap Charge. Applicants applying for a new tap on the Company's system shall be assessed a new service tap charge of \$850.00 for single-family residences and \$1,200.00 for multi-family and commercial premises, or the actual cost of the installing the new tap, whichever is less. The Company shall provide documentation to an applicant for a new service tap showing the actual cost of installing the new tap in as a part of, on in conjunction with, the bill on which the charge is assessed.
- g. Meter Test Fee. Upon request by a customer, the Company shall test the accuracy of the meter by removing the meter and engaging a independent outside vendor to perform the test. The Company shall assess a fee of \$75.00 for the meter test; provided, however, that this fee will not be

assessed if the meter is not found to be operating within accepted tolerances (plus or minus the 3%), nor shall it be assessed for the first meter test performed in any 36-month period.

February - Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of

- h. Stop Payment Fee Return of Security Deposit. Upon notification by a customer entitled to the return of all or part of a security deposit held by the Company pursuant to Rules 4901:1-17-04 through 4901:1-17-07, OAC, that the refund check has been lost or has not been received, the Company shall promptly notify its bank to stop payment on the check. If the check was lost by the customer, or was not received by the customer due to the customer's failure to notify the company of a change in the customer's mailing address, the company shall be entitled to assess a fee of \$34.50 for stopping payment on the refund check. The fee shall be deducted from the amount of the security deposit to be returned to the customer though the replacement check. No stop payment fee shall be assessed if the check was not received by the customer due to the Company's error.
- Pressure Test Fee. The Company shall offer to perform the pressure test required by Rule 4901:1-13-05(A)(3)(c), OAC, as a condition of reestablishing service in instances where service has been disconnected for thirty (30) days or longer. The Company may charge and collect a fee of \$80.00 for performing such pressure test, such fee to be in addition to the \$50.00 reconnection fee authorized in Paragraph 9.e of this Section. If the piping fails the pressure test, the owner of the premises shall be responsible for all necessary repairs. Upon a request by a customer for a voluntary disconnection of service to a premises, the Company shall advise the customer of the pressure test requirement that must be satisfied prior to reestablishing service and that, if the Company performs the pressure test, the \$80.00 pressure test fee will apply.
- Rules and Regulations. The Company shall be subject to the PUCO's Minimum Gas Service Standards set forth in Chapter 4901:1-13, OAC. The Company's rules and regulations governing the terms and conditions of service to customers within the corporate limits of the City shall be identical to the rules and regulations set forth in the Company's tariff filed with and approved by the PUCO, and any subsequent PUCO-approved amendments thereto; provided, however, that in the event of any conflict between the Company's PUCO-approved tariff and this ordinance (including, but not limited to, conflicts in the specified rates, charges, and fees), the terms of the ordinance shall apply.
- 12. Notice of PUCO Filings: The Company shall serve a copy of all filings made with the PUCO upon the City Manager on the date the filing is made, including, without limitation, applications for approval of special contracts, all GCR-related filings, applications to adjust the PIPP cost-recovery rider, applications to adjust

the uncollectible expense rider, applications to amend its PUCO tariff, and its annual reports to the PUCO. The Company shall provide a copy of any notice it receives from the PUCO initiating a financial and/or management/performance audit pursuant to Rule 4901:1-14-07, OAC, within three (3) business days after the notice is received.

- Company Office and Information to be Made Available to Customers. The Company shall, by notice to the City Manager, designate a place or places within the City where customers may play bills, submit complaints, and inspect copies of documents relating to the service provided by the Company. The place or places so designated may be changed at any time by written notice to the City Manager. The Company shall maintain copies of this ordinance, its PUCO-approved tariff, and all ORC statutes and OAC rules cited herein. Such documents shall be made available for inspection upon customer request.
- 14. <u>City Access to Company Financial Information</u>. The Company shall provide a copy of its annual financial statements to the City Manager within seven (7) days of availability. The financial statements shall include, without limitation, a balance sheet and statements of income, retained earnings, and cash flow.
- 15. Rates and Charges Upon Expiration of Ordinance. In the event that the City has not enacted a new ordinance to replace and supersede this ordinance upon the expiration of its term, the Company shall continue to render service to customers within the corporate limits of the City pursuant to the terms of this ordinance until a new ordinance takes effect as provided by law or until such time as the PUCO establishes rates, charges, rules and regulations pursuant to Section 4909.18, ORC, or Section 4909.39, ORC. If the Company proposes to increase in its rates and charges following the expiration of this ordinance, the Company shall so advise the City Manager in writing, and shall provide documentation supporting any such proposed increase sufficiently in advance of the expiration of this ordinance to permit the City and the Company to attempt to negotiate a mutually acceptable ordinance prior to the Company filing a 4909.18, ORC, rate increase application with the PUCO.
- 16. <u>Customer Notice</u>. The Company shall provide written notice to its customers, by bill insert or separate mailing, of the increase in rates and charges authorized by this ordinance. The Company shall submit a copy of this notice to the City Manager or the City Manager's designee for review and approval prior to distributing the notice to its customers.

SECTION 2. Repeal of Prior Ordinances. Ordinance Nos. 3147, 3157, and 3267, adopted, respectively on April 29, 2011, October 4, 2011, and March 18, 2014, are hereby repealed and superseded by this ordinance.

SECTION 3. Company Acceptance of Ordinance. If the Company accepts this ordinance, the Company shall file a written acceptance of this ordinance with the Clerk of the City within thirty (30) days after its passage by Council and this ordinance shall constitute a contract between the City and the Company. If the Company does not accept this ordinance, the Company shall file a complaint and appeal from this ordinance with the PUCO pursuant to Section 4909.34, ORC, within (30) days after its passage. If the Company does not file a written acceptance of this ordinance with the Clerk of the City within thirty (30) days after its passage and does not file a complaint and appeal from this ordinance with the PUCO within (30) days after its passage by Council, the Company shall be deemed to have accepted this ordinance and shall be bound by its terms as if it had filed a written acceptance.

SECTION 4: Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect at the earliest time allowed by law.

MAYOR

ADOPTED: January 6, 2015

ATTEST:

CLERK OF OXFORD CITY COUNCIL

INTRODUCED BY: KEVIN MCKEEHAN

PREPARED BY: LAW

					. —			
		•	-					
						 -		
;								
į.								•
	j							
			•					
					-			
i	•		-					
	٠				•			
•	•							
			4*	ITACHMENT A				
4				ITEMANIATIVE A				
	•							
				•			•	
1			•					
		•						
	•							
			•					
							•	
					-			
	_							
	•							

Chapter 4901:1-14 Uniform Purchased Gas Adjustment Clause

Definitions 4901:1-14-01 Purpose and Scope 4901:1-14-02 Applicability 4901:1-14-03 Reports 4901:1-14-04 Gas Cost Recovery Rate 4901:1-14-05 **Customer Billing** 4901:1-14-06 Audits 4901:1-14-07 Hearings 4901:1-14-08 Tariffs 4901:1-14-09

Note: Case No. 13-1132-GA-ORD, pursuant to Section 111.15 of the Ohio

Revised Code.

4901:1-14-01 Definitions No Change

For purposes of this chapter:

- (A) "Ccf" means a unit of gas equal to one hundred cubic feet.
- (B) "Commission" means the public utilities commission of Ohio.
- (C) "Commodity rate" means the portion of gas costs billed by a gas or natural gas company's suppliers (expressed in dollars and cents per Mcf, dekatherm, or BTU), which relates volumetrically to the cost of the units of gas obtained by the company for sale to its customers. For purposes of the calculations required under rule 4901:1-14-05 of the Administrative Code, "commodity rate" means the average of the commodity rates expected to be in effect during the period the new gas cost recovery rate will be in effect.
- (D) "Customer" means each billing account of a gas or natural gas company.
- (E) "Current direct cost of production" means the production and gathering expenses associated with utility production volumes from old wells which are included in accounts 750 through 769 of the "Uniform System of Accounts for Class A and B Gas Utilities," and accounts 710, 711, 713, 714, 715, 716, 717, and 719 of the "Uniform System of Accounts for Class C and D Gas Utilities."
- (F) "Demand and service charges" means the portion of gas costs billed by a gas or natural gas company's suppliers or other service providers (expressed in dollars and cents per Mcf, dekatherm, or BTU), which relates to the cost of demand, capacity reservation or use, transportation, storage, balancing, gathering and other related services which are costs to the company of obtaining the gas that it sells prior to and including the physical delivery of the gas to the company's own system to the extent such charges are not included in the "commodity rate" as defined in paragraph (C) of this rule. For purposes of the calculations required under rule 4901:1-14-05 of the Administrative Code, "demand and service charges" mean the average of the demand charges expected to be in effect during the period the new gas cost recovery rate will be in effect.
- (G) "Expected gas cost (EGC)" means the weighted average cost of primary gas supplies, utility production from old wells, and includable propane expressed in dollars and cents per Mcf and determined in accordance with the appendix to rule 4901:1-14-05 of the Administrative Code.
- (H) "Gas" means any vaporized fuel transported or supplied to consumers by a gas or natural gas company, including, but not limited to, natural gas, synthetic gas, liquefied natural gas, and propane.
- (I) "Gas company" and "natural gas company" have the meanings set forth in section 4905.03 of the Revised Code.

Published: April 7, 2014

- (J) "Gas costs" or "cost of gas" means the cost to a gas or natural gas company of obtaining the gas which it sells to its customers. The cost of gas shall include demand, capacity, reservation or use, transportation, storage, balancing, gathering, and other related costs to the company for services rendered or supplies provided by others prior to and including the physical delivery of the gas to the company. The cost of gas does not include the cost of utility storage otherwise recovered in base rates.
- (K) "Gas cost recovery rate (GCR)" means the quarterly update, or other periodic update as approved by the commission, of the gas cost adjustment determined in accordance with the appendix to rule 4901:1-14-05 of the Administrative Code.
- (L) "Includable gas supplies" means primary gas supplies, includable propane, and utility production volumes.
- (M) "Includable propane" means propane used for peak shaving purposes, and propane used for volumetric purposes at the end of a supply period to avoid monetary penalties.
- (N) "Jurisdictional sales" means total historic, forecasted, and/or weather-normalized historic sales, less sales to customers under municipal ordinance rates, except sales under municipal ordinances which have adopted, by reference or otherwise, rates established by the commission.
- (O) "Mcf" means a unit of gas equal to one thousand cubic feet.
- (P) "New well" is either a well where drilling commenced after December 4, 1982, or an old well which is completed to a different pool after December 4, 1982.
- (Q) "Old well" is a well where drilling commenced before December 4, 1982.
- (R) "Pool" has the meaning set forth in paragraph (A)(35) of rule 1501:9-1-01 of the Administrative Code.
- (S) "Primary gas supplies" means historic, forecasted, and/or weather-normalized historic:
 - (1) Supplies of natural gas or liquefied natural gas obtained from producers, interstate pipelines, brokers/marketers, or other suppliers;
 - (2) Supplies of synthetic gas purchased under agreements approved by the commission under section 4905.303 of the Revised Code, and other supplies of synthetic gas, except short-term supplies, purchased under contracts approved by the commission;
 - (3) Supplies of gas obtained from other gas or natural gas companies;
 - (4) Supplies of gas, other than utility production volumes from old wells, obtained from Ohio producers;
 - (5) Supplies of gas made available to a gas or natural gas company under self-help arrangements;
 - (6) Special purchases of natural gas not included in short-term supplies; and
 - (7) Utility production volumes from new wells provided that such volumes are priced no higher than the price currently being paid by the utility to independent Ohio producers for gas from like wells.
- (T) "Production unit cost" means the current direct cost of production expressed in dollars and cents per Mcf.
- (U) "Purchased gas adjustment clause" has the meaning set forth in section 4905.302 of the Revised Code.

Case No. 13-1132-GA-ORD

Page 3 of 13

Published: April 7, 2014

(V) "Reconciliation adjustment" means a positive or negative adjustment to future gas cost recovery rates ordered by the commission pursuant to this chapter.

- (W) "Supplier refund" means a refund from an interstate pipeline company ordered by the federal energy regulatory commission, or from any other supplier or service provider, including interest where appropriate, where such refund is received as one lump-sum payment or credit.
- (X) "Self-help arrangement" means an arrangement between a gas or natural gas company and a customer providing for the transportation of gas owned by the customer from the point of production to the point of consumption.
- (Y) "Short-term supplies" means all special purchases of gas, to the extent that those purchases decrease the level of curtailment to any customer or class of customers, except special purchases approved by the commission under section 4905.303 of the Revised Code. For purposes of this chapter, a special purchase decreases curtailment to a class of customers if curtailment of that class is reduced, maintained at the same level, or increased to a lesser degree as a result of the special purchase.
- (Z) "Special purchase" has the meaning set forth in section 4905.302 of the Revised Code.
- (AA) "Synthetic gas" means gas formed from feedstocks other than natural gas, including, but not limited to, coal, oil, or naphtha.
- (BB) "Total sales" means all historic, forecasted, and/or weather-normalized historic sales of includable gas supplies to retail customers. "Total sales" does not include volumes transported to consumers under self-help arrangements. For purposes of recovery of the balance adjustment, actual adjustment, and reconciliation adjustment, "total sales" does not include sales to customers for which the reverse migration rider applies.
- (CC) "Unaccounted-for gas" means the difference between the measured volume of total gas supply, which includes gas purchased, gas produced by the company, and gas received by the company on behalf of specific customers for redelivery; and the measured volume of gas disposition, which includes gas billed or redelivered to customers and gas for company use. For the purpose of this rule, unaccounted-for gas should be calculated on an annual basis for the twelve months ended August thirty-first of each year, or such other date as the company may show to be more appropriate for its system. The percentage of unaccounted-for gas should be calculated by taking the volumes of unaccounted-for gas as specified above, divided by the volume of total gas supply.
- (DD) "Unit book cost" means the cost of total sales expressed in dollars and cents per Mcf as calculated using standard accounting methods acceptable to the commission and the gas or natural gas company's independent auditors submitting the certificate of accountability as required under paragraph (C) of rule 4901:1-14-07 of the Administrative Code.
- (EE) "Utility production volumes" means all volumes of gas, other than synthetic gas, produced by a gas or natural gas company, or by a subsidiary or affiliate of a gas or natural gas company, unless the rates or charges for such production are subject to the jurisdiction of the federal energy regulatory commission.

Case No. 13-1132-GA-ORD

Page 4 of 13

Published: April 7, 2014

(FF) "Utility storage" means storage facilities operated and maintained by a gas or natural gas company, or by a subsidiary or affiliate of a gas or natural gas company, unless the charges for such facilities are incorporated in commodity rates or monthly demand charges filed with or approved by the federal energy regulatory commission or by the commission, provided, however, that no gas or natural gas company shall reflect charges for its own storing facilities or service in its own gas cost recovery rate.

R.C. 119.032 Review Date(s):	1/29/2019
Promulgated Under:	111.15
Statutory Authority:	4905.302
Rule Amplifies:	4905.302
Prior Effective Dates:	10/21/78, 1/1/80, 7/16/80, 12/4/82, 5/15/84,
-	5/20/88, 10/11/91, 8/29/04

4901:1-14-02 Purpose and Scope No Change

- (A) The purpose of this chapter is to establish a uniform purchased gas adjustment clause to be included in the schedules of gas and natural gas companies subject to the jurisdiction of the commission. The provisions of this chapter establish a gas cost recovery process, which is designed to separate the cost of gas from all other costs incurred by gas or natural gas companies, to provide for each company's recovery of the cost of its includable gas supplies from its customers by means of the quarterly update (or other periodic update as approved by the commission) of the gas cost recovery rate and other provisions of this chapter and to balance the interest of retail sales customers with those of transportation customers. The provisions of this chapter also establish investigative procedures and proceedings, including periodic reports, audits, and hearings, to examine the arithmetic and accounting accuracy of the gas costs reflected in each company's gas cost recovery rate, and to review each company's gas production and purchasing policies to the extent that those policies affect the gas cost recovery rate.
- (B) The commission may, upon an application or a motion filed by a party, waive any requirement of this chapter, other than a requirement mandated by statute, for good cause shown.
- (C) The rules of this chapter supersede any inconsistent provisions, terms, and conditions of the gas or natural gas company's tariffs.

1/29/2019
111.15
4905.04, 4905.05, 4905.06
4905.302, 4905.303
10/21/78, 2/1/80, 8/29/04

4901:1-14-03 Applicability No Change

The provisions of this chapter shall apply to all gas and natural gas companies subject to the jurisdiction of the commission except as provided in divisions (C)(4) and (D) of section 4905.302 of the Revised Code, with respect to all schedules of rates established or approved by the commission, including, but not limited to, rate schedules approved or established under sections 4905.31, 4909.19, and 4909.39 of the Revised Code. The provisions of this chapter shall not apply to municipal ordinance rates established under section 743.26 or 4909.34 of the Revised Code or Article XVIII, Section 4 of the Ohio Constitution, except in instances where a municipal ordinance adopts, by reference or otherwise, rates established by the commission.

Case No. 13-1132-GA-ORD

Page 5 of 13

Published: April 7, 2014

R.C. 119.032 Review Date(s):	1/29/2019
Promulgated Under:	111.15
Statutory Authority:	4905.04, 4905.05, 4905.06
Rule Amplifies:	4905.302, 4905.303
Prior Effective Dates:	10/21/78, 1/1/80, 10/11/91

4901:1-14-04 Reports No Change

* できることを表現している。 (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (2008年) (

Each gas or natural gas company subject to the provisions of this chapter shall file with the commission's docketing division quarterly gas cost recovery reports. With commission approval, the gas or natural gas company may revise the expected gas cost component of the gas cost recovery report on a monthly basis. Unless otherwise determined by the commission, the expected gas cost component may be revised, as market conditions warrant, and filed with the commission's docketing division no later than fourteen days prior to the effective date of the gas cost recovery rate. The filing interval for each such report shall be established by the commission. Each gas cost recovery report shall contain:

- (A) An updated gas cost recovery rate, determined in accordance with rule 4901:1-14-05 of the Administrative Code and its appendix;
- (B) The data and calculations used to determine the updated gas cost recovery rate;
- (C) Where appropriate, notations indicating the use of weather-normalized or forecasted sales volumes in the gas cost recovery report and/or updates;
- (D) The frequency of revisions to the expected gas cost component, the effective dates, and the dates such revisions will be filed with the commission; and
- (E) Such other information as the commission requires.

R.C. 119.032 Review Date(s):	1/29/2019
Promulgated Under:	111.15
Statutory Authority:	4905.04, 4905.05, 4905.06
Rule Amplifies:	4905.302, 4905.303
Prior Effective Dates:	10/21/78, 1/1/80, 10/11/91

4901:1-14-05 Gas Cost Recovery Rate No Change

- (A) The gas cost recovery rate equals:
 - (1) The gas or natural gas company's expected gas cost for the upcoming quarter, or other period as approved by the commission, pursuant to paragraph (K) of rule 4901:1-14-01 of the Administrative Code, plus or minus;
 - (2) The supplier refund and reconciliation adjustment, which reflects:
 - (a) Refunds received from the gas or natural gas company's interstate pipeline suppliers or other suppliers or service providers plus ten per cent annual interest; and
 - (b) Adjustments ordered by the commission following hearings held pursuant to rule 4901:1-14-08 of the Administrative Code, plus ten per cent annual interest, plus or minus;
 - (3) The actual adjustment, which compensates for differences between the previous quarter's, or other commission-approved period's, expected gas cost and the actual cost of gas during that period, plus or minus; and

4901:1-14 (Uniform Purchased Gas Adjustment Clause)

Case No. 13-1132-GA-ORD

Page 6 of 13

Published: April 7, 2014

- (4) The balance adjustment, which compensates for any under- or overcollections which have occurred as a result of prior adjustments, plus or minus.
- (B) The gas cost recovery rate shall be calculated on a companywide basis, except as provided in paragraph (C) of this rule, in accordance with the appendix to this rule.
- (C) The commission may, upon the request of any party or upon its own initiative, permit the company to calculate different gas cost recovery rates for different geographical areas. In determining whether to do so, the commission shall consider:
 - (1) Whether the geographical areas involved are contiguous;

| 1987 | 1987 | 1987 | 1987 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 | 1988 |

- (2) Whether the cost of obtaining gas for each of the geographical areas involved can be separately identified;
- (3) The manner in which the geographical areas involved have been treated in the past; and
- (4) Such other factors as the commission considers appropriate.

R.C. 119.032 Review Date(s):	1/29/2019
Promulgated Under:	111.15
Statutory Authority:	4905.04, 4905.05, 4905.06
Rule Amplifies:	4905.302, 4905.303
Prior Effective Dates:	10/21/78, 1/1/80, 7/2/82, 5/20/88, 10/11/91,
	2/11/94, 8/29/04

4901:1-14 (Uniform Purchased Gas Adjustment Clause)

Case No. 13-1132-GA-ORD

Page 7 of 13

Published: April 7, 2014

Appendix to Rule 4901:1-14-05 Gas Cost Recovery Rate Calculation

The Gas Cost Recovery Rate (GCR) shall be determined in accordance with the formulas set forth in this appendix. For purposes of these calculations, the following subscripts shall be used:

- (1) "q" means the quarter which contains the three monthly accounting periods immediately prior to the most recently ended monthly accounting period.
- (2) "m" means each monthly accounting period in q.
- (3) "y" means the period containing the twelve monthly accounting periods immediately prior to the most recently ended monthly accounting period.
- (4) "p" means the time period between the effective date of the current Gas Cost Recovery Rate and the effective date of the Gas Cost Recovery Rate in effect immediately prior to the current rate.
- (5) "z" means the time period between the effective date of the current Gas Cost Recovery Rate and the effective date of the Gas Cost Recovery Rate in effect approximately one year prior to the current rate.
- (6) "s" means each source of primary gas supplies.

Where the calculations require the use of volumes used during a given period, and those volumes did not exist for a particular source for the entire period, or the company expects the volumes to change substantially, the company may make appropriate adjustments in its calculations and shall fully describe any adjustments in the quarterly Gas Cost Recovery Report to be reviewed in a subsequent audit. All bulk supply volumes shall be corrected to standard temperature and pressure.

(A) EXPECTED GAS COST

The Expected Gas Cost (EGC), expressed in dollars and cents per Mcf, shall be determined as follows ("V" denotes variable"):

- (1) V1 = Commodity Rate for each source of Primary Gas Supplies.
- (2) V2 = Volumes Purchased from each source of Primary Gas Supplies
- (3) V3 = Demand and Service Charges for each source of Primary Gas Supplies and each supplier of demand, capacity reservation or use, transportation, storage, balancing, gathering or other related services rendered prior to and including the physical delivery of the gas to the company's own system to the extent such charges are not included in the commodity rate as defined in paragraph (C) of rule 4901:1-14-01 of the Administrative Code.

(4)
$$V4 = \sum_{S} [(V1_S \times V2_{SY}) + (V3_S)]$$

$$s=1$$
("j" equals the total number of primary gas suppliers)

- (5) V5 = Production Unit Cost
- (6) V6 = Utility Production Volumes from old wells

4901:1-14 (Uniform Purchased Gas Adjustment Clause)

Case No. 13-1132-GA-ORD

Page 8 of 13

Published: April 7, 2014

Appendix to Rule 4901:1-14-05 Gas Cost Recovery Rate Calculation (Continued)

- (7) $V7 = V5 \times V6_V$
- (8) V8 = Book Cost of Includable Propane
- (9) V9 = Gallons of Includable Propane
- (10) $V10 = V8 \times V9_V$
- (11) V11 = Total Sales
- (12) EGC= $(V4 + V7 + V10) \div V11_V$

(B) SUPPLIER REFUND AND RECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENT

The Supplier Refund and Reconciliation Adjustment (RA), expressed in dollars and cents per Mcf, shall be determined as follows:

- (13) V12 = Reconciliation Adjustments ordered by the commission during q
- (14) V13 = Supplier Refunds received during q
- (15) V14 = Jurisdictional Sales
- (16) V15 = $1.0550 [V12 + (V13 \times (V14_V \div V11_V))]$
- (17) $V16 = V15 \div V14_V$
- (18) V17 = V16 as used in computing the currently effective GCR
- (19) V18 = V16 as used in computing the GCR in effect one quarter prior to the currently effective GCR
- (20) V19 = V16 as used in computing the GCR in effect two quarters prior to the currently effective GCR.
- (21) RA = V16 + V17 + V18 + V19

(C) ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT

The Actual Adjustment (AA), expressed in dollars and cents per Mcf, shall be determined as follows:

- (22) V20 = Unit Book Cost of Total Sales
- (23) V21 = EGC in effect during each period m (if the EGC changed during any period m, weighted average EGC shall be used for that period)

(24)
$$V22 = \sum_{m=1}^{3} [(V20_m - V21) \times V14_m] \pm V33$$

$$(25)$$
 V23 = V22 ÷ V14_V

Case No. 13-1132-GA-ORD

Page 9 of 13

Published: April 7, 2014

Appendix to Rule 4901:1-14-05 Gas Cost Recovery Rate Calculation (Continued)

- (26) V24 = V23 as used in computing the currently effective GCR
- (27) V25 = V23 as used in computing the GCR in effect one quarter prior to the currently effective GCR
- (28) V26 = V23 as used in computing the GCR in effect two quarters prior to the currently effective GCR
- (29) AA = V23 + V24 + V25 + V26
- (D) BALANCE ADJUSTMENT

The Balance Adjustment (BA), expressed in dollars and cents per Mcf, shall be determined as follows:

- (30) V27 = V22 as used to compute the GCR in effect four quarters prior to the currently effective GCR
- (31) V28 = V23 as used to compute the GCR in effect four quarters prior to the currently effective GCR
- (32) $V29 = V27 (V28 \times V14_z)$
- (33) V30 = V15 as used to compute the GCR in effect four quarters prior to the currently effective GCR
- (34) V31 = V16 as used to compute the GCR in effect four quarters prior to the currently effective GCR
- (35) V32 = V30 (V31 x V14_Z)
- (36) V33 = V29 + V32
- (E) GAS COST RECOVERY RATE

The Gas Cost Recovery Rate (GCR) shall be determined as follows:

(37) GCR= EGC + RA + AA

4901:1-14-06 Customer Billing Effective Date: 4/17/2014

- (A) Unless otherwise ordered by the commission, the quarterly updated gas cost recovery rate filed in accordance with rule 4901:1-14-04 of the Administrative Code shall become effective on or after the thirtieth day following the filing date or as otherwise established by the commission. Revisions to the expected gas cost component must be filed no later than fourteen days prior to the gas cost recovery rate effective date and such revisions do not affect the effective date of the gas cost recovery rate. The new gas cost recovery rates may be applied to customer accounts on a service-rendered or bills-rendered basis, at the option of the gas or natural gas company. The commission may at any time order a reconciliation adjustment as a result of errors or erroneous reporting.
- (B) Except as provided in paragraph (C) of this rule, if the gas cost recovery rate changes during a customer's billing cycle and the gas or natural gas company elects to bill on a service-rendered

Case No. 13-1132-GA-ORD

Page 10 of 13

Published: April 7, 2014

basis, the gas or natural gas company shall apply a weighted average gas cost recovery (WGCR) rate to its customer bills. The WGCR rate shall be determined in accordance with the following:

- (1) GCR1 equals the gas cost recovery rate in effect during the first part of the billing cycle.
- (2) GCR2 equals the gas cost recovery rate in effect during the latter part of the billing cycle.
- (3) V34 equals a variable representing the total number of days in the billing cycle.
- (4) V34.1 equals a variable representing the total number of days in the billing cycle when GCR1 was in effect.
- (5) V34.2 equals a variable representing the total number of days in the billing cycle when GCR2 was in effect.
- (6) WGCR = $[GCR1 \times (V34.1 \div V34)] + [GCR2 \times (V34.2 \div V34)].$
- (C) If the gas cost recovery rate changes during a customer's billing cycle, and the gas or natural gas company elects to bill on a service-rendered basis, and if the customer's actual daily consumption is known by the gas or natural gas company, the company may, instead of applying a weighted average gas cost recovery rate, apply each gas cost recovery rate which was effective during the billing cycle to the volumes actually consumed when that rate was in effect.
- (D) Each gas or natural gas company shall indicate on each customer bill:
 - (1) The gas cost recovery rate expressed in dollars and cents per Mcf or Ccf; and
 - (2) The total charge attributable to the gas cost recovery rate expressed in dollars and cents.

R.C. 119.032 Review Date(s):	1/29/2019
Promulgated Under:	111.15
Statutory Authority:	4905.04, 4905.05, 4905.06
Rule Amplifies:	4905.302, 4905.303
Prior Effective Dates:	10/21/78, 1/1/80, 10/11/91, 8/29/04

4901:1-14-07 Audits Effective Date: 4/17/2014

- (A) The commission shall conduct, or cause to be conducted, periodic financial and management/performance audits of each gas or natural gas company subject to the provisions of this chapter and division (C)(4) of section 4905.302 of the Revised Code. Unless otherwise ordered by the commission, the audits shall be conducted annually. Except as provided in paragraph (B) of this rule and division (C) of section 4905.302 of the Revised Code, and unless otherwise ordered by the commission, each audit shall be conducted by a qualified independent auditing firm selected according to paragraphs (C) and (D) of this rule. The cost of each such audit shall be paid by the gas or natural gas company.
- (B) The commission may, upon the request of any party or upon its own initiative, conduct the audits required under this rule. In determining whether to do so, the commission shall consider:
 - (1) The number of customers served by the company;
 - (2) The cost of employing an independent auditor;
 - (3) The availability of the commission staff to conduct the required audits; and
 - (4) Such other factors as the commission considers appropriate.

Published: April 7, 2014

- (C) Each independent auditor shall file, with the commission, a certificate of accountability as described in paragraph (E) of this rule. The certificate of accountability shall attest to the accuracy of financial data pertaining to the period of the gas cost recovery rate activity designated by the commission and reference any errors or deviations from the calculations prescribed within Chapter 4901:1-14 of the Administrative Code. Pursuant to this rule, the independent auditor shall assure the commission that:
 - (1) The costs reflected in the gas or natural gas company's gas cost recovery rates were properly incurred by the company;
 - (2) The gas cost recovery rates were accurately computed by the gas or natural gas company;
 - (3) The gas cost recovery rates were accurately applied to customer bills; and
 - (4) If the company utilized weather-normalized historic and/or forecasted volumes, the auditor shall verify that the company has reasonably applied such approach throughout the audit period.
- (D) Each gas or natural gas company, so designated by the commission, shall engage an independent auditor and/or consulting firm to conduct a management/performance audit of the company's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 4901:1-14 of the Administrative Code. The commission shall develop a request for proposal (RFP) designed to solicit responses for conducting a management/performance audit. The commission shall have the sole responsibility for sending out and accepting all responses to the RFP and shall select the company's management/performance auditor for the designated audit period. The management/performance audit report shall identify and evaluate the specific organizational structure, management policies, procedures, and reasoning of the company's existing or proposed procurement strategy. The report shall also contain management recommendations based on an evaluation of the company's performance during the designated bv the commission. pertaining to those areas management/performance audit shall review any specific areas of investigation as designated by the commission and selected aspects of the company's gas production and purchasing policies to ascertain whether:
 - Company purchasing policies were designed to meet objectives of the company's service requirements;
 - (2) Procurement planning is sufficient to ensure reliable service at optimal prices and is consistent with the company's long-term strategic supply plan submitted pursuant to paragraph (H) of rule 4901:5-7-02 or paragraph (H) of rule 4901:5-7-05 of the Administrative Code; and
 - (3) The company has reviewed existing and potential supply sources.
- (E) The certificate of accountability required by paragraph (C) of this rule shall read as follows:

We have examined the periodic filings of (insert gas or natural gas company name) which support the gas cost recovery (GCR) rates for the periods ended (insert effective ending dates of GCR periods being audited) for conformity in all material respects with the financial procedural aspects of the uniform purchased gas adjustment as set forth in Chapter 4901:1-14 and related appendices of the Administrative Code. Our examination for this purpose was made in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and, accordingly, included such tests of the accounting records and such other auditing procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We did/did not make a detailed examination such as would be required to determine that each transaction has been recorded in accordance with the financial procedural aspects of Chapter 4901:1-14 and related appendices of the Administrative Code.

In our opinion, (insert gas or natural gas company name) has/has not fairly determined the GCR rates for the periods ended (insert effective ending dates of GCR periods being audited) in accordance with the financial procedural aspects of the uniform purchased gas adjustment as set

Case No. 13-1132-GA-ORD

Page 12 of 13

Published: April 7, 2014

forth in Chapter 4901:1-14 and related appendices of the Administrative Code and properly applied the GCR rates to customer bills.

(If applicable) specific findings presented for the attention of the commission are attached in a separate "memorandum of findings."

R.C. 119.032 Review Date(s):_	1/29/2019
Promulgated Under:	111.15
Statutory Authority:	4905.04, 4905.05, 4905.06
Rule Amplifies:	4905.302, 4905.303
Prior Effective Dates:	10/21/78, 11/20/87, 5/15/84, 10/11/91, 8/26/04

4901:1-14-08 Hearings Effective Date: 4/17/2014

- (A) At least sixty days after the filing of each audit report required under paragraph (C) of rule 4901:1-14-07 of the Administrative Code, the commission shall hold a public hearing to review:
 - (1) The audit findings, conclusions, and recommendations; and
 - (2) Such other matters relating to the gas or natural gas company's gas cost recovery rates as the commission considers appropriate.
- (B) The gas or natural gas company shall demonstrate at its purchased gas adjustment hearing that its gas cost recovery rates were fair, just, and reasonable and that its gas purchasing practices and policies promote minimum prices consistent with an adequate supply of gas. The commission shall consider, to the extent applicable:
 - The results of the management/performance audit;
 - (2) The results of the financial audit;

- (3) Compliance by the gas or natural gas company with previous commission performance recommendations;
- (4) The efficiency of the gas or natural gas company's gas production policies and practices; and
- (5) Such other practices, policies, or factors as the commission considers appropriate.
- (C) The gas or natural gas company shall publish notice of the hearing required under paragraph (A) of this rule throughout its service area at least fifteen and not more than thirty days prior to the scheduled date of hearing by:
 - (1) Display ad in a newspaper or newspapers of general circulation;
 - (2) Bill message on or bill insert included with the customer bills; or
 - (3) Separate direct mailing to customers.
- (D) At least sixty days prior to the scheduled date of hearing, the gas or natural gas company shall file such facts, data, or information relating to its gas cost recovery rates as the commission requires.
- (E) Following the conclusion of the hearing, the commission shall issue an appropriate order containing:
 - (1) A summary of the audit findings, conclusions, and recommendations; and
 - (2) Such other information or directives as the commission considers appropriate.

4901:1-14 (Uniform Purchased Gas Adjustment Clause) Case No. 13-1132-GA-ORD Page 13 of 13

Published: April 7, 2014

- (F) The commission may adjust the company's future gas cost recovery rates by means of a reconciliation adjustment as a result of:
 - (1) Errors or erroneous reporting;

- (2) Unreasonable or imprudent gas production or purchasing policies or practices;
- (3) Unaccounted-for gas above a reasonable level. It shall be presumed that unaccounted-for gas above five per cent, calculated pursuant to paragraph (CC) of rule 4901:1-14-01 of the Administrative Code, is unreasonable, and the burden shall be on the company to prove otherwise; or
- (4) Such other factors, policies, or practices as the commission considers appropriate.

R.C. 119.032 Review Date(s):	1/29/2019
Promulgated Under:	111.15
Statutory Authority:	4905.302
Rule Amplifies:	4905.302
Prior Effective Dates:	10/21/78, 11/14/85, 5/20/88, 10/11/91
	2/11/94, 8/29/04

4901:1-14-09 Tariffs No Change

Each gas or natural gas company subject to the provisions of this chapter shall file tariffs with the commission which incorporate this chapter in its entirety.

R.C. 119.032 Review Date(s):	1/29/2019
Promulgated Under:	111.15
Statutory Authority:	4905.04, 4905.05, 4905.06
Rule Amplifies:	4905.302, 4905.303
Prior Effective Dates:	10/28/78

NOTICE The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio speaks through its published decisions. This document is provided for the convenience of the Commission's staff and the public, but is published subject to revision. Please <u>contact the Commission's Legal Department</u> (614-466-7702) for further information or if there appears to be an error.

APPENDIX Written Summary Information

This summary information is intended to let customers know of the existence and how to get further information orally and in writing relating to the following topics by calling, writing, or e-mailing:

Kristy Smith
Glenwood Energy of Oxford, Inc.
5181 College Corner Pike
Oxford, OH 45056
(513) 523-2555
E-mail address: Kristysmith@glenwoodenergy.com

- A. Complaint Procedures available at Glenwood Energy of Oxford, Inc. or at the PUCO;
- B. Customers Rights and Responsibilities including installation of service, payment of bills, disconnection and reconnection of service, meter testing, security deposits, rights to usage history, deferred payment plans, low-income assistance, information relating to the area's "one-call" or "call-before-you-dig" protection services, and service line responsibility;
- C. Requirements of company personnel on customer premises;
- D. Availability of rate information and alternatives upon request;
- E. A statement that customers may review a copy of the minimum gas service standards on the Commission's website or obtain a copy from the Commission upon request;
- F. Privacy Rights;
- G. Actual meter readings;
- H. Gas choice programs available to Customers, including information on slamming;
- I. If your complaint is not resolved after you have called (Glenwood Energy of Oxford, Inc.) or for general utility information, residential and business customers may call the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio (PUCO), toll-free at 1-800-686-7826 or for TDD/TTY toll-free at 1-800-686-1570, from 8 A.M. to 5:30 P.M. weekdays, or visit www.puco.ohio.gov.

The Ohio Consumers' Counsel (OCC) represents residential utility customers in matters before the PUCO. The OCC can be contacted toll-free at 1-877-742-5622 from 8 A.M. to 5 P.M. weekdays, or visit www.pickocc.org.

BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF OHIO

In the Matter of the Application)
Of Glenwood Energy of Oxford, Inc. for) Case No. 15-210-GA-GCR
Assignment of a Gas Cost Recovery Case)
Number, Submission to Jurisdiction of the)
Commission over Gas Cost Recovery Matters,)
And Submission of a First Gas Recovery)
Filing.)

MONTHLY GCR FILING OF GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC.

Pursuant to Chapter 4901:1-14 of the Ohio Administrative Code, Glenwood Energy of Oxford, Inc. files its Monthly Gas Cost Recovery Report establishing the gas cost recovery rate to be in effect for the period March 1, 2015 through March 31, 2015.

The gas cost recovery rate effective March 1, 2015 will be \$5.7274 per thousand cubic feet ("Mcf"). This is a decrease of \$0.0175 per Mcf from the gas cost recovery rate approved for the prior month of \$5.7449 per Mcf. This filing includes an Expected Gas Cost of \$5.9983 per Mcf. Glenwood Energy of Oxford's rates will decrease by \$0.0175 per Mcf effective with bills rendered for service during the month of March 2015.

/s/ Richard A. Perkins

Richard A. Perkins, CPA Chief Financial Officer Glenwood Energy of Oxford, Inc. 5181 College Corner Pike Oxford, OH 45056 (513) 523-2555 Tel:

Fax:

(513) 524-3409

E-mail: richperkins@glenwoodenergy.com

COMPANY NAME: GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC.

GAS COST RECOVERY RATE CALCULATION

PARTICULARS	UNIT	AMOUNT
EXPECTED GAS COST (EGC)	\$/MCF	5.9983
SUPPLIER REFUND AND RECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENT (RA) ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT (AA)	\$/MCF \$/MCF	0.0000
GAS COST RECOVERY RATE (GCR) = EGC + RA + AA	\$/MCF	(0.2710) 5.7274

GAS COST RECOVERY RATE EFFECTIVE DATES: March 1 through March 31, 2015

EXPECTED GAS COST SUMMARY CALCULATION

PARTICULARS	UNIT	AMOUNT
PRIMARY GAS SUPPLIERS EXPECTED GAS COST UTILITY PRODUCTION EXPECTED GAS COST INCLUDABLE PROPANE EXPECTED GAS COST	\$ \$ \$	2,846,563
TOTAL ANNUAL EXPECTED GAS COST	\$	2,846,563
TOTAL ANNUAL SALES	MCF	474,560
EXPECTED GAS COST (EGC) RATE	\$/MCF	5.9983

SUPPLIER REFUND AND RECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENT SUMMARY CALCULATION

PARTICULARS PARTICULARS	UNIT	AMOUNT
CURRENT QUARTER SUPPLIER REFUND & RECONCILIATION ADJ.	\$/MCF	0.0000
PREVIOUS QUARTER REPORTED SUPPLIER REFUND & RECON. ADJ.	\$/MCF	0.0000
SECOND PREVIOUS QUARTER REPORTED SUPPLIER REFUND & RECON. ADJ.	\$/MCF	0.0000
THIRD PREVIOUS QUARTER REPORTED SUPPLIER REFUND & RECON. ADJ.	\$/MCF	0.0000
SUPPLIER REFUND AND RECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENT (RA)	\$/MCF	0.0000

ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT SUMMARY CALCULATION.

MOTORIE PROGRAMMENT CONTINUENT	UNLUULATIUN	
PARTICULARS	UNIT	AMOUNT
CURRENT QUARTER ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT	\$/MCF	0.1569
PREVIOUS QUARTER REPORTED ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT	\$/MCF	(0.1934)
SECOND PREVIOUS QUARTER REPORTED ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT	\$/MCF	(0.3215)
THIRD PREVIOUS QUARTER REPORTED ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT	\$/MCF	o.0870
A OTT LAL AD HIDTERT (A 4)		
ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT (AA)	\$/MCF	(0.2710)

THIS QUARTERLY REPORT FILED PURSUANT TO ORDER NO. 76-515-GA-ORD OF THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF OHIO, DATED OCTOBER 18, 1979.

March 16, 2015

BY: /s/ Richard A. Perkins

Richard A. Perkins, CPA

TITLE: Chief Financial Officer

SCHEDULE I

COMPANY NAME: GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC.

EXPECTED GAS COST RATE CALCULATION

DETAILS FOR THE EGC RATE IN EFFECT AS OF March 1, 2015 AND THE VOLUME FOR THE TWELVE MONTH PERIOD ENDED September 30, 2014

	DEMAND	COMMODITY	MISC	TOTAL
SUPPLIER NAME	EXPECTED GAS	EXPECTED GAS	EXPECTED GAS	EXPECTED GAS
SOFFLICITIVAME				
PRIMARY GAS SUPPLIERS	COST AMT (\$)	COST AMT (\$)	COST AMT (\$)	COST AMT (\$)
INTERSTATE PIPELINE SUPPLIERS (SCH. I-A)	_			2 225 222
Atmos Energy	0	2,065,062	0	2,065,062
Texas Eastern Transmission Corporation	322,483	0	154,230	476,713
Duke Energy Ohio	200,000	0	475	200,475
Columbia Gas Transmission Corporation	. 0	104,314	0	, 104,314
				,
PRODUCER/MARKETER (SCH. I-A)		1		
SYNTHETIC (SCH. I-A)				
OTHER GAS COMPANIES (SCH. 1-B)				
OHIO PRODUCERS (SCH. I - B)		Ð		0
SELF-HELP ARRANGEMENTS (SCH. 1-B)		ŭ	۵	0
SPECIAL PURCHASES (SCH. I - B)	i			Ū
5, 551 11, 51, 51, 51, 51, 51, 51, 51, 5				
TOTAL PRIMARY GAS SUPPLIERS	522,483	2,065,062	154,705	2,846,563
UTILITY PRODUCTION				!
TOTAL UTILITY PRODUCTION (ATTACH DETAILS)			
INCLUDABLE PROPANE				
(A) PEAK SHAVING (ATTACH DETAILS)				0
(B) BASE LOADING (ATTACH DETAILS)				
TOTAL INCLUDABLE PROPANE				0
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
TOTAL EXPECTED GAS COST AMOUNT				2,846,563

SCHEDULE I - A PAGE 1 OF 4

COMPANY NAME: GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC.

PRIMARY GAS SUPPLIER/TRANSPORTER

DETAILS FOR THE EGC IN EFFECT AS OF		AND THE	
VOLUME FOR THE TWELVE MONTH PERIOD ENDED_	September 30, 2014		
SUPPLIER OR TRANSPORTER NAME	Atmos Energy Marketing		
TARIFF SHEET REFERENCE	Contract		· · ·
EFFECTIVE DATE OF TARIFF	Communication	RATE SCHEDULE NUMBER	
EFFECTIVE DATE OF TANIT _		TATE CONEDCE NOMBEN	
TYPE GAS PURCHASED	X NATURAL	LIQUIFIED	SYNTHETIC
UNIT OR VOLUME TYPE	MCF		OTHER DTH
PURCHASE SOURCE	- Allerdan	INTRASTATE	w ** *********************************
_	_		
INCLUDABLE GAS SUPPLIERS			
7 m = 2 mm m m line m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m	UNIT	TWELVE	EXPECTED GAS
PARTICULARS	RATE	MONTH	COST AMOUNT
	(\$ PER)	VOLUME	(\$)
DEMAND			
CONTRACT DEMAND			1
CONTRACT DEMAND		ĺ	
CONTRACT DEMAND			
			#
CONTRACT DEMAND	*		
Transition Costs:			1
Transportation Cost Rate Adjustment		l	
			ļ
TOTAL DEMAND			-
COMMODITY			
	3.974	519.643	2,065,062
COMMODITY	3.974	515,043	2,000,002
COMMODITY - SST			
Transition Costs:			
Transportation Cost Rate Adjustment			
TOTAL COMMODITY			2,065,062
MISCELLANEOUS			
TRANSPORTATION			1
OTHER MISCELLANEOUS (SPECIFY)(EES)			
INJECTION	1		
WITHDRAWAL			
Capacity Release - SST (System Sup)		ľ	
• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •		_	
TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS			
TOTAL EXPECTED GAS COST OF PRIMARY SUPPLIE	ER/TRANSPORTER		2,085,062

SCHEDULE 1 - A PAGE 2 OF 4

COMPANY NAME: GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC.

PRIMARY GAS SUPPLIER / TRANSPORTER

SUPPLIER OR TRANSPORTER NAME TARIFF SHEET REFERENCE EFFECTIVE DATE OF TARIFF 16 TYPE GAS PURCHASED 16 N	exas Eastern Transmission exth Revised Volume No. 2 ATURAL ICF ITERSTATE UNIT RATE (\$ PER)	RATE SCHEDULE NUMBER	SYNTHETIC OTHER DTH EXPECTED GAS COST AMOUNT
TARIFF SHEET REFERENCE EFFECTIVE DATE OF TARIFF 16 TYPE GAS PURCHASED 16 N UNIT OR VOLUME TYPE M PURCHASE SOURCE X IN INCLUDABLE GAS SUPPLIERS	ATURAL CF ITERSTATE UNIT RATE	RATE SCHEDULE NUMBER LIQUIFIED CCF X INTRASTATE TWELVE MONTH	SYNTHETIC OTHER DTH EXPECTED GAS
EFFECTIVE DATE OF TARIFF 16 TYPE GAS PURCHASED 16 N UNIT OR VOLUME TYPE M PURCHASE SOURCE X IN INCLUDABLE GAS SUPPLIERS	ATURAL ICF ITERSTATE UNIT RATE	LIQUIFIED CCF X INTRASTATE TWELVE MONTH	SYNTHETIC OTHER DTH EXPECTED GAS
TYPE GAS PURCHASED 16 NUNIT OR VOLUME TYPE PURCHASE SOURCE X IN INCLUDABLE GAS SUPPLIERS	ICF ITERSTATE UNIT RATE	LIQUIFIED CCF X INTRASTATE TWELVE MONTH	SYNTHETIC OTHER DTH EXPECTED GAS
TYPE GAS PURCHASED 16 N UNIT OR VOLUME TYPE M PURCHASE SOURCE X IN INCLUDABLE GAS SUPPLIERS	ICF ITERSTATE UNIT RATE	CCF X INTRASTATE TWELVE MONTH	OTHER DTH EXPECTED GAS
UNIT OR VOLUME TYPE M PURCHASE SOURCE _X IN INCLUDABLE GAS SUPPLIERS	ICF ITERSTATE UNIT RATE	CCF X INTRASTATE TWELVE MONTH	OTHER DTH EXPECTED GAS
PURCHASE SOURCE X IN	UNIT RATE	INTRASTATE TWELVE MONTH	EXPECTED GAS
PURCHASE SOURCE X IN	UNIT RATE	TWELVE MONTH	
INCLUDABLE GAS SUPPLIERS	UNIT RATE	MONTH	
	RATE	MONTH	
	RATE	MONTH	
PARTICULARS	RATE	MONTH	
PARTICULARS			CCAST MIRR MIRE
	(\$ PER)		
		VOLUME	(\$)
DEMAND			
CONTRACT DEMAND	0.0040	62,832	251
Reservation Charge, Zone 1-2	3.3670	62,832	211,655
Demand Tarrif			
Reservation Charge, Zone STX-AAB	2.7220	17,076	46,481
Reservation Charge, Zone ETX-AAB	0.8760	9,864	8,641
Reservation Charge, Zone WLA-AAB	1,1300	19,392	21,913
Reservation Charge, Zone ELA-AAB	0.9500	35,412	33,641
I COO CLANIO COLOR BALL STORY			
			1
TOTAL DEMAND			322,483
COMMODITY			
COMMODITY			
OTHER COMMODITY (SPECIFY)			1
		ļ	
<u> </u>			mn; - manage
TOTAL COMMODITY			*
		1	
MISCELLANEOUS	n	540.040	154,230
TRANSPORTATION	0.2968	519,643	154,230
OTHER MISCELLANEOUS (SPECIFY)			
Prepaid Transportation		-	-
TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS		1	154,230
			476,713

AND STATE OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY AND ADDRESS OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE P

SCHEDULE I - A PAGE 3 OF 4

COMPANY NAME: GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC.

PRIMARY GAS SUPPLIER / TRANSPORTER

DETAILS FOR THE EGC IN EFFECT AS OF	March 1, 2015	_AND THE	
VOLUME FOR THE TWELVE MONTH PERIOD ENDED	September 30, 2014	-	
SUPPLIER OR TRANSPORTER NAME	Duke Energy Ohio		waa-aasaasaa daadaa aa aa aa aa aa aa aa aa aa aa
TARIFF SHEET REFERENCE	Contract		
EFFECTIVE DATE OF TARIFF		RATE SCHEDULE NUMBER	
TYPE GAS PURCHASED	X NATURAL	LIQUIFIED	SYNTHETIC
UNIT OR VOLUME TYPE	MCF		OTHER DTH
PURCHASE SOURCE		INTRASTATE	= -
		_	
INCLUDABLE GAS SUPPLIERS			
	UNIT	TWELVE	EXPECTED GAS
PARTICULARS	RATE	MONTH	COST AMOUNT
	(\$ PER)	VOLUME	(\$)
DEMAND	Flat		200,000
	Figu	•	20,000
	i i		
TOTAL DEMAND			200,000
COMMODITY		_	_
COMMODITY OTHER COMMODITY (SPECIFY)		_	_
OTHER COMMODITY (SPECIFT)			
	!		
TOTAL COMMODITY			0
MISCELLANEOUS			
TRANSPORTATION		\	
OTHER MISCELLANEOUS (SPECIFY)	0.0010	474,560	475
Duke Energy Ohio - Odorization	0.0010	717,000	
TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS			475
TOTAL EXPECTED GAS COST OF PRIMARY SUPPLI	ER/TRANSPORTER		200,475

SCHEDULE I - A PAGE 4 OF 4

COMPANY NAME: GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC.

PRIMARY GAS SUPPLIER / TRANSPORTER

DETAILS FOR THE EGC IN EFFECT AS OF		THE	
VOLUME FOR THE TWELVE MONTH PERIOD ENDED	September 30, 2014		
SUPPLIER OR TRANSPORTER NAME	Columbia Gas Transmission (Corporation through Atmos En	erav
TARIFF SHEET REFERENCE	ITS Tariff		<u> </u>
EFFECTIVE DATE OF TARIFF	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	RATE SCHEDULE NUMBER	
TYPE GAS PURCHASED)	K NATURAL	LIQUIFIED	SYNTHETIC
UNIT OR VOLUME TYPE	MCF	<u> </u>	OTHER DTH
PURCHASE SOURCE		INTRASTATE	WELL
,			
INCLUDABLE GAS SUPPLIERS	1 5 1 7 July 1		
DADTIOUS ADO	UNIT	TWELVE	EXPECTED GAS
PARTICULARS	RATE	MONTH	COST AMOUNT
DEMAND	(\$ PER)	VOLUME	(\$)
CONTRACT DEMAND			
CONTRACT DEMAND CREDIT ADJUSTMENT			
CONTRACT DEMAND ADJUSTMENT			
WINTER REQUIREMENT DEMAND (5 mos.)			-
WINTER REQUIREMENT DEMAND ADJUSTMENT			
WINTER SERVICE CONTRACT QUANTITY			
OTHER DEMAND (SPECIFY)			
TOTAL DEMAND		***************************************	
TOTAL DEMAND			**
COMMODITY			
COMMODITY	0,2135	488,588	104,314
COMMODITY	0.2133	400,500	104,314
OTHER COMMODITY (SPECIFY)	4		
OTTEN GONINGOUTT (GELOIFT)	####		
announcement and a second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to the second to t	*****		
NUMBER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER SHIPMER			
TOTAL COMMODITY			104,314
	i		
JISCELLANEOUS			
TRANSPORTATION - SUMMER	- [•
TRANSPORTATION - WINTER			~
OTHER MISCELLANEOUS (SPECIFY)			
TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS			+
TOTAL EXPECTED GAS COST OF PRIMARY SUPPLIES	PARSPORTER		104 344

SCHEDULE I - B PAGE 1 OF 1

OTHER PRIMARY GAS SUPPLIERS

DETAILS FOR THE EGC IN EFFECT AS OF March 1, 2015 AND THE VOLUME FOR THE TWELVE MONTH PERIOD ENDED September 30, 2014

	UNIT	TWELVE MONTH	EXPECTED GAS
SUPPLIER NAME	RATE	VOLUME	COST AMOUNT
OTHER GAS COMPANIES			
TOTAL OTHER GAS COMPANIES			-
OHIO PRODUCERS			-
TOTAL OHIO PRODUCERS			-
SELF-HELP ARRANGEMENT TRANSPORTATION OTHER MISCELLANEOUS (SPECIFY)			
TOTAL SELF-HELP ARRANGEMENT		NIV//AND	_
SPECIAL PURCHASES			

PURCHASED GAS ADJUSTMENT COMPANY NAME: GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC. SUPPLIER REFUND AND RECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENT

(1986年) [1985년 [1985년 - 1985년 - 1985년 [1985년 1985년
DETAILS FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED

September 30, 2014

PARTICULARS	UNIT	AMOUNT
PARTICULARS	UNII	, ANIOONI
JURISDICTIONAL SALES: TWELVE MONTHS ENDED September 30, 20 TOTAL SALES: TWELVE MONTHS ENDED September 30, 20		474,560 474,560
RATIO OF JURISDICTIONAL SALES TO TOTAL SALES	RATIO	100%
SUPPLIER REFUNDS RECEIVED DURING THREE MONTH PERIOD		<u>\$0</u>
JURISDICTIONAL SHARE OF SUPPLIER REFUNDS RECEIVED		\$0
RECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENTS ORDERED DURING QUARTER		\$0
TOTAL JURISDICTIONAL REFUND & RECONCILIATION ADJ.		\$0
INTEREST FACTOR		1.0550
REFUNDS & RECONCILIATION ADJ. INCLUDING INTEREST		\$0
JURISDICTIONAL SALES: TWELVE MONTHS ENDED September 30, 20	14 MCF	474,560
CURRENT SUPPLIER REFUND & RECONCILIATION ADJ.	\$/MCF	\$0.0000
DETAILS OF REFUNDS / ADJUSTN RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE M		O September 30, 2014
RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE M		
		September 30, 2014 AMOUNT
RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE M PARTICULARS		AMOUNT SEE DETAILS BELOW
RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE M PARTICULARS		AMOUNT
RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE M PARTICULARS SUPPLIER REFUNDS RECEIVED DURING QUARTER	ONTH PERIOD ENDED	SEE DETAILS BELOW \$0
RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE M PARTICULARS SUPPLIER REFUNDS RECEIVED DURING QUARTER TOTAL SUPP		AMOUNT SEE DETAILS BELOW
RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE M PARTICULARS SUPPLIER REFUNDS RECEIVED DURING QUARTER TOTAL SUPP	ONTH PERIOD ENDED	SEE DETAILS BELOW \$0
RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE M PARTICULARS SUPPLIER REFUNDS RECEIVED DURING QUARTER TOTAL SUPP	ONTH PERIOD ENDED	SEE DETAILS BELOW \$0
RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE M PARTICULARS SUPPLIER REFUNDS RECEIVED DURING QUARTER	ONTH PERIOD ENDED	SEE DETAILS BELOW \$0 \$0
RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE M PARTICULARS SUPPLIER REFUNDS RECEIVED DURING QUARTER TOTAL SUPP RECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENTS ORDERED DURING QUARTER TOTAL RECONCILIATION	LIER REFUNDS	SEE DETAILS BELOW \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0
RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE M PARTICULARS SUPPLIER REFUNDS RECEIVED DURING QUARTER TOTAL SUPPRECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENTS ORDERED DURING QUARTER TOTAL RECONCILIATION ADDUSTMENTS OF SUPPLIER REFUNDS FOR THE THE	ONTH PERIOD ENDED LIER REFUNDS ADJUSTMENTS IREE MONTHS ENDED	\$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0
RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE M PARTICULARS SUPPLIER REFUNDS RECEIVED DURING QUARTER TOTAL SUPP RECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENTS ORDERED DURING QUARTER TOTAL RECONCILIATION DETAILS OF SUPPLIER REFUNDS FOR THE TH	LIER REFUNDS ADJUSTMENTS REE MONTHS ENDER	\$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$
RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE M PARTICULARS SUPPLIER REFUNDS RECEIVED DURING QUARTER TOTAL SUPP RECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENTS ORDERED DURING QUARTER TOTAL RECONCILIATION DETAILS OF SUPPLIER REFUNDS FOR THE TH	ONTH PERIOD ENDED LIER REFUNDS ADJUSTMENTS IREE MONTHS ENDED MONTH-YEAR Jul-14	\$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$
RECEIVED / ORDERED DURING THE THREE M PARTICULARS SUPPLIER REFUNDS RECEIVED DURING QUARTER TOTAL SUPP RECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENTS ORDERED DURING QUARTER TOTAL RECONCILIATION	LIER REFUNDS ADJUSTMENTS REE MONTHS ENDER	\$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$

SCHEDULE III

COMPANY NAME: GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC.

ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT

DETAILS FOR THE THREE MONTH PERIOD ENDED September 30, 2014

PARTICULARS	UNIT	MONTH Jul-2014	MONTH Aug-2014	MONTH Sep-2014
SUPPLY VOLUME PER BOOKS	01417	00.2014	7 tug 2514	GC 5-20 1-1
PRIMARY GAS SUPPLIERS	DTH	9,660	9,178	13,178
UTILITY PRODUCTION	DTH	.,	.,	
INCLUDABLE PROPANE	DTH			
OTHER VOLUMES (SPECIFY)	DTH			
*	DTH	-	-	i-e
TOTAL SUPPLY VOLUMES	DTH	9,660	9,178	13,178
SUPPLY COST PER BOOKS				
PRIMARY GAS SUPPLIERS	\$	77,406	67,296	92,586
UTILITY PRODUCTION	\$			
INCLUDABLE PROPANE	\$			
OTHER COST (SPECIFY)	\$			
	\$	**	**	_
TOTAL SUPPLY COST	\$	77,406	67,296	92,586
SALES VOLUMES				
JURISDICTIONAL	MCF	8,235	7,453	10,197
NON-JURISDICTIONAL	MCF			
OTHER VOLUMES (SPECIFY)	MCF			
•	MCF		_	_
TOTAL SALES VOLUME	MCF	, 8,235	7,453	10,197
UNIT BOOK COST OF GAS (SUPPLY \$ / SALES MCF)	\$/MCF	9.3996	9.0294	9.0797
LESS: EGC IN EFFECT FOR MONTH	\$/MCF	6.8080	6.1597	6.3229
= DIFFERENCE	\$/MCF	2.5916	2.8697	2.7568
TIMES: MONTHLY JURISDICTIONAL SALES	MCF	8,235	7,453	10,197
= MONTHLY COST DIFFERENCE	\$	21,342	21,388	28,111
BALANCE ADJUSTMENT SCHEDULE IV				3,639
PARTICULARS			UNIT	
COST DIFFERENCE FOR THE THREE MONTH PERIOD			\$	74,481
DIVIDED BY: TWELVE MONTHS SALES ENDED	September 30, 2014	1	MCF	474,560
= CURRENT QUARTERLY ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT			\$/MCF	0.1569

PURCHASED GAS ADJUSTMENT COMPANY NAME: GLENWOOD ENERGY OF OXFORD, INC. BALANCE ADJUSTMENT

DETAILS FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED

September 30, 2014

PARTICULARS	AMOUNT
COST DIFFERENCE BETWEEN BOOK AND EFFECTIVE EGC AS USED TO COMPUTE AA OF THE GCR IN EFFECT FOUR QUARTERS PRIOR TO THE CURRENTLY EFFECTIVE GCR	(\$21,133)
LESS: DOLLAR AMOUNT RESULTING FROM THE AA OF (\$0.0522) / MCF AS USED TO COMPUTE THE GCR IN EFFECT FOUR QUARTERS PRIOR TO THE CURRENTLY EFFECTIVE GCR TIMES THE JURISDICTIONAL SALES O 474,560 MCF AND THE PERIOD BETWEEN THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE CURRENT GCR RATE AND THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE GCR RATE IN EFFECT APPROXIMATELY ONE YEAR PRIOR TO THE CURRENT RATE.	(\$24,772)
BALANCE ADJUSTMENT FOR THE AA	\$3,639
DOLLAR AMOUNT OF SUPPLIER REFUNDS AND COMMISSION ORDERED RECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENTS AS USED TO COMPUTE THE RA OF THE GCR IN EFFECT FOUR QUARTERS PRIOR TO THE CURRENTLY EFFECTIVE GCR.	. \$0
LESS: DOLLAR AMOUNT RESULTING FROM UNIT RATE FOR SUPPLIER REFUNDS AND RECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENTS OF \$ - / MCF AS USED TO COMPUTE THE RA OF THE GCR IN EFFECT FOUR QUARTERS PRIOR TO THE CURRENTLY EFFECTIVE GCR TIMES THE JURISDICTIONAL SALES OF 474,560 MCF FOR THE PERIOD THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE CURRENT GCR RATE AND THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF GCR RATE IN EFFECT APPROXIMATELY ONE YEAR PRIOR TO THE CURRENT RATE.	
THE CORRENT RATE.	\$0_
BALANCE ADJUSTMENT FOR THE RA	\$0
DOLLAR AMOUNT OF BALANCE ADJUSTMENT AS USED TO COMPUTE THE BA OF THE GCR IN EFFECT ONE QUARTER PRIOR TO THE CURRENTLY EFFECTIVE GCR.	\$0
LESS: DOLLAR AMOUNT RESULTING FROM THE BA OF TO COMPUTE THE GCR IN EFFECT ONE QUARTER PRIOR TO THE CURRENTLY EFFECTIVE GCR TIMES THE JURISDICTIONAL SALES OF 474,560 MCF FOR THE PERIOD BETWEEN THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE CURRENT GCR RATE AND THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE GCR RATE IN EFFECT IMMEDIATELY PRIOR TO THE	
CURRENT RATE.	\$0
BALANCE ADJUSTMENT FOR THE BA	\$0
TOTAL BALANCE ADJUSTMENT AMOUNT	\$3,639

This foregoing document was electronically filed with the Public Utilities

Commission of Ohio Docketing Information System on

4/8/2015 2:46:48 PM

in

Case No(s). 15-0680-GA-ATA

Summary: Application Application to Modify its Tariff electronically filed by Mr. Stephen M Howard on behalf of Glenwood Energy of Oxford, Inc.